Supplemental Listing Document

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this document, you should consult your stockbroker or
other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other professional adviser.

Application has been made to the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST")
for permission to deal in and for quotation of the Certificates (as defined below). The SGX-ST assumes no
responsibility for the correctness of any statements made or opinions or reports expressed in this document,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents
of this document. Admission to the Official List of the SGX-ST is not to be taken as an indication of the
merits of SG Issuer, Societe Generale, the Certificates, or the Company (as defined below).

25,000,000 European Style Cash Settled Long Certificates
relating to the ordinary shares of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

with a Daily Leverage of 5x

issued by
SG Issuer
(Incorporated in Luxembourg with limited liability)
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

Societe Generale

Issue Price: S$0.50 per Certificate

This document is published for the purpose of obtaining a listing of all the above certificates (the
“Certificates”) to be issued by SG Issuer (the “Issuer”) unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by
Societe Generale (the “Guarantor”), and is supplemental to and should be read in conjunction with a base
listing document dated 13 June 2025 including such further base listing documents as may be issued from
time to time (the “Base Listing Document”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Issuer,
the Guarantor and the Certificates. Information relating to the Company (as defined below) is contained in
this document.

This document does not constitute or form part of any offer, or invitation, to subscribe for or to sell,
or solicitation of any offer to subscribe for or to purchase, Certificates or other securities of the Issuer, nor
is it calculated to invite, nor does it permit the making of, offers by the public to subscribe for or purchase
for cash or other consideration the Certificates or other securities of the Issuer.

Restrictions have been imposed on offers and sales of the Certificates and on distributions of
documents relating thereto in Singapore, Hong Kong, the European Economic Area, the United Kingdom
and the United States (see “Placing and Sale” contained herein).

The Certificates are complex products. You should exercise caution in relation to them. Investors
are warned that the price of the Certificates may fall in value as rapidly as it may rise and holders may
sustain a total loss of their investment. The price of the Certificates also depends on the supply and demand



for the Certificates in the market and the price at which the Certificates is trading at any time may differ from
the underlying valuation of the Certificates because of market inefficiencies. It is not possible to predict the
secondary market for the Certificates. Although the Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any of their affiliates may
from time to time purchase the Certificates or sell additional Certificates on the market, the Issuer, the
Guarantor and/or any of their affiliates are not obliged to do so. Investors should also note that there are
leveraged risks because the Certificates integrate a leverage mechanism and the Certificates will amplify
the movements in the increase, and in the decrease, of the value of the Underlying Stock (as defined below)
and if the investment results in a loss, any such loss will be increased by the leverage factor of the
Certificates. As such, investors could lose more than they would if they had invested directly in the
Underlying Stock.

The Certificates are classified as capital markets products other than prescribed capital markets
products® and Specified Investment Products (SIPs)?, and may only be sold to retail investors with
enhanced safeguards, including an assessment of such investors’ investment knowledge or experience.

The Certificates constitute general unsecured obligations of the Issuer (in the case of any
substitution of the Issuer in accordance with the Conditions of the Certificates, the Substituted Obligor as
defined in the Conditions of the Certificates) and of no other person, and the guarantee dated 13 June 2025
(the “Guarantee”) and entered into by the Guarantor constitutes direct unconditional unsecured senior
preferred obligations of the Guarantor and of no other person, and if you purchase the Certificates, you are
relying upon the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the Guarantor and have no rights under the Certificates
against any other person.

Application has been made to the SGX-ST for permission to deal in and for quotation of the
Certificates and the SGX-ST has agreed in principle to grant permission to deal in and for quotation of the
Certificates. It is expected that dealings in the Certificates will commence on or about 11 March 2026.

As of the date hereof, the Guarantor’s long term credit rating by S&P Global Ratings is A, and by
Moody'’s Investors Service, Inc. is Al.

The Issuer is regulated by the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier on
a consolidated basis and the Guarantor is regulated by, inter alia, the Autorité des Marchés Financiers, the
Autorité de Contr6le Prudentiel et de Résolution and the European Central Bank.

10 March 2026

1 As defined in the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products) Regulations 2018.
2 As defined in the MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-N16: Notice on
Recommendations on Investment Products.



Subject as set out below, the Issuer and the Guarantor accept full responsibility for the accuracy of
the information contained in this document and the Base Listing Document in relation to themselves and
the Certificates. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Issuer and the Guarantor (each of which
has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this document
and the Base Listing Document for which they accept responsibility (subject as set out below in respect of
the information contained herein with regard to the Company) is in accordance with the facts and does not
omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The information with regard to the Company as
set out herein is extracted from publicly available information. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept
responsibility only for the accurate reproduction of such information. No further or other responsibility or
liability in respect of such information is accepted by the Issuer and the Guarantor.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation other than
those contained in this document in connection with the offering of the Certificates, and, if given or made,
such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer or the
Guarantor. Neither the delivery of this document nor any sale made hereunder shall under any
circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer, the
Guarantor or their respective subsidiaries and associates since the date hereof.

This document does not constitute an offer or invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer or the
Guarantor to purchase or subscribe for any of the Certificates. The distribution of this document and the
offering of the Certificates may, in certain jurisdictions, be restricted by law. The Issuer and the Guarantor
require persons into whose possession this document comes to inform themselves of and observe all such
restrictions. In particular, the Certificates and the Guarantee have not been and will not be registered under
the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended or any state securities law, and trading in the
Certificates has not been approved by the United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the
“CFTC”) under the United States Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as amended and the Issuer has not
been and will not be registered as an investment company under the United States Investment Company
Act of 1940, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder. None of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, any state securities commission or regulatory authority or any other United States, French or
other regulatory authority has approved or disapproved of the Certificates or the Guarantee or passed upon
the accuracy or adequacy of this document. Accordingly, Certificates, or interests therein, may not at any
time be offered, sold, resold, traded, pledged, exercised, redeemed, transferred or delivered, directly or
indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons, nor may any U.S. person
at any time trade, own, hold or maintain a position in the Certificates or any interests therein. In addition, in
the absence of relief from the CFTC, offers, sales, re-sales, trades, pledges, exercises, redemptions,
transfers or deliveries of Certificates, or interests therein, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or
for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons, may constitute a violation of United States law governing
commodities trading and commaodity pools. Consequently, any offer, sale, resale, trade, pledge, exercise,
redemption, transfer or delivery made, directly or indirectly, within the United States or to, or for the account
or benefit of, a U.S. person will not be recognised. A further description of certain restrictions on offering
and sale of the Certificates and distribution of this document is given in the section headed “Placing and
Sale” contained herein.

The SGX-ST has made no assessment of, nor taken any responsibility for, the financial soundness
of the Issuer or the Guarantor or the merits of investing in the Certificates, nor have they verified the
accuracy or the truthfulness of statements made or opinions expressed in this document.

The Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any of their affiliates may repurchase Certificates at any time on
or after the date of issue and any Certificates so repurchased may be offered from time to time in one or
more transactions in the over-the-counter market or otherwise at prevailing market prices or in negotiated
transactions, at the discretion of the Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any of their affiliates. Investors should not
therefore make any assumption as to the number of Certificates in issue at any time.



References in this document to the “Conditions” shall mean references to the Terms and
Conditions of the European Style Cash Settled Long/Short Certificates on Single Equities contained in the
Base Listing Document. Terms not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the
Conditions.
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RISK FACTORS

The following are risk factors relating to the Certificates:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

(f)

(9)

(h)

in respect of certain corporate adjustment events on the Underlying Stock, trading in the Certificates
may be suspended on the relevant ex-date of the Underlying Stock and trading in the Certificates
will resume on the next immediate trading day on the SGX-ST. Please note that trading in the
Certificates on the SGX-ST may be suspended for more than one trading day in certain
circumstances;

investment in Certificates involves substantial risks including market risk, liquidity risk, and the risk
that the Issuer and/or the Guarantor will be unable to satisfy its/their obligations under the
Certificates. Investors should ensure that they understand the nature of all these risks before
making a decision to invest in the Certificates. You should consider carefully whether Certificates
are suitable for you in light of your experience, objectives, financial position and other relevant
circumstances. Certificates are not suitable for inexperienced investors;

the Certificates constitute general unsecured obligations of the Issuer (in the case of any
substitution of the Issuer in accordance with the Conditions of the Certificates, the Substituted
Obligor as defined in the Conditions of the Certificates) and of no other person, and the Guarantee
constitutes direct unconditional unsecured senior preferred obligations of the Guarantor and of no
other person. In particular, it should be noted that the Issuer issues a large number of financial
instruments, including Certificates, on a global basis and, at any given time, the financial
instruments outstanding may be substantial. If you purchase the Certificates, you are relying upon
the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the Guarantor and have no rights under the Certificates
against any other person;

since the Certificates relate to the price of the Underlying Stock, certain events relating to the
Underlying Stock may cause adverse movements in the value and the price of the Underlying
Stock, as a result of which, the Certificate Holders (as defined in the Conditions of the Certificates)
may, in extreme circumstances, sustain a significant loss of their investment if the price of the
Underlying Stock has fallen sharply;

in the event that the Company is subject to any sanction by governmental authorities, (i) such
sanction may impact general investor interest in the Underlying Stock, which may in turn affect the
liquidity and market price of the Underlying Stock, and (i) investors should consult their own legal
advisers to check whether and to what extent investing in the Certificates will be in violation of
applicable laws and regulations;

in the event that the Company is controlled through weighted voting rights, certain individuals who
own shares of a class which is being given more votes per share may have the ability to determine
the outcome of most matters, and depending on the action taken by the Company, the market price
of the Certificates could be adversely affected,;

due to their nature, the Certificates can be volatile instruments and may be subject to considerable
fluctuations in value. The price of the Certificates may fall in value as rapidly as it may rise due to,
including but not limited to, variations in the frequency and magnitude of the changes in the price
of the Underlying Stock, the time remaining to expiry, the currency exchange rates and the
creditworthiness of the Issuer and the Guarantor;

if, whilst any of the Certificates remain unexercised, trading in the Underlying Stock is suspended
or halted on the relevant stock exchange, trading in the Certificates may be suspended for a similar
period;
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(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

(a)

(r

(s)

as indicated in the Conditions of the Certificates and herein, a Certificate Holder must tender a
specified number of Certificates at any one time in order to exercise. Thus, Certificate Holders with
fewer than the specified minimum number of Certificates in a particular series will either have to
sell their Certificates or purchase additional Certificates, incurring transactions costs in each case,
in order to realise their investment;

investors should note that in the event of there being a Market Disruption Event (as defined in the
Conditions) determination or payment of the Cash Settlement Amount (as defined in the
Conditions) may be delayed, all as more fully described in the Conditions;

certain events relating to the Underlying Stock require or, as the case may be, permit the Issuer to
make certain adjustments or amendments to the Conditions. Investors may refer to the Conditions
4 and 6 on pages 30 to 34 and the examples and illustrations of adjustments set out in the
“Information relating to the European Style Cash Settled Long Certificates on Single Equities”
section of this document for more information;

the Certificates are only exercisable on the Expiry Date and may not be exercised by Certificate
Holders prior to such Expiry Date. Accordingly, if on the Expiry Date the Cash Settlement Amount
is zero, a Certificate Holder will lose the value of his investment;

the total return on an investment in any Certificate may be affected by the Hedging Fee Factor (as
defined below), Management Fee (as defined below) and Gap Premium (as defined below);

investors holding their position overnight should note that they would be required to bear the
annualised cost which consists of the Management Fee and Gap Premium, which are calculated
daily and applied to the value of the Certificates, as well as certain costs embedded within the
Leverage Strategy (as described below) including the Funding Cost (as defined below) and
Rebalancing Cost (as defined below);

investors should note that there are leveraged risks because the Certificates integrate a leverage
mechanism and the Certificates will amplify the movements in the increase, and in the decrease,
of the value of the Underlying Stock and if the investment results in a loss, any such loss will be
increased by the leverage factor of the Certificates. As such, investors could lose more than they
would if they had invested directly in the Underlying Stock;

when held for longer than a day, the performance of the Certificates could be more or less than the
leverage factor that is embedded within the Certificates. The performance of the Certificates each
day is locked in, and any subsequent returns are based on what was achieved the previous trading
day. This process, referred to as compounding, may lead to a performance difference from 5 times
the performance of the Underlying Stock over a period longer than one day. This difference may
be amplified in a volatile market with a sideway trend, where market movements are not clear in
direction, whereby investors may sustain substantial losses;

the Air Bag Mechanism (as defined below) is triggered only when the Underlying Stock is calculated
or traded, which may not be during the trading hours of the Relevant Stock Exchange for the
Certificates (as defined below);

investors should note that the Air Bag Mechanism reduces the impact on the Leverage Strategy if
the Underlying Stock falls further, but will also maintain a reduced exposure to the Underlying Stock
in the event the Underlying Stock starts to rise after the Air Bag Mechanism is triggered, thereby
reducing its ability to recoup losses;

there is no assurance that the Air Bag Mechanism will prevent investors from losing the entire value
of their investment, in the event of (i) an overnight fall in the Underlying Stock, where there is a
20% or greater gap between the previous trading day closing price and the opening price of the



(t)

(u)

v)

(W)

Underlying Stock the following trading day, as the Air Bag Mechanism will only be triggered when
market opens (including pre-opening session or opening auction, as the case may be) the following
trading day or (ii) a sharp intraday fall in the price of the Underlying Stock of 20% or greater within
the 15 minutes Observation Period compared to the reference price, being: (1) if air bag has not
been previously triggered on the same day, the previous closing price of the Underlying Stock, or
(2) if one or more air bag have been previously triggered on the same day, the latest New Observed
Price. Investors may refer to pages 51 to 52 of this document for more information;

certain events may, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Certificates, trigger (i) the
implementation of methods of adjustment or (ii) the early termination of the Certificates. The
Certificates may be terminated prior to its Expiry Date for the following reasons which are not
exhaustive: lllegality and force majeure, occurrence of a Holding Limit Event (as defined in the
Conditions of the Certificates) or Hedging Disruption (as defined in the Conditions of the
Certificates). For more detailed examples of when early termination may occur, please refer to the
FAQ section under the “Education” tab on the website at dlc.socgen.com.

The Issuer will give the investors reasonable notice of any early termination. If the Issuer terminates
the Certificates early, the Issuer will, if and to the extent permitted by applicable law, pay an amount
to each Certificate Holder in respect of each Certificate held by such holder equal to the fair market
value of the Certificate less the cost to the Issuer of unwinding any underlying related hedging
arrangements, all as determined by the Issuer in its sole and absolute discretion. The performance
of this commitment shall depend on (i) general market conditions and (ii) the liquidity conditions of
the underlying instrument(s) and, as the case may be, of any other hedging transactions. Investors
should note that the amount repaid by the Issuer may be substantially less than the amount initially
invested, and at the worst case, be zero. Investors may refer to the Condition 13 on pages 37 to
39 of this document for more information;

there is no assurance that an active trading market for the Certificates will sustain throughout the
life of the Certificates, or if it does sustain, it may be due to market making on the part of the
Designated Market Maker. The Issuer acting through its Designated Market Maker may be the only
market participant buying and selling the Certificates. Therefore, the secondary market for the
Certificates may be limited and you may not be able to realise the value of the Certificates. Do note
that the bid-ask spread increases with illiquidity;

in the ordinary course of their business, including without limitation, in connection with the Issuer
or its appointed designated market maker’'s market making activities, the Issuer, the Guarantor and
any of their respective subsidiaries and affiliates may effect transactions for their own account or
for the account of their customers and hold long or short positions in the Underlying Stock. In
addition, in connection with the offering of any Certificates, the Issuer, the Guarantor and any of
their respective subsidiaries and affiliates may enter into one or more hedging transactions with
respect to the Underlying Stock. In connection with such hedging or market-making activities or
with respect to proprietary or other trading activities by the Issuer, the Guarantor and any of their
respective subsidiaries and affiliates, the Issuer, the Guarantor and any of their respective
subsidiaries and affiliates may enter into transactions in the Underlying Stock which may affect the
market price, liquidity or value of the Certificates and which may affect the interests of Certificate
Holders;

various potential and actual conflicts of interest may arise from the overall activities of the Issuer,
the Guarantor and/or any of their subsidiaries and affiliates.

The Issuer, the Guarantor and any of their subsidiaries and affiliates are diversified financial
institutions with relationships in countries around the world. These entities engage in a wide range
of commercial and investment banking, brokerage, funds management, hedging transactions and
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(bb)

(cc)

investment and other activities for their own account or the account of others. In addition, the Issuer,
the Guarantor and any of their subsidiaries and affiliates, in connection with their other business
activities, may possess or acquire material information about the Underlying Stock. Such activities
and information may involve or otherwise affect issuers of the Underlying Stock in a manner that
may cause consequences adverse to the Certificate Holders or otherwise create conflicts of
interests in connection with the issue of Certificates by the Issuer. Such actions and conflicts may
include, without limitation, the exercise of voting power, the purchase and sale of securities,
financial advisory relationships and exercise of creditor rights. The Issuer, the Guarantor and any
of their subsidiaries and affiliates have no obligation to disclose such information about the
Underlying Stock or such activities. The Issuer, the Guarantor and any of their subsidiaries and
affiliates and their officers and directors may engage in any such activities without regard to the
issue of Certificates by the Issuer or the effect that such activities may directly or indirectly have on
any Certificate;

legal considerations which may restrict the possibility of certain investments:

Some investors’ investment activities are subject to specific laws and regulations or laws and
regulations currently being considered by various authorities. All potential investors must consult
their own legal advisers to check whether and to what extent (i) they can legally purchase the
Certificates (ii) the Certificates can be used as collateral security for various forms of borrowing (iii)
if other restrictions apply to the purchase of Certificates or their use as collateral security. Financial
institutions must consult their legal advisers or regulators to determine the appropriate treatment of
the Certificates under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules;

the credit rating of the Guarantor is an assessment of its ability to pay obligations, including those
on the Certificates. Consequently, actual or anticipated declines in the credit rating of the Guarantor
may affect the market value of the Certificates;

the Certificates are linked to the Underlying Stock and subject to the risk that the price of the
Underlying Stock may decline. The following is a list of some of the significant risks associated with
the Underlying Stock:

- Historical performance of the Underlying Stock does not give an indication of future
performance of the Underlying Stock. It is impossible to predict whether the price of the
Underlying Stock will fall or rise over the term of the Certificates; and

- The price of the Underlying Stock may be affected by the economic, financial and political
events in one or more jurisdictions, including the stock exchange(s) or quotation system(s)
on which the Underlying Stock may be traded;

the value of the Certificates depends on the Leverage Strategy performance built in the Certificate.
The Calculation Agent will make the Leverage Strategy last closing level and a calculation tool
available to the investors on a website;

two or more risk factors may simultaneously have an effect on the value of a Certificate such that
the effect of any individual risk factor may not be predicted. No assurance can be given as to the
effect any combination of risk factors may have on the value of a Certificate;

as the Certificates are represented by a global warrant certificate which will be deposited with The
Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”):

0] investors should note that no definitive certificate will be issued in relation to the
Certificates;



(dd)

(ee)

(ff)

(i) there will be no register of Certificate Holders and each person who is for the time being
shown in the records maintained by CDP as entitled to a particular number of Certificates
by way of interest (to the extent of such number) in the global warrant certificate in respect
of those Certificates represented thereby shall be treated as the holder of such number of
Certificates;

(iii) investors will need to rely on any statements received from their brokers/custodians as
evidence of their interest in the Certificates; and

(iv) notices to such Certificate Holders will be published on the web-site of the SGX-ST.
Investors will need to check the web-site of the SGX-ST regularly and/or rely on their
brokers/custodians to obtain such notices;

the US Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (“FATCA") withholding risk:

FATCA generally imposes a 30 per cent. withholding tax on certain U.S.-source payments to certain
non-US persons that do provide certification of their compliance with IRS rules to disclose the
identity of their US owners and account holders (if any) or establish a basis for exemption for such
disclosure. The Issuer or an investor's broker or custodian may be subject to FATCA and, as a
result, may be required to obtain certification from investors that they have complied with FATCA
disclosure requirements or have established a basis for exemption from FATCA. If an investor does
not provide the Issuer or the relevant broker or custodian with such certification, the Issuer and the
Guarantor or other withholding agent could be required to withhold U.S. tax on U.S.-source income
(if any) paid pursuant to the Certificates. In certain cases, the Issuer or the relevant broker or
custodian could be required to close an account of an investor who does not comply with the
FATCA certification procedures.

FATCA IS PARTICULARLY COMPLEX. EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN TAX
ADVISER TO OBTAIN A MORE DETAILED EXPLANATION OF FATCA AND TO DETERMINE
HOW THIS LEGISLATION MIGHT AFFECT EACH INVESTOR IN ITS PARTICULAR
CIRCUMSTANCES;

U.S. withholding tax

The Issuer has determined that this Certificate is not linked to U.S. Underlying Equities within the
meaning of applicable regulations under Section 871(m) of the United States Internal Revenue
Code, as discussed in the accompanying Base Listing Document under “TAXATION—TAXATION
IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA—Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986.” Accordingly, the Issuer expects that Section 871(m) will not apply to the Certificates. Such
determination is not binding on the IRS, and the IRS may disagree with this determination. Section
871(m) is complex and its application may depend on a Certificate Holder's particular
circumstances. Certificate Holders should consult with their own tax advisers regarding the
potential application of Section 871(m) to the Certificates;

risks arising from the taxation of securities

Tax law and practice are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. This may have a
negative impact on the value of the Certificates and/or the market price of the Certificates. For
example, the specific tax assessment of the Certificates may change compared to its assessment
at the time of purchase of the Certificates. This is especially true with regard to derivative
Certificates and their tax treatment. Holders of Certificates therefore bear the risk that they may
misjudge the taxation of the income from the purchase of the Certificates. However, there is also
the possibility that the taxation of the income from the purchase of the Certificates will change to
the detriment of the holders.
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Holders of the Certificates bear the risk that the specific tax assessment of the Certificates will
change. This can have a negative impact on the value of the Certificates and the investor may incur
a corresponding loss. The stronger this negative effect, the greater the loss may be; and

risk factors relating to the BRRD

French and Luxembourg law and European legislation regarding the resolution of financial
institutions may require the write-down or conversion to equity of the Certificates or other resolution
measures if the Issuer or the Guarantor is deemed to meet the conditions for resolution.

Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of the European Union dated
15 May 2014 establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and
investment firms (the “BRRD”) entered into force on 2 July 2014. The BRRD, as amended, has
been implemented into Luxembourg law by, among others, the Luxembourg act dated 18
December 2015 on the failure of credit institutions and certain investment firms, as amended (the
“BRR Act 2015"). Under the BRR Act 2015, the competent authority is the Luxembourg financial
sector supervisory authority (Commission de surveillance du secteur financier, the CSSF) and the
resolution authority is the CSSF acting as resolution council (conseil de résolution).

In April 2023, the EU Commission released a proposal to amend, in particular, the BRRD according
to which senior preferred debt instruments would no longer rank pari passu with any non covered
non preferred deposits of the Issuer; instead, senior preferred debt instruments would rank junior
in right of payment to the claims of all depositors.

This proposal is still subject to further discussions and as a result its precise legal application date
is unknown. As such, there may be an increased risk of an investor in senior preferred debt
instruments losing all or some of their investment in the context of the exercise of the Bail-in Power.

Moreover, Regulation (EU) No. 806/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 July
2014 establishing uniform rules and a uniform procedure for the resolution of credit institutions and
certain investment firms in the framework of a Single Resolution Mechanism (“SRM”) and a Single
Resolution Framework (the “SRM Regulation”) has established a centralised power of resolution
entrusted to a Single Resolution Board (the “SRB”) in cooperation with the national resolution
authorities.

Since November 2014, the European Central Bank (“ECB”) has taken over the prudential
supervision of significant credit institutions in the member states of the Eurozone under the Single
Supervisory Mechanism (“SSM”). In addition, the SRM has been put in place to ensure that the
resolution of credit institutions and certain investment firms across the Eurozone is harmonised. As
mentioned above, the SRM is managed by the SRB. Under Article 5(1) of the SRM Regulation, the
SRM has been granted those responsibilities and powers granted to the EU Member States’
resolution authorities under the BRRD for those credit institutions and certain investment firms
subject to direct supervision by the ECB. The ability of the SRB to exercise these powers came into
force at the beginning of 2016.

Societe Generale has been, and continues to be, designated as a significant supervised entity for
the purposes of Article 49(1) of Regulation (EU) No 468/2014 of the ECB of 16 April 2014
establishing the framework for cooperation within the SSM between the ECB and national
competent authorities and with national designated authorities (the “SSM Regulation”) and is
consequently subject to the direct supervision of the ECB in the context of the SSM. This means
that Societe Generale and SG Issuer (being covered by the consolidated prudential supervision of
Societe Generale) are also subject to the SRM which came into force in 2015. The SRM Regulation
mirrors the BRRD and, to a large part, refers to the BRRD so that the SRB is able to apply the
same powers that would otherwise be available to the relevant national resolution authority.
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The stated aim of the BRRD and the SRM Regulation is to provide for the establishment of an EU-
wide framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and certain investment firms.
The regime provided for by the BRRD is, among other things, stated to be needed to provide the
resolution authority designated by each EU Member State (the “Resolution Authority”) with a
credible set of tools to intervene sufficiently early and quickly in an unsound or failing institution so
as to ensure the continuity of the institution’s critical financial and economic functions while
minimising the impact of an institution’s failure on the economy and financial system (including
taxpayers’ exposure to losses).

In accordance with the provisions of the SRM Regulation, when applicable, the SRB, has replaced
the national resolution authorities designated under the BRRD with respect to all aspects relating
to the decision-making process and the national resolution authorities designated under the BRRD
continue to carry out activities relating to the implementation of resolution schemes adopted by the
SRB. The provisions relating to the cooperation between the SRB and the national resolution
authorities for the preparation of the institutions’ resolution plans have applied since 1 January
2015 and the SRM has been fully operational since 1 January 2016.

The SRB is the Resolution Authority for the Issuer and the Guarantor.

The powers provided to the Resolution Authority in the BRRD and the SRM Regulation include
write-down/conversion powers to ensure that capital instruments (including subordinated debt
instruments) and eligible liabilities (including senior debt instruments if junior instruments prove
insufficient to absorb all losses) absorb losses of the issuing institution that is subject to resolution
in accordance with a set order of priority (the “Bail-in Power”). The conditions for resolution under
the SRM Regulation are deemed to be met when: (i) the Resolution Authority determines that the
institution is failing or is likely to fail, (ii) there is no reasonable prospect that any measure other
than a resolution measure would prevent the failure within a reasonable timeframe, and (iii) a
resolution measure is necessary for the achievement of the resolution objectives (in particular,
ensuring the continuity of critical functions, avoiding a significant adverse effect on the financial
system, protecting public funds by minimizing reliance on extraordinary public financial support,
and protecting client funds and assets) and winding up of the institution under normal insolvency
proceedings would not meet those resolution objectives to the same extent.

The Resolution Authority could also, independently of a resolution measure or in combination with
a resolution measure, fully or partially write-down or convert capital instruments (including
subordinated debt instruments) into equity when it determines that the institution or its group will
no longer be viable unless such write-down or conversion power is exercised or when the institution
requires extraordinary public financial support (except when extraordinary public financial support
is provided in Article 10 of the SRM Regulation). The terms and conditions of the Certificates
contain provisions giving effect to the Bail-in Power in the context of resolution and write-down or
conversion of capital instruments at the point of non-viability.

The Bail-in Power could result in the full (i.e., to zero) or partial write-down or conversion of the
Certificates into ordinary shares or other instruments of ownership, or the variation of the terms of
the Certificates (for example, the maturity and/or interest payable may be altered and/or a
temporary suspension of payments may be ordered). Extraordinary public financial support should
only be used as a last resort after having assessed and applied, to the maximum extent practicable,
the resolution measures. No support will be available until a minimum amount of contribution to
loss absorption and recapitalization of 8% of total liabilities including own funds has been made by
shareholders, holders of capital instruments and other eligible liabilities through write-down,
conversion or otherwise.
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In addition to the Bail-in Power, the BRRD and the SRM Regulation provide the Resolution
Authority with broader powers to implement other resolution measures with respect to institutions
that meet the conditions for resolution, which may include (without limitation) the sale of the
institution’s business, the creation of a bridge institution, the separation of assets, the replacement
or substitution of the institution as obligor in respect of debt instruments, modifications to the terms
of debt instruments (including altering the maturity and/or the amount of interest payable and/or
imposing a temporary suspension on payments), removing management, appointing an interim
administrator, and discontinuing the listing and admission to trading of financial instruments.

Before taking a resolution measure, including implementing the Bail-in Power, or exercising the
power to write down or convert relevant capital instruments, the Resolution Authority must ensure
that a fair, prudent and realistic valuation of the assets and liabilities of the institution is carried out
by a person independent from any public authority.

The BRRD, the BRR Act 2015 and the SRM Regulation however also state that, under exceptional
circumstances, if the bail-in instrument is applied, the SRB, in cooperation with the CSSF, may
completely or partially exclude certain liabilities from the application of the impairment or conversion
powers under certain conditions.

Since 1 January 2016, EU credit institutions (such as Societe Generale) and certain investment
firms have to meet, at all times, a minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities
(“MREL™) pursuant to Article 12 of the SRM Regulation. The MREL, which is expressed as a
percentage of the total liabilities and own funds of the institution, aims at preventing institutions
from structuring their liabilities in a manner that impedes the effectiveness of the Bail-in Power in
order to facilitate resolution.

The regime has evolved as a result of the changes adopted by the EU legislators. On 7 June 2019,
as part of the contemplated amendments to the so-called “EU Banking Package”, the following
legislative texts were published in the Official Journal of the EU 14 May 2019:

. Directive (EU) 2019/879 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2019
amending the BRRD as regards the loss-absorbing and recapitalisation capacity of credit
institutions and investment firms (“BRRD II"); and

. Regulation (EU) 2019/877 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2019
amending the SRM Regulation as regards the loss-absorbing and recapitalisation capacity
(“TLAC”) of credit institutions and investment firms (the “SRM Il Regulation” and, together
with the BRRD II, the “EU Banking Package Reforms”).

The EU Banking Package Reforms introduced, among other things, the TLAC standard as
implemented by the Financial Stability Board's TLAC Term Sheet (“FSB TLAC Term Sheet”), by
adapting, among other things, the existing regime relating to the specific MREL with the aim of
reducing risks in the banking sector and further reinforcing institutions’ ability to withstand potential
shocks will strengthen the banking union and reduce risks in the financial system.

The TLAC has been implemented in accordance with the FSB TLAC Term Sheet, which imposes
a level of “Minimum TLAC” that will be determined individually for each global systemically
important bank (“G-SIB”), such as Societe Generale, in an amount at least equal to (i) 16%, plus
applicable buffers, of risk weight assets since January 1, 2022 and 18%, plus applicable buffers,
thereafter and (ii) 6% of the Basel Il leverage ratio denominator since January 1, 2022 and 6.75%
thereafter (each of which could be extended by additional firm-specific requirements).
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Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on
prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms (the “CRR”), as amended
notably by Regulation (EU) 2019/876 as regards the leverage ratio, the net stable funding ratio,
requirements for own funds and eligible liabilities, counterparty credit risk, market risk, exposures
to central counterparties, exposures to collective investment undertakings, large exposures,
reporting and disclosure requirements (the “CRR 1I") and Regulation (EU) 2022/2036 of the
European Parliament and of the Council of 19 October 2022 amending Regulation (EU) No
575/2013 and Directive 2014/59/EU as regards the prudential treatment of global systemically
important institutions with a multiple-point-of-entry resolution strategy and methods for the indirect
subscription of instruments eligible for meeting the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible
liabilities, EU G-SIBs, such as Societe Generale, have to comply with TLAC requirements, on top
of the MREL requirements, since the entry into force of the CRR II. As such, G-SIBs, such as
Societe Generale have to comply with both the TLAC and MREL requirements.

Consequently, the criteria for MREL-eligible liabilities have been closely aligned with the criteria for
TLAC-eligible liabilities under CRR II, but subject to the complementary adjustments and
requirements introduced in the BRRD II. In particular, certain debt instruments with an embedded
derivative component, such as certain structured notes, will be eligible, subject to certain conditions,
to meet MREL requirements to the extent that they have a fixed or increasing principal amount
repayable at maturity that is known in advance with only an additional return permitted to be linked
to that derivative component and dependent on the performance of a reference asset.

The level of capital and eligible liabilities required under MREL is set by the SRB for Societe
Generale on an individual and/or consolidated basis based on certain criteria including systemic
importance and may also be set for SG Issuer. Eligible liabilities may be senior or subordinated,
provided, among other requirements, that they have a remaining term of at least one year and, they
recognise contractually the Resolution Authority's power to write down or convert the liabilities
governed by non-EU law.

The scope of liabilities used to meet MREL includes, in principle, all liabilities resulting from claims
arising from ordinary unsecured creditors (non-subordinated liabilities) unless they do not meet
specific eligibility criteria set out in BRRD, as amended notably by BRRD II. To enhance the
resolvability of institutions and entities through an effective use of the bail-in tool, the SRB should
be able to require that MREL be met with own funds and other subordinated liabilities, in particular
where there are clear indications that bailed-in creditors are likely to bear losses in resolution that
would exceed the losses that they would incur under normal insolvency proceedings. Moreover the
SRB should assess the need to require institutions and entities to meet the MREL with own funds
and other subordinated liabilities where the amount of liabilities excluded from the application of
the bail- in tool reaches a certain threshold within a class of liabilities that includes MREL-eligible
liabilities. Any subordination of debt instruments requested by the SRB for the MREL shall be
without prejudice to the possibility to partly meet the TLAC requirements with non-subordinated
debt instruments in accordance with the CRR, as amended by the CRR I, as permitted by the
TLAC standard. Specific requirements apply to resolution groups with assets above EUR 100 billion
(top-tier banks, including Societe Generale).
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE CERTIFICATES

The following are the terms and conditions of the Certificates and should be read in conjunction
with, and are qualified by reference to, the other information set out in this document and the Base Listing
Document.

The Conditions are set out in the section headed “Terms and Conditions of the European Style
Cash Settled Long/Short Certificates on Single Equities” in the Base Listing Document. For the purposes

of the Conditions, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

Certificates:

ISIN:

Company:

Underlying Price® and Source:
Calculation Agent:

Strike Level:

Daily Leverage:

Notional Amount per Certificate:

Management Fee (p.a.)*

Gap Premium (p.a.)®:

Funding CostS:

Rebalancing Cost®:

Launch Date:
Closing Date:

Expected Listing Date:

25,000,000 European Style Cash Settled Long Certificates relating to
the ordinary shares of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
(the “Underlying Stock™)

LU2079537929

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (RIC: OCBC.SI)
S$20.93 (Reuters)

Societe Generale

Zero

5x (within the Leverage Strategy as described below)

SGD 0.50

0.40%

15.00%, is a hedging cost against extreme market movements
overnight.

The annualised costs of funding, referencing a publicly published
reference rate plus spread.

The transaction costs (if applicable), computed as a function of
leverage and daily performance of the Underlying Stock.

4 March 2026
10 March 2026

11 March 2026

3 These figures are calculated as at, and based on information available to the Issuer on or about 10 March 2026. The Issuer is not
obliged, and undertakes no responsibility to any person, to update or inform any person of any changes to the figures after 10 March
2026.

4Please note that the Management Fee is calculated on a 360-day basis and may be increased up to a maximum of 3% p.a. on giving
one month’s notice to investors. Any increase in the Management Fee will be announced on the SGXNET. Please refer to “Fees and
Charges” below for further details of the fees and charges payable and the maximum of such fees as well as other ongoing expenses
that may be borne by the Certificates.

5 Please note that the Gap Premium is calculated on a 360-day basis.

5 These costs are embedded within the Leverage Strategy.
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Last Trading Date:

Expiry Date:

Board Lot:

Valuation Date:

Exercise:

Cash Settlement Amount:

Hedging Fee Factor:

The date falling 5 Business Days immediately preceding the Expiry
Date, currently being 16 February 2028

23 February 2028 (if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, then the
Expiry Date shall fall on the preceding Business Day and subject to
adjustment of the Valuation Date upon the occurrence of Market
Disruption Events as set out in the Conditions of the Certificates)

100 Certificates

22 February 2028 or if such day is not an Exchange Business Day,
the immediately preceding Exchange Business Day.

The Certificates may only be exercised on the Expiry Date or if the
Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding
Business Day, in a Board Lot or integral multiples thereof. Certificate
Holders shall not be required to deliver an exercise notice. Exercise
of Certificates shall be determined by whether the Cash Settlement
Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is positive. If the Cash
Settlement Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is positive, all
Certificates shall be deemed to have been automatically exercised at
10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date
is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day. The
Cash Settlement Amount less the Exercise Expenses in respect of the
Certificates shall be paid in the manner set out in Condition 4(c) of the
Conditions. In the event the Cash Settlement Amount (less any
Exercise Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall be deemed to have
expired at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the
Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding
Business Day, and Certificate Holders shall not be entitled to receive
any payment from the Issuer in respect of the Certificates.

In respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the
Settlement Currency equal to:

Closing Level multiplied by the Notional Amount per Certificate

Please refer to the “Information relating to the European Style Cash
Settled Long Certificates on Single Equities” section on pages 43 to
57 of this document for examples and illustrations of the calculation of
the Cash Settlement Amount.

In respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount calculated as:
Product (for t from 2 to Valuation Date) of (1 — Management Fee x
(ACT (t-1;t) + 360)) x (1 — Gap Premium (t-1) x (ACT (t-1;t) + 360)),
where:

“t” refers to “Observation Date” which means each Exchange
Business Day (subject to Market Disruption Event) from (and

including) the Exchange Business Day immediately preceding the
Expected Listing Date to the Valuation Date; and

16



Closing Level:

Initial Reference Level:

Final Reference Level:

Initial Exchange Rate:
Final Exchange Rate:

Air Bag Mechanism:

ACT (t-1;t) means the number of calendar days between the
Exchange Business Day immediately preceding the Observation Date
(which is “t-1") (included) and the Observation Date (which is “t”)
(excluded).

If the Issuer determines, in its sole discretion, that on any Observation
Date a Market Disruption Event has occurred, then that Observation
Date shall be postponed until the first succeeding Exchange Business
Day on which there is no Market Disruption Event, unless there is a
Market Disruption Event on each of the five Exchange Business Days
immediately following the original date that, but for the Market
Disruption Event, would have been an Observation Date. In that case,
that fifth Exchange Business Day shall be deemed to be the
Observation Date notwithstanding the Market Disruption Event and
the Issuer shall determine, its good faith estimate of the level of the
Leverage Strategy and the value of the Certificate on that fifth
Exchange Business Day in accordance with the formula for and
method of calculation last in effect prior to the occurrence of the first
Market Disruption Event taking into account, inter alia, the exchange
traded or quoted price of the Underlying Stock and the potential
increased cost of hedging by the Issuer as a result of the occurrence
of the Market Disruption Event.

Please refer to the “Information relating to the European Style Cash
Settled Long Certificates on Single Equities” section on pages 43 to
57 of this document for examples and illustrations of the calculation of
the Hedging Fee Factor.

In respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the
Settlement Currency equal to:

Final Reference Level X Final Exchange Rate . .
( g - Strike Level) X Hedging Fee Factor

Initial Reference Level XInitial Exchange Rate
1,000

The closing level of the Leverage Strategy (as described below) on
the Valuation Date

The calculation of the closing level of the Leverage Strategy is set out
in the “Specific Definitions relating to the Leverage Strategy” section
on pages 19 to 24 below.

1

The “Air Bag Mechanism” refers to the mechanism built in the
Leverage Strategy and which is designed to reduce the Leverage
Strategy exposure to the Underlying Stock during extreme market
conditions. If the Underlying Stock falls by 15% or more (“Air Bag
Trigger Price”) during the trading day (which represents an
approximately 75% loss after a 5 times leverage), the Air Bag
Mechanism is triggered and the Leverage Strategy is adjusted intra-
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Adjustments and Extraordinary
Events:

Underlying Stock Currency:
Settlement Currency:

Exercise Expenses:

Relevant Stock Exchange for
the Certificates:

Relevant Stock Exchange for
the Underlying Stock:

Business Day, Settlement
Business Day and Exchange
Business Day:

Warrant Agent:
Clearing System:

Fees and Charges:

day. The Air Bag Mechanism reduces the impact on the Leverage
Strategy if the Underlying Stock falls further, but will also maintain a
reduced exposure to the Underlying Stock in the event the Underlying
Stock starts to rise after the Air Bag Mechanism is triggered, thereby
reducing its ability to recoup losses.

Trading of Certificates is suspended for at least 30 minutes of
continuous trading after the Air Bag is triggered. The resumption of
trading is subject to the SGX-ST’s requirements of at least 15 minutes
after the SGX-ST approves the request from the Issuer to resume
trading on the Certificates, rounded to the next quarter of an hour.

The Leverage Strategy is floored at 0 and the Certificates cannot be
valued below zero. Please refer to the “Extraordinary Strategy
Adjustment for Performance Reasons (“Air Bag Mechanism”)” section
on pages 22 to 24 below and the “Description of Air Bag Mechanism”
section on pages 49 to 50 of this document for further information of
the Air Bag Mechanism.

The Issuer has the right to make adjustments to the terms of the
Certificates if certain events, including any capitalisation issue, rights
issue, extraordinary distributions, merger, delisting, insolvency (as
more specifically set out in the terms and conditions of the
Certificates) occur in respect of the Underlying Stock. For the
avoidance of doubt, no notice will be given if the Issuer determines
that adjustments will not be made.

Singapore Dollar (“SGD")
SGD

Certificate Holders will be required to pay all charges which are
incurred in respect of the exercise of the Certificates.

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST")

The SGX-ST

A “Business Day”, a “Settlement Business Day” or an “Exchange
Business Day” is a day on which the SGX-ST is open for dealings in
Singapore during its normal trading hours and banks are open for
business in Singapore.

The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”)
CDP

Normal transaction and brokerage fees shall apply to the trading of
the Certificates on the SGX-ST. Investors should note that they may
be required to pay stamp taxes or other documentary charges in
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Further Information:

accordance with the laws and practices of the country where the
Certificates are transferred. Investors who are in any doubt as to their
tax position should consult their own independent tax advisers. In
addition, investors should be aware that tax regulations and their
application by the relevant taxation authorities change from time to
time. Accordingly, it is not possible to predict the precise tax treatment
which will apply at any given time.

Investors holding position overnight would also be required to bear
the Management Fee and Gap Premium, which are calculated daily
and applied to the value of the Certificates, as well as certain costs
embedded within the Leverage Strategy including the Funding Cost
and Rebalancing Cost. The Management Fee may be increased up
to a maximum of 3% p.a. on giving one month’s notice to investors in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Certificates. Any
increase in the Management Fee will be announced on the SGXNET.

Please refer to the website at dic.socgen.com for more information on
the theoretical closing price of the Certificates on the previous trading
day, the closing price of the Underlying Stock on the previous trading
day, the Air Bag Trigger Price for each trading day and the
Management Fee and Gap Premium.

Specific Definitions relating to the Leverage Strateqy

Description of the Leverage Strategy

The Leverage Strategy is designed to track a 5 times daily leveraged exposure to the Underlying Stock.

At the end of each trading day of the Underlying Stock, the exposure of the Leverage Strategy to the
Underlying Stock is reset within the Leverage Strategy in order to retain a daily leverage of 5 times the
performance of the Underlying Stock (excluding costs) regardless of the performance of the Underlying
Stock on the preceding day. This mechanism is referred to as the Daily Reset.

The Leverage Strategy incorporates an air bag mechanism which is designed to reduce exposure to the
Underlying Stock during extreme market conditions, as further described below.

Leverage Strategy Formula

LSL,

means, for any Observation Date(t), the Leverage Strategy Closing Level
as of such day (t).

Subject to the occurrence of an Intraday Restrike Event, the Leverage
Strategy Closing Level as of such Observation Date(t) is calculated in
accordance with the following formulae:

On Observation Date(1):
LSL; = 1000
On each subsequent Observation Date(t):

LSL; = Max[LSL;_; X (1 + LRy_y¢ — FCi_1r — RC¢_1.),0]
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LR 1,

FCi1;

RC;_q

TC

Leverage

St

Rate,

CashRate,

%SpreadLevel;

means the Leveraged Return of the Underlying Stock between
Observation Date(t-1) and Observation Date(t) closing prices, calculated
as follows:

— St
LRt—l,t = Leverage X (W — 1)

means, the Funding Cost between Observation Date(t-1) (included) and
Observation Date(t) (excluded) calculated as follows :

Rate¢—1 XACT(t—-1,t)
DayCountBasisRate

FCi_1¢ = (Leverage — 1) x

means the Rebalancing Cost of the Leverage Strategy on Observation
Date (t), calculated as follows :

St
St—1XRfactorg

RC;_;+ = Leverage X (Leverage — 1) X ( — 1|) X TC

means the Transaction Costs applicable (including Stamp Duty and any
other applicable taxes, levies and costs which may be levied on the stock
transactions on the Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock
by the applicable regulatory authorities from time to time) that are
currently equal to:

0.04%

“Stamp Duty” refers to the applicable rate of stamp duty on the stock
transactions in the jurisdiction of the Relevant Stock Exchange for the
Underlying Stock, which may be changed by the applicable regulatory
authorities from time to time.

means, in respect of each Observation Date(t), the Closing Price of the
Underlying Stock as of such Observation Date(t), subject to the
adjustments and provisions of the Conditions.

means, in respect of each Observation Date(t), a rate calculated as of
such day in accordance with the following formula:

Rate, = CashRate; + %SpreadLevel,

means, in respect of each Observation Date(t), the daily Singapore
Overnight Rate Average (SORA) provided by the Monetary Authority of
Singapore as administrator of the benchmark (or a successor
administrator), as published on BLOOMBERG/SIBCSORA Index or any
successor page, being the rate as of day (t-2) at 09:00 Singapore time,
provided that if such rate is not available, then such rate shall be
determined by reference to the last available rate that was published on
Refinitiv Screen (SORA=MAST) or any successor page.

1.00%, subject to change by the Issuer on giving 10 Business Days’
notice to investors via SGXNet.
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Rfactor;

ACT(t-1,t)

DayCountBasisRate

Benchmark Fallback

Reference Rate Event

Reference Rate
Cessation

means, in the event Observation Date (t) is an ex-dividend date of the
Underlying Stock, an amount determined by the Calculation Agent,
subject to the adjustments and provisions of the Conditions, according
to the following formula:

Div,

Se-1

Rfactor; = 1—

where

Div, is the dividend to be paid out in respect of the Underlying Stock and
the relevant ex-dividend date which shall be considered net of any
applicable withholding taxes.

ACT (t-1;t) means the number of calendar days between the Exchange
Business Day immediately preceding the Observation Date (which is “t-
1") (included) and the Observation Date (which is “t") (excluded).

365

upon the occurrence or likely occurrence, as determined by the
Calculation Agent, of a Reference Rate Event, the Calculation Agent
may make adjustments as it may determine appropriate to account for
the relevant event or circumstance, including but not limited to using any
alternative rates from such date, with or without retroactive effect as the
Calculation Agent may in its sole and absolute discretion determine.

means, in respect of the Reference Rate any of the following has
occurred or will occur:

(i) a Reference Rate Cessation;
(ii) an Administrator/Benchmark Event; or

(i) a Reference Rate is, with respect to over-the-counter derivatives
transactions which reference such Reference Rate, the subject of any
market-wide development formally agreed upon by the International
Swaps and Derivative Association (ISDA) or the Asia Securities Industry
& Financial Markets Association (ASIFMA), pursuant to which such
Reference Rate is, on a specified date, replaced with a risk-free rate (or
near risk-free rate) established in order to comply with the
recommendations in the Financial Stability Board's paper titled
“Reforming Major Interest Rate Benchmarks” dated 22 July 2014.

means, for a Reference Rate, the occurrence of one or more of the
following events:

(i) a public statement or publication of information by or on behalf of the
administrator of the Reference Rate announcing that it has ceased or will
cease to provide the Reference Rate permanently or indefinitely,
provided that, at the time of the statement or publication, there is no
successor administrator that will continue to provide the Reference Rate;

(i) a public statement or publication of information by the regulatory
supervisor for the administrator of the Reference Rate, the central bank
for the currency of the Reference Rate, an insolvency official with
jurisdiction over the administrator for the Reference Rate, a resolution
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authority with jurisdiction over the administrator for the Reference Rate
or a court or an entity with similar insolvency or resolution authority over
the administrator for the Reference Rate, which states that the
administrator of the Reference Rate has ceased or will cease to provide
the Reference Rate permanently or indefinitely, provided that, at the time
of the statement or publication, there is no successor administrator that
will continue to provide the Reference Rate; or

(iii) in respect of a Reference Rate, a public statement or publication of
information by the regulatory supervisor for the administrator of such
Reference Rate announcing that (a) the regulatory supervisor has
determined that such Reference Rate is no longer, or as of a specified
future date will no longer be, representative of the underlying market and
economic reality that such Reference Rate is intended to measure and
that representativeness will not be restored and (b) it is being made in
the awareness that the statement or publication will engage certain
contractual triggers for fallbacks activated by pre-cessation
announcements by such supervisor (howsoever described) in contracts;

Administrator/Benchmark means, for a Reference Rate, any authorisation, registration,

Event

Reference Rate(s)

recognition, endorsement, equivalence decision, approval or inclusion in
any official register in respect of the Reference Rate or the administrator
or sponsor of the Benchmark has not been, or will not be, obtained or
has been, or will be, rejected, refused, suspended or withdrawn by the
relevant competent authority or other relevant official body, in each case
with the effect that either the Issuer, the Calculation Agent or any other
entity is not, or will not be, permitted under any applicable law or
regulation to use the Reference Rate to perform its or their respective
obligations under the Certificates.

means the rate(s) used in the Leverage Strategy Formula, for example
SORA, SOFR and US Federal Funds Effective Rate.

Extraordinary Strategy Adjustment for Performance Reasons (“Air Bag Mechanism”)

Extraordinary Strategy
Adjustment for
Performance Reasons

If the Calculation Agent determines that an Intraday Restrike Event has occurred
during an Observation Date(t) (the Intraday Restrike Date, noted hereafter
IRD), an adjustment (an Extraordinary Strategy Adjustment for Performance
Reasons) shall take place during such Observation Date(t) in accordance with
the following provisions.

(1) Provided the last Intraday Restrike Observation Period as of such Intraday
Restrike Date does not end on the TimeReferenceClosing, the Leverage
Strategy Closing Level on the Intraday Restrike Date (LSLijzp) should be
computed as follows :

LSLIRD = MaX[ILSLIR(n) X (1 + ILRIR(n),IR(C) - IRCIR(n),IR(C))' 0]

(2) If the last Intraday Restrike Event Observation Period on the relevant
Intraday Restrike Date ends on the TimeReferenceClosing:

LSLirp = Max[ILSLign), O]
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ILSLig o

ILR R (k-1),1R(K)

IRCiR(c-1),1R(K)

ISiR(K)

IR(K)

IR(C)

Intraday Restrike Event

means, in respect of IR(k), the Intraday Leverage Strategy Level in accordance
with the following provisions:

(1) fork=1":

ILSLig(1y = Max|LSLirp-1 X (1 + ILRr(oy1r(1) — FCirp-11rD — IRCir(0)1R (1)), O]
(2) fork>1:

ILSLig(ey = Max[ILSLigge-1) X (1 + ILRir—1)1r) = TRCir(k—1),1R (1)) O]

means the Intraday Leveraged Return between IR(k-1) and IR(K), calculated as
follows:

ISRy 1)

ILR[rk-1),1r(k) = Leverage X (ISIR(k—l)

means the Intraday Rebalancing Cost of the Leverage Strategy in respect of
IR(K) on a given Intraday Restrike Date, calculated as follows:

SR _ 1|) x TC
ISIR(k-1)

IRCirk-1)r(k) = Leverage X (Leverage — 1) X (

means the Underlying Stock Price in respect of IR(k) computed as follows:
(1) for k=0

iSir(0) = Sirp-1 X Rfactoryrp

(2) fork=1ton

means in respect of IR(k), the lowest price of the Underlying Stock during the
respective Intraday Restrike Observation Period

(3) with respect to IR(C)

iSir(c) = Sirp

In each case, subject to the adjustments and provisions of the Conditions.

For k=0, means the scheduled close for the Relevant Stock Exchange for the

Underlying Stock (or any successor thereto) on the Observation Date
immediately preceding the relevant Intraday Restrike Date;

For k=1 to n, means the ki Intraday Restrike Event on the relevant Intraday

Restrike Date.

means the scheduled close for the Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying
Stock (or any successor thereto) on the relevant Intraday Restrike Date.

means the number of Intraday Restrike Events that occurred on the relevant
Intraday Restrike Date.

means in respect of an Observation Date(t) :

(1) provided no Intraday Restrike Event has previously occurred on such
Observation Date (t), the decrease at any Calculation Time of the Underlying
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Calculation Time

TimeReferenceOpening

TimeReferenceClosing

Intraday Restrike Event
Observation Period

Intraday Restrike Event
Time

Stock price by 15% or more compared with the relevant Underlying Stock Price
iSir(0y as of such Calculation Time.

(2) if k Intraday Restrike Events have occurred on the relevant Intraday Restrike
Date, the decrease at any Calculation Time of the Underlying Stock price by
15% or more compared with the relevant Underlying Stock Price iSg) as of

such Calculation Time.

means any time between the TimeReferenceOpening and the
TimeReferenceClosing, provided that the relevant data is available to enable
the Calculation Agent to determine the Leverage Strategy Level.

means the scheduled opening time (including pre-opening session or opening
auction, as the case may be) for the Relevant Stock Exchange for the
Underlying Stock (or any successor thereto).

means the scheduled closing time (including closing auction session) for the
Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock (or any successor thereto).

means in respect of an Intraday Restrike Event, the period starting on and
excluding the Intraday Restrike Event Time and finishing on and including the
sooner between (1) the time falling 15 minutes of continuous trading after the
Intraday Restrike Event Time and (2) the TimeReferenceClosing.

Where, during such period, the Calculation Agent determines that (1) the trading
in the Underlying Stock is disrupted or subject to suspension or limitation or (2)
the Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock is not open for
continuous trading, the Intraday Restrike Event Observation Period will be
extended to the extent necessary until (1) the trading in the Underlying Stock is
no longer disrupted, suspended or limited and (2) the Relevant Stock Exchange
for the Underlying Stock is open for continuous trading.

means in respect of an Intraday Restrike Event, the Calculation Time on which
such event occurs.
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The Conditions set out in the section headed “Terms and Conditions of the European Style Cash Settled
Long/Short Certificates on Single Equities” in the Base Listing Document are set out below. This section is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the detailed information appearing elsewhere in this document which
shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the relevant Conditions set out below,
replace or modify the relevant Conditions for the purpose of the Certificates.

1.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF

THE EUROPEAN STYLE CASH SETTLED LONG/SHORT CERTIFICATES ON SINGLE EQUITIES

Form, Status and Guarantee, Transfer and Title

(@)

(b)

Form. The Certificates (which expression shall, unless the context otherwise requires,
include any further certificates issued pursuant to Condition 11) are issued subject to and
with the benefit of:-

0] a master instrument by way of deed poll (the “Master Instrument”) dated 13 June
2025, made by SG Issuer (the “Issuer”) and Societe Generale (the “Guarantor”);
and

(i) a warrant agent agreement (the “Master Warrant Agent Agreement” or “Warrant

Agent Agreement”) dated any time before or on the Closing Date, made between
the Issuer and the Warrant Agent for the Certificates.

Copies of the Master Instrument and the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant
Agent Agreement are available for inspection at the specified office of the Warrant Agent.

The holders of the Certificates (the “Certificate Holders”) are entitled to the benefit of, are
bound by and are deemed to have notice of all the provisions of the Master Instrument and
the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement.

Status and Guarantee. The Certificates constitute direct, general and unsecured
obligations of the Issuer and rank, and will rank, equally among themselves and pari passu
with all other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer
(save for statutorily preferred exceptions). The Certificates provide for cash settlement on
exercise. The Certificates do not entitle Certificate Holders to the delivery of any Underlying
Stock, are not secured by the Underlying Stock and do not entitle Certificate Holders to
any interest in any Underlying Stock.

The due and punctual payment of any amounts due by the Issuer in respect of the
Certificates issued by the Issuer is unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the
Guarantor as provided in the Guarantee (each such amount payable under the Guarantee,
a “Guarantee Obligation”).

The Guarantee Obligations will constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Guarantor ranking as senior preferred obligations as
provided for in Article L. 613-30-3 | 3° of the French Code Monétaire et Financier (the
“Code”).

Such Guarantee Obligations rank and will rank equally and rateably without any preference
or priority among themselves and:

0] pari passu with all other direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Guarantor outstanding as of the date of the entry into force of the
law no. 2016-1691 (the “Law”) on 11 December 2016;
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(d)

(e)

(i) pari passu with all other present or future direct, unconditional, unsecured and
senior preferred obligations (as provided for in Article L. 613-30-3 | 3° of the Code)
of the Guarantor issued after the date of the entry into force of the Law on 11
December 2016;

(iii) junior to all present or future claims of the Guarantor benefiting from the statutorily
preferred exceptions; and

(iv) senior to all present and future senior non-preferred obligations (as provided for in
Article L.613-30-3 | 4° of the Code) of the Guarantor.

In the event of the failure of the Issuer to promptly perform its obligations to any Certificate
Holder under the terms of the Certificates, such Certificate Holder may, but is not obliged
to, give written notice to the Guarantor at Societe Generale, Tour Societe Generale, 75886
Paris Cedex 18, France marked for the attention of SEGL/JUR/OMF - Market Transactions
& Financing.

Transfer. The Certificates are represented by a global warrant certificate (“Global
Warrant”) which will be deposited with The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”).
Certificates in definitive form will not be issued. Transfers of Certificates may be effected
only in Board Lots or integral multiples thereof. All transactions in (including transfers of)
Certificates, in the open market or otherwise, must be effected through a securities account
with CDP. Title will pass upon registration of the transfer in the records maintained by CDP.

Title. Each person who is for the time being shown in the records maintained by CDP as
entitled to a particular number of Certificates shall be treated by the Issuer, the Guarantor
and the Warrant Agent as the holder and absolute owner of such number of Certificates,
notwithstanding any notice to the contrary. The expression “Certificate Holder” shall be
construed accordingly.

Bail-In. By the acquisition of Certificates, each Certificate Holder (which, for the purposes
of this Condition, includes any current or future holder of a beneficial interest in the
Certificates) acknowledges, accepts, consents and agrees:

0] to be bound by the effect of the exercise of the Bail-In Power (as defined below)
by the Relevant Resolution Authority (as defined below) on the Issuer’s liabilities
under the Certificates, which may include and result in any of the following, or
some combination thereof:

(A) the reduction of all, or a portion, of the Amounts Due (as defined below),
on a permanent basis;

(B) the conversion of all, or a portion, of the Amounts Due into shares, other
securities or other obligations of the Issuer or the Guarantor or another
person (and the issue to the Certificate Holder of such shares, securities
or obligations), including by means of an amendment, modification or
variation of the Conditions of the Certificates, in which case the Certificate
Holder agrees to accept in lieu of its rights under the Certificates any such
shares, other securities or other obligations of the Issuer or the Guarantor
or another person;

© the cancellation of the Certificates; and/or

(D) the amendment or alteration of the expiration of the Certificates or
amendment of the amounts payable on the Certificates, or the date on
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(ii)

which the amounts become payable, including by suspending payment for
a temporary period; and

that terms of the Certificates are subject to, and may be varied, if necessary, to
give effect to the exercise of the Bail-In Power by the Relevant Resolution Authority
or the regulator,

(the “Statutory Bail-In");

if the Relevant Resolution Authority exercises its Bail-In Power on liabilities of the
Guarantor, pursuant to Article L.613-30-3-1-3 of the French Monetary and Financial
Code (the “Code”):

(A) ranking:

(1) junior to liabilities of the Guarantor benefitting from statutorily
preferred exceptions pursuant to Article L.613-30-3-1 1° and 2 of
the Code;

(2) pari passu with liabilities of the Guarantor as defined in Article
L.613-30-3-I-3 of the Code; and

3) senior to liabilities of the Guarantor as defined in Article L.613-30-
3-1-4 of the Code; and

(B) which are not titres non structurés as defined under Article R.613-28 of the

Code, and

© which are not or are no longer eligible to be taken into account for the
purposes of the MREL (as defined below) ratio of the Guarantor

and such exercise of the Bail-In Power results in the write-down or cancellation of
all, or a portion of, the principal amount of, or the outstanding amount payable in
respect of, and/or interest on, such liabilities, and/or the conversion of all, or a
portion, of the principal amount of, or the outstanding amount payable in respect
of, or interest on, such liabilities into shares or other securities or other obligations
of the Guarantor or another person, including by means of variation to their terms
and conditions in order to give effect to such exercise of Bail-In Power, then the
Issuer’s obligations under the Certificates will be limited to (i) payment of the
amount as reduced or cancelled that would be recoverable by the Certificate
Holders and/or (ii) the delivery or the payment of value of the shares or other
securities or other obligations of the Guarantor or another person that would be
paid or delivered to the Certificate Holders as if, in either case, the Certificates had
been directly issued by the Guarantor itself and any Amount Due under the
Certificates had accordingly been directly subject to the exercise of the Bail-In
Power (the “Contractual Bail-in").

No repayment or payment of the Amounts Due will become due and payable or be paid
after the exercise of the Statutory Bail-In with respect to the Issuer or the Guarantor unless,
at the time such repayment or payment, respectively, is scheduled to become due, such
repayment or payment would be permitted to be made by the Issuer or the Guarantor under
the applicable laws and regulations in effect in France or Luxembourg and the European
Union applicable to the Issuer or the Guarantor or other members of its group.

No repayment or payment of the Amounts Due will become due and payable or be paid
under the Certificates issued by SG Issuer after implementation of the Contractual Bail-in.
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Upon the exercise of the Statutory Bail-in or upon implementation of the Contractual Bail-
in with respect to the Certificates, the Issuer or the Guarantor will provide a written notice
to the Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 9 as soon as practicable regarding
such exercise of the Statutory Bail-in or implementation of the Contractual Bail-in. Any
delay or failure by the Issuer or the Guarantor to give notice shall not affect the validity and
enforceability of the Statutory Bail-in or Contractual Bail-in nor the effects on the
Certificates described above.

Neither a cancellation of the Certificates, a reduction, in part or in full, of the Amounts Due,
the conversion thereof into another security or obligation of the Issuer or the Guarantor or
another person, as a result of the exercise of the Statutory Bail-in or the implementation of
the Contractual Bail-in with respect to the Certificates will be an event of default or
otherwise constitute non-performance of a contractual obligation, or entitle the Certificate
Holder to any remedies (including equitable remedies) which are hereby expressly waived.

The matters set forth in this Condition shall be exhaustive on the foregoing matters to the
exclusion of any other agreements, arrangements or understandings between the Issuer,
the Guarantor and each Certificate Holder. No expenses necessary for the procedures
under this Condition, including, but not limited to, those incurred by the Issuer and the
Guarantor, shall be borne by any Certificate Holder.

For the purposes of this Condition:
“Amounts Due” means any amounts due by the Issuer under the Certificates.

“Bail-In Power” means any statutory cancellation, write-down and/or conversion power
existing from time to time under any laws, regulations, rules or requirements relating to the
resolution of banks, banking group companies, credit institutions and/or investment firms,
including but not limited to any such laws, regulations, rules or requirements that are
implemented, adopted or enacted within the context of a European Union directive or
regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council establishing a framework for the
recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms, or any other applicable
laws or regulations, as amended, or otherwise, pursuant to which obligations of a bank,
banking group company, credit institution or investment firm or any of its affiliates can be
reduced, cancelled, varied or otherwise modified in any way and/or converted into shares
or other securities or obligations of the obligor or any other person.

“MREL” means the Minimum Requirement for own funds and Eligible Liabilities as defined
in Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014
establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and
investment firms (as amended from time to time).

“Relevant Resolution Authority” means any authority with the ability to exercise the Bail-
in Power on Societe Generale or SG Issuer as the case may be.

Certificate Rights and Exercise Expenses

(@)

Certificate Rights. Every Certificate entitles each Certificate Holder, upon due exercise and
on compliance with Condition 4, to payment by the Issuer of the Cash Settlement Amount
(as defined below) (if any) in the manner set out in Condition 4.

The “Cash Settlement Amount”, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount
payable in the Settlement Currency equal to the Closing Level multiplied by the Notional
Amount per Certificate.
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(b)

()

The “Closing Level”, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the
Settlement Currency equal to:

Final Reference Level XFinal Exchange Rate ) )

(Initial Reference Level XInitial Exchange Rate - Strike Level) xHedging Fee Factor

If the Issuer determines, in its sole discretion, that on the Valuation Date or any Observation
Date a Market Disruption Event has occurred, then that Valuation Date or Observation
Date shall be postponed until the first succeeding Exchange Business Day or Underlying
Stock Business Day, as the case may be, on which there is no Market Disruption Event,
unless there is a Market Disruption Event on each of the five Exchange Business Days or
Underlying Stock Business Days, as the case may be, immediately following the original
date that, but for the Market Disruption Event, would have been a Valuation Date or an
Observation Date. In that case:-

0] that fifth Exchange Business Day or Underlying Stock Business Day, as the case
may be, shall be deemed to be the Valuation Date or the Observation Date
notwithstanding the Market Disruption Event; and

(i) the Issuer shall determine the Final Reference Level or the relevant closing level
on the basis of its good faith estimate of the Final Reference Level or the relevant
closing level that would have prevailed on that fifth Exchange Business Day or
Underlying Stock Business Day, as the case may be, but for the Market Disruption
Event.

“Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence of (i) any suspension of
trading on the Relevant Stock Exchange of the Underlying Stock requested by the
Company if that suspension is, in the determination of the Issuer, material, (i) any
suspension of or limitation imposed on trading (including but not limited to unforeseen
circumstances such as by reason of movements in price exceeding limits permitted by the
Relevant Stock Exchange or any act of God, war, riot, public disorder, explosion, terrorism
or otherwise) on the Relevant Stock Exchange in the Underlying Stock if that suspension
or limitation is, in the determination of the Issuer, material, or (iii) the closing of the Relevant
Stock Exchange or a disruption to trading on the Relevant Stock Exchange if that disruption
is, in the determination of the Issuer, material as a result of the occurrence of any act of
God, war, riot, public disorder, explosion or terrorism.

Exercise Expenses. Certificate Holders will be required to pay all charges which are
incurred in respect of the exercise of the Certificates (the “Exercise Expenses”). An
amount equivalent to the Exercise Expenses will be deducted by the Issuer from the Cash
Settlement Amount in accordance with Condition 4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Certificate Holders shall account to the Issuer on demand for any Exercise Expenses to
the extent that they were not or could not be deducted from the Cash Settlement Amount
prior to the date of payment of the Cash Settlement Amount to the Certificate Holders in
accordance with Condition 4.

No Rights. The purchase of Certificates does not confer on the Certificate Holders any right
(whether in respect of voting, dividend or other distributions in respect of the Underlying
Stock or otherwise) which the holder of an Underlying Stock may have.
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3. Expiry Date

Unless automatically exercised in accordance with Condition 4(b), the Certificates shall be deemed
to expire at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day (as
defined below), the immediately preceding Business Day.

4. Exercise of Certificates

(@)

(b)

()

Exercise. Certificates may only be exercised on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date is not
a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day, in accordance with Condition
4(b).

Automatic Exercise. Certificate Holders shall not be required to deliver an exercise notice.
Exercise of Certificates shall be determined by whether the Cash Settlement Amount (less
any Exercise Expenses) is positive. If the Cash Settlement Amount (less any Exercise
Expenses) is positive, all Certificates shall be deemed to have been automatically
exercised at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date is not a
Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day. The Cash Settlement Amount
less the Exercise Expenses in respect of the Certificates shall be paid in the manner set
out in Condition 4(c) below. In the event the Cash Settlement Amount (less any Exercise
Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall be deemed to have expired at 10:00 a.m.
(Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the
immediately preceding Business Day, and Certificate Holders shall not be entitled to
receive any payment from the Issuer in respect of the Certificates.

Settlement. In respect of Certificates which are automatically exercised in accordance with
Condition 4(b), the Issuer will pay to the relevant Certificate Holder the Cash Settlement
Amount (if any) in the Settlement Currency. The aggregate Cash Settlement Amount (less
any Exercise Expenses) shall be despatched as soon as practicable and no later than five
Settlement Business Days (as defined in the relevant Supplemental Listing Document and
subject to extension upon the occurrence of a Settlement Disruption Event (as defined
below)) following the Expiry Date by way of crossed cheque or other payment in
immediately available funds drawn in favour of the Certificate Holder only (or, in the case
of joint Certificate Holders, the first-named Certificate Holder) appearing in the records
maintained by CDP. Any payment made pursuant to this Condition 4(c) shall be delivered
at the risk and expense of the Certificate Holder and posted to the Certificate Holder's
address appearing in the records maintained by CDP (or, in the case of joint Certificate
Holders, to the address of the first-named Certificate Holder appearing in the records
maintained by CDP). If the Cash Settlement Amount is equal to or less than the determined
Exercise Expenses, no amount is payable.

If the Issuer determines, in its sole discretion, that on any Settlement Business Day during
the period of five Settlement Business Days following the Expiry Date a Settlement
Disruption Event has occurred, such Settlement Business Day shall be postponed to the
next Settlement Business Day on which the Issuer determines that the Settlement
Disruption Event is no longer subsisting and such period shall be extended accordingly,
provided that the Issuer and/or the Guarantor shall make their best endeavours to
implement remedies as soon as reasonably practicable to eliminate the impact of the
Settlement Disruption Event on its/their payment obligations under the Certificates and/or
the Guarantee.
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(d)

()

“Settlement Disruption Event” means the occurrence or existence of any malicious action
or attempt initiated to steal, expose, alter, disable or destroy information through
unauthorised access to, or maintenance or use of, the Computer Systems of the Issuer,
the Guarantor, the Calculation Agent, their respective affiliates (the “SG Group”), their IT
service providers, by (and without limitation) the use of malware, ransomware, phishing,
denial or disruption of service or cryptojacking or any unauthorized entry, removal,
reproduction, transmission, deletion, disclosure or modification preventing the Issuer, the
Guarantor and/or the Calculation Agent to perform their obligations under the Certificates,
and notwithstanding the implementation of processes, required, as the case may be, by
the laws and regulations applicable to the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Calculation Agent and
their affiliates, or their IT service providers to improve their resilience to these actions and
attempts.

“Computer System” means all the computer resources including, in particular: hardware,
software packages, software, databases and peripherals, equipment, networks, electronic
installations for storing computer data, including Data. The Computer System shall be
understood to be that which (i) belongs to the SG Group and/or (ii) is rented, operated or
legally held by the SG Group under a contract with the holder of the rights to the said
system and/or (iii) is operated on behalf of the SG Group by a third party within the scope
of a contractual relationship and/or (iv) is made available to the SG Group under a contract
within the framework of a shared system (in particular cloud computing).

“Data” means any digital information, stored or used by the Computer System, including
confidential data.

CDP not liable. CDP shall not be liable to any Certificate Holder with respect to any action
taken or omitted to be taken by the Issuer or the Warrant Agent in connection with the
exercise of the Certificates or otherwise pursuant to or in connection with these Conditions.

Business Day. In these Conditions, a “Business Day” shall be a day on which the SGX-
ST is open for dealings in Singapore during its normal trading hours and banks are open
for business in Singapore.

Warrant Agent

(@)

(b)

Warrant Agent. The Issuer reserves the right, subject to the appointment of a successor,
at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Warrant Agent and to appoint
another Warrant Agent provided that it will at all times maintain a Warrant Agent which, so
long as the Certificates are listed on the SGX-ST, shall be in Singapore. Notice of any such
termination or appointment and of any change in the specified office of the Warrant Agent
will be given to the Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 9.

Agent of Issuer. The Warrant Agent will be acting as agent of the Issuer and will not assume
any obligation or duty to or any relationship of agency or trust for the Certificate Holders.
All determinations and calculations by the Warrant Agent under these Conditions shall
(save in the case of manifest error) be final and binding on the Issuer and the Certificate
Holders.

Adjustments

(@)

Potential Adjustment Event. Following the declaration by a Company of the terms of any
Potential Adjustment Event (as defined below), the Issuer will determine whether such
Potential Adjustment Event has a dilutive or concentrative or other effect on the theoretical
value of the Underlying Stock and, if so, will (i) make the corresponding adjustment, if any,
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(b)

()

to any one or more of the Conditions as the Issuer determines appropriate to account for
that dilutive or concentrative or other effect, and (ii) determine the effective date of that
adjustment. The Issuer may, but need not, determine the appropriate adjustment by
reference to the adjustment in respect of such Potential Adjustment Event made by an
exchange on which options or futures contracts on the Underlying Stock are traded.

Definitions. “Potential Adjustment Event” means any of the following:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

(Vi)

(Vi)

a subdivision, consolidation, reclassification or other restructuring of the
Underlying Stock (excluding a Merger Event) or a free distribution or dividend of
any such Underlying Stock to existing holders by way of bonus, capitalisation or
similar issue;

a distribution or dividend to existing holders of the Underlying Stock of (1) such
Underlying Stock, or (2) other share capital or securities granting the right to
payment of dividends and/or the proceeds of liquidation of the Company equally
or proportionately with such payments to holders of such Underlying Stock, or (3)
share capital or other securities of another issuer acquired by the Company as a
result of a “spin-off” or other similar transaction, or (4) any other type of securities,
rights or warrants or other assets, in any case for payment (in cash or otherwise)
at less than the prevailing market price as determined by the Issuer;

an extraordinary dividend,;
a call by the Company in respect of the Underlying Stock that is not fully paid;

a repurchase by the Company of the Underlying Stock whether out of profits or
capital and whether the consideration for such repurchase is cash, securities or
otherwise;

with respect to a Company an event that results in any shareholder rights pursuant
to a shareholder rights agreement or other plan or arrangement of the type
commonly referred to as a “poison pill” being distributed, or becoming separated
from shares of common stock or other shares of the capital stock of such Company
(provided that any adjustment effected as a result of such an event shall be
readjusted upon any redemption of such rights); or

any other event that may have, in the opinion of the Issuer, a dilutive or
concentrative or other effect on the theoretical value of the Underlying Stock.

Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation and Insolvency. If a Merger Event, Tender
Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency occurs in relation to the Underlying Stock, the Issuer
may take any action described below:

(i)

(i)

determine the appropriate adjustment, if any, to be made to any one or more of the
Conditions to account for the Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or
Insolvency, as the case may be, and determine the effective date of that
adjustment. The Issuer may, but need not, determine the appropriate adjustment
by reference to the adjustment in respect of the Merger Event, Tender Offer,
Nationalisation or Insolvency made by an options exchange to options on the
Underlying Stock traded on that options exchange;

cancel the Certificates by giving notice to the Certificate Holders in accordance
with Condition 9. If the Certificates are so cancelled, the Issuer will pay an amount
to each Certificate Holder in respect of each Certificate held by such Certificate
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(d)

Holder which amount shall be the fair market value of a Certificate taking into
account the Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency, as the case
may be, less the cost to the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates of unwinding any
underlying related hedging arrangements, all as determined by the Issuer in its
reasonable discretion. Payment will be made in such manner as shall be notified
to the Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 9; or

(iii) following any adjustment to the settlement terms of options on the Underlying
Stock on such exchange(s) or trading system(s) or quotation system(s) as the
Issuer in its reasonable discretion shall select (the “Option Reference Source”)
make a corresponding adjustment to any one or more of the Conditions, which
adjustment will be effective as of the date determined by the Issuer to be the
effective date of the corresponding adjustment made by the Option Reference
Source. If options on the Underlying Stock are not traded on the Option Reference
Source, the Issuer will make such adjustment, if any, to any one or more of the
Conditions as the Issuer determines appropriate, with reference to the rules and
precedents (if any) set by the Option Reference Source, to account for the Merger
Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency, as the case may be, that in the
determination of the Issuer would have given rise to an adjustment by the Option
Reference Source if such options were so traded.

Once the Issuer determines that its proposed course of action in connection with a Merger
Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency, it shall give notice to the Certificate
Holders in accordance with Condition 9 stating the occurrence of the Merger Event, Tender
Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency, as the case may be, giving details thereof and the
action proposed to be taken in relation thereto. Certificate Holders should be aware that
due to the nature of such events, the Issuer will not make an immediate determination of
its proposed course of action or adjustment upon the announcement or occurrence of a
Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency.

Definitions. “Insolvency” means that by reason of the voluntary or involuntary liquidation,
bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution or winding-up of or any analogous proceeding affecting
a Company (i) all the Underlying Stock of that Company is required to be transferred to a
trustee, liquidator or other similar official or (ii) holders of the Underlying Stock of that
Company become legally prohibited from transferring them. “Merger Date” means the
closing date of a Merger Event or, where a closing date cannot be determined under the
local law applicable to such Merger Event, such other date as determined by the Issuer.
“Merger Event” means, in respect of the Underlying Stock, any (i) reclassification or
change of such Underlying Stock that results in a transfer of or an irrevocable commitment
to transfer all of such Underlying Stock outstanding to another entity or person, (i)
consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange of a Company with or into
another entity or person (other than a consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding
share exchange in which such Company is the continuing entity and which does not result
in reclassification or change of all of such Underlying Stock outstanding), (iii) takeover
offer, exchange offer, solicitation, proposal or other event by any entity or person to
purchase or otherwise obtain 100 per cent. of the outstanding Underlying Stock of the
Company that results in a transfer of or an irrevocable commitment to transfer all such
Underlying Stock (other than such Underlying Stock owned or controlled by such other
entity or person), or (iv) consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange
of the Company or its subsidiaries with or into another entity in which the Company is the
continuing entity and which does not result in a reclassification or change of all such
Underlying Stock outstanding but results in the outstanding Underlying Stock (other than
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Underlying Stock owned or controlled by such other entity) immediately prior to such event
collectively representing less than 50 per cent. of the outstanding Underlying Stock
immediately following such event, in each case if the Merger Date is on or before the
Valuation Date. “Nationalisation” means that all the Underlying Stock or all or substantially
all of the assets of a Company are nationalised, expropriated or are otherwise required to
be transferred to any governmental agency, authority, entity or instrumentality thereof.
“Tender Offer” means a takeover offer, tender offer, exchange offer, solicitation, proposal
or other event by any entity or person that results in such entity or person purchasing, or
otherwise obtaining or having the right to obtain, by conversion or other means, greater
than 10 per cent. and less than 100 per cent. of the outstanding voting shares of the
Company, as determined by the Issuer, based upon the making of filings with governmental
or self-regulatory agencies or such other information as the Issuer deems relevant.

(e) Subdivision or Consolidation of the Certificates. The Issuer reserves the right to subdivide
or consolidate the Certificates, provided that such adjustment is considered by the Issuer
not to be materially prejudicial to the Certificate Holders generally (without considering the
circumstances of any individual Certificate Holder or the tax or other consequences of such
adjustment or amendment in any particular jurisdiction) and subject to the approval of the
SGX-ST.

® Other Adjustments. Except as provided in this Condition 6 and Conditions 10 and 12,
adjustments will not be made in any other circumstances, subject to the right reserved by
the Issuer (such right to be exercised in the Issuer's sole discretion and without any
obligation whatsoever) to make such adjustments and amendments as it believes
appropriate in circumstances where an event or events occur which it believes in its sole
discretion (and notwithstanding any prior adjustment made pursuant to the above) should,
in the context of the issue of the Certificates and the obligations of the Issuer, give rise to
such adjustment or, as the case may be, amendment provided that such adjustment or, as
the case may be, amendment is considered by the Issuer not to be materially prejudicial to
the Certificate Holders generally (without considering the circumstances of any individual
Certificate Holder or the tax or other consequences of such adjustment or amendment in
any particular jurisdiction).

(9) Notice of Adjustments. All determinations made by the Issuer pursuant hereto will be
conclusive and binding on the Certificate Holders. The Issuer will give, or procure that there
is given, notice as soon as practicable of any adjustment and of the date from which such
adjustment is effective by publication in accordance with Condition 9. For the avoidance of
doubt, no notice will be given if the Issuer determines that adjustments will not be made.

BA. US withholding tax implications on the Payment

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Conditions, in no event will the Issuer or the Guarantor
be required to pay any additional amounts in respect of the Certificates for, or on account of, any withholding
or deduction (i) required pursuant to an agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “US Code”), or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471
through 1474 of the US Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, or any official interpretations
thereof, or any law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto, (i) imposed pursuant to the
Section 871(m) Regulations (“Section 871(m) Withholding”) or (iii) imposed by any other law of the United
States. In addition, in determining the amount of Section 871(m) Withholding imposed on any payments on
the Certificates, the Issuer shall be entitled to withhold on any "dividend equivalent" (as defined for purposes
of Section 871(m) of the US Code) at the highest rate applicable to such payments regardless of any
exemption from, or reduction in, such withholding otherwise available under applicable law.
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With respect to Specified Warrants that provide for net dividend reinvestment in respect of either
an underlying U.S. security (i.e. a security that pays U.S. source dividends) or an index that includes U.S.
securities, all payments on Certificates that reference such U.S. securities or an index that includes U.S.
securities may be calculated by reference to dividends on such U.S. securities that are reinvested at a rate
of 70%. In such case, in calculating the relevant payment amount, the holder will be deemed to receive,
and the Issuer or the Guarantor will be deemed to withhold, 30% of any dividend equivalent payments (as
defined in Section 871(m) of the Code) in respect of the relevant U.S. securities. The Issuer or the Guarantor
will not pay any additional amounts to the holder on account of the Section 871(m) amount deemed
withheld.

For the purpose of this Condition:

“Section 871(m) Regulations” means the U.S. Treasury regulations issued under Section 871(m)
of the Code.

“Specified Warrants” means, subject to special rules from 2017 through 2026 set out in Notice
2024-44 (the Notice), Warrants issued on or after 1 January 2017 that substantially replicate the economic
performance of one or more U.S. underlying equities as determined by the Issuer on the date for such
Warrants as of which the expected delta of the product is determined by the Issuer, based on tests set out
in the applicable Section 871(m) Regulations, such that the Warrants are subject to withholding under the
Section 871(m) Regulations.

7. Purchases

The Issuer, the Guarantor or any of their respective subsidiaries may at any time purchase
Certificates at any price in the open market or by tender or by private treaty. Any Certificates so purchased
may be held or resold or surrendered for cancellation.

8. Meetings of Certificate Holders; Modification

€) Meetings of Certificate Holders. The Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent
Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings of the Certificate Holders to
consider any matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary
Resolution (as defined in the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent
Agreement) of a modification of the provisions of the Certificates or of the Master Warrant
Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement.

At least 21 days’ notice (exclusive of the day on which the notice is given and of the day
on which the meeting is held) specifying the date, time and place of the meeting shall be
given to the Certificate Holders.

Such a meeting may be convened by the Issuer or by Certificate Holders holding not less
than ten per cent. of the Certificates for the time being remaining unexercised. The quorum
at any such meeting for passing an Extraordinary Resolution will be two or more persons
holding or representing not less than 25 per cent. of the Certificates for the time being
remaining unexercised, or at any adjourned meeting, two or more persons being or
representing Certificate Holders whatever the number of Certificates so held or
represented.

A resolution will be an Extraordinary Resolution when it has been passed at a duly
convened meeting by not less than three-quarters of the votes cast by such Certificate
Holders who, being entitled to do so, vote in person or by proxy.
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An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the Certificate Holders shall be
binding on all the Certificate Holders whether or not they are present at the meeting.
Resolutions can be passed in writing if passed unanimously.

(b) Modification. The Issuer may, without the consent of the Certificate Holders, effect (i) any
modification of the provisions of the Certificates or the Master Instrument which is not
materially prejudicial to the interests of the Certificate Holders or (ii) any modification of the
provisions of the Certificates or the Master Instrument which is of a formal, minor or
technical nature, which is made to correct an obvious error or which is necessary in order
to comply with mandatory provisions of Singapore law. Any such modification shall be
binding on the Certificate Holders and shall be notified to them by the Warrant Agent before
the date such modification becomes effective or as soon as practicable thereafter in
accordance with Condition 9.

9. Notices

(a) Documents. All cheques and other documents required or permitted by these Conditions
to be sent to a Certificate Holder or to which a Certificate Holder is entitled or which the
Issuer shall have agreed to deliver to a Certificate Holder may be delivered by hand or sent
by post addressed to the Certificate Holder at his address appearing in the records
maintained by CDP or, in the case of joint Certificate Holders, addressed to the joint holder
first named at his address appearing in the records maintained by CDP, and airmail post
shall be used if that address is not in Singapore. All documents delivered or sent in
accordance with this paragraph shall be delivered or sent at the risk of the relevant
Certificate Holder.

(b) Notices. All notices to Certificate Holders will be validly given if published in English on the
web-site of the SGX-ST. Such notices shall be deemed to have been given on the date of
the first such publication. If publication on the web-site of the SGX-ST is not practicable,
notice will be given in such other manner as the Issuer may determine. The Issuer shall, at
least one month prior to the expiry of any Certificate, give notice of the date of expiry of
such Certificate in the manner prescribed above.

10. Liquidation

In the event of a liquidation or dissolution of the Company or the appointment of a liquidator
(including a provisional liquidator) or receiver or judicial manager or trustee or administrator or analogous
person under Singapore or other applicable law in respect of the whole or substantially the whole of its
undertaking, property or assets, all unexercised Certificates will lapse and shall cease to be valid for any
purpose, in the case of voluntary liquidation, on the effective date of the relevant resolution and, in the case
of an involuntary liquidation or dissolution, on the date of the relevant court order or, in the case of the
appointment of a liquidator (including a provisional liquidator) or receiver or judicial manager or trustee or
administrator or analogous person under Singapore or other applicable law in respect of the whole or
substantially the whole of its undertaking, property or assets, on the date when such appointment is
effective but subject (in any such case) to any contrary mandatory requirement of law. In the event of the
voluntary liquidation of the Company, the Issuer shall make such adjustments or amendments as it
reasonably believes are appropriate in the circumstances.

11. Further Issues

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time, without the consent of the Certificate Holders, to
create and issue further certificates so as to form a single series with the Certificates, subject to the approval
of the SGX-ST.

36



12. Delisting

(@)

(b)

Delisting. If at any time, the Underlying Stock ceases to be listed on the Relevant Stock
Exchange, the Issuer shall give effect to these Conditions in such manner and make such
adjustments and amendments to the rights attaching to the Certificates as it shall, in its
absolute discretion, consider appropriate to ensure, so far as it is reasonably able to do so,
that the interests of the Certificate Holders generally are not materially prejudiced as a
consequence of such delisting (without considering the individual circumstances of any
Certificate Holder or the tax or other consequences that may result in any particular
jurisdiction).

Issuer's Determination. The Issuer shall determine, in its absolute discretion, any
adjustment or amendment and its determination shall be conclusive and binding on the
Certificate Holders save in the case of manifest error. Notice of any adjustments or
amendments shall be given to the Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 9 as
soon as practicable after they are determined.

13. Early Termination

(@)

Early Termination for lllegality and Force Majeure, etc. If the Issuer determines that a
Regulatory Event (as defined below) has occurred and, for reasons beyond its control, the
performance of its obligations under the Certificates has become illegal or impractical in
whole or in part for any reason, or the Issuer determines that, for reasons beyond its
control, it is no longer legal or practical for it to maintain its hedging arrangements with
respect to the Certificates for any reason, the Issuer may in its discretion and without
obligation terminate the Certificates early in accordance with Condition 13(e).

Should any one or more of the provisions contained in the Conditions be or become invalid,
the validity of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected thereby.

For the purposes of this Condition:

“Regulatory Event” means, following the occurrence of a Change in Law (as defined
below) with respect to the Issuer and/or Societe Generale as Guarantor or in any other
capacity (including without limitation as hedging counterparty of the Issuer, market maker
of the Certificates or direct or indirect shareholder or sponsor of the Issuer) or any of its
affiliates involved in the issuer of the Certificates (hereafter the “Relevant Affiliates” and
each of the Issuer, Societe Generale and the Relevant Affiliates, a “Relevant Entity”) that,
after the Certificates have been issued, (i) any Relevant Entity would incur a materially
increased (as compared with circumstances existing prior to such event) amount of tax,
duty, liability, penalty, expense, fee, cost or regulatory capital charge however defined or
collateral requirements for performing its obligations under the Certificates or hedging the
Issuer’s obligations under the Certificates, including, without limitation, due to clearing
requirements of, or the absence of, clearing of the transactions entered into in connection
with the issue of, or hedging the Issuer’s obligation under, the Certificates, (ii) it is or will
become for any Relevant Entity impracticable, impossible (in each case, after using
commercially reasonable efforts), unlawful, illegal or otherwise prohibited or contrary, in
whole or in part, under any law, regulation, rule, judgement, order or directive of any
governmental, administrative or judicial authority, or power, applicable to such Relevant
Entity (a) to hold, acquire, issue, reissue, substitute, maintain, settle, or as the case may
be, guarantee, the Certificates, (b) to acquire, hold, sponsor or dispose of any asset(s) (or
any interest thereof) of any other transaction(s) such Relevant Entity may use in connection
with the issue of the Certificates or to hedge the Issuer’s obligations under the Certificates,
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(b)

()

(c) to perform obligations in connection with, the Certificates or any contractual
arrangement entered into between the Issuer and Societe Generale or any Relevant
Affiliate (including without limitation to hedge the Issuer’s obligations under the Certificates)
or (d) to hold, acquire, maintain, increase, substitute or redeem all or a substantial part of
its direct or indirect shareholding in the Issuer’s capital or the capital of any Relevant
Affiliate or to directly or indirectly sponsor the Issuer or any Relevant Affiliate, or (iii) there
is or may be a material adverse effect on a Relevant Entity in connection with the issue of
the Certificates.

“Change in law” means (i) the adoption, enactment, promulgation, execution or ratification
of any applicable new law, regulation or rule (including, without limitation, any applicable
tax law, regulation or rule) after the Certificates have been issued, (ii) the implementation
or application of any applicable law, regulation or rule (including, without limitation, any
applicable tax law, regulation or rule) already in force when the Certificates have been
issued but in respect of which the manner of its implementation or application was not
known or unclear at the time, or (iii) the change of any applicable law, regulation or rule
existing when the Certificates are issued, or the change in the interpretation or application
or practice relating thereto, existing when the Certificates are issued of any applicable law,
regulation or rule, by any competent court, tribunal, regulatory authority or any other entity
exercising executive, legislative, judicial, taxing, regulatory or administrative powers or
functions of or pertaining to government (including any additional or alternative court,
tribunal, authority or entity, to that existing when the Certificates are issued).

Early Termination for Holding Limit Event. The Issuer may in its discretion and without
obligation terminate the Certificates early in accordance with Condition 13(e) where a
Holding Limit Event (as defined below) occurs.

For the purposes of this Condition:

“Holding Limit Event” means, assuming the investor is the Issuer and/or any of its
affiliates, the Issuer together with its affiliates, in aggregate hold, an interest in the
Underlying Stock, constituting or likely to constitute (directly or indirectly) ownership,
control or the power to vote a percentage of any class of voting securities of the Underlying
Stock, of the Underlying Stock in excess of a percentage permitted or advisable, as
determined by the Issuer, for the purpose of its compliance with the Bank Holding Company
Act of 1956 as amended by Section 619 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (the Volcker Rule), including any requests, regulations, rules,
guidelines or directives made by the relevant governmental authority under, or issued by
the relevant governmental authority in connection with, such statutes.

Early Termination for Hedging Disruption. If the Issuer or any of its affiliates is, following
commercially reasonable efforts, not in the position (i) to enter, re-enter, replace, maintain,
liquidate, acquire or dispose of any Hedge Positions (as defined below) or (ii) to freely
realize, recover, receive, repatriate, remit, regain or transfer the proceeds of any Hedge
Position (where either (i) or (ii) shall constitute a "Hedging Disruption"), the Issuer may
terminate the Certificates early in accordance with Condition 13(e) provided that the
intrinsic value on the previous trading day of the relevant Certificate is at or above the Issue
Price. The Issuer’s decision on whether a Hedging Disruption has occurred is final and
conclusive. For the avoidance of doubt, Hedging Disruptions shall include the scenario
where any Hedge Position cannot be maintained up to the amount necessary to cover all
of the Issuer’s obligations under the Certificates.

38



For the purposes hereof, “Hedge Positions” means any one or more commercially
reasonable (i) positions (including long or short positions) or contracts in, or relating to,
securities, options, futures, other derivatives contracts or foreign exchange, (ii) stock loan
or borrowing transactions or (iii) other instruments, contracts, transactions or arrangements
(howsoever described) that the Issuer or any of its affiliates determines necessary to
hedge, individually or on a portfolio basis, any risk (including, without limitation, market risk,
price risk, foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk) in relation to the assumption and
fulfilment of the Issuer’s obligations under the Certificates.

(d) Early Termination for other reasons. The Issuer reserves the right (such right to be
exercised in the Issuer's sole and unfettered discretion and without any obligation
whatsoever) to terminate the Certificates in accordance with Condition 13(e) where an
event or events occur which it believes in its sole discretion should, in the context of the
issue of the Certificates and the obligations of the Issuer, give rise to such termination
provided that such termination (i) is considered by the Issuer not to be materially prejudicial
to the interests of Certificate Holders generally (without considering the circumstances of
any individual Certificate Holder or the tax or other consequences of such termination in
any particular jurisdiction); or (ii) is otherwise considered by the Issuer to be appropriate
and such termination is approved by the SGX-ST.

(e) Termination. If the Issuer terminates the Certificates early, the Issuer will give notice to the
Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 9. The Issuer will, if and to the extent
permitted by applicable law, pay an amount to each Certificate Holder in respect of each
Certificate held by such holder equal to the fair market value of a Certificate
notwithstanding such illegality, impracticality or the relevant event less the cost to the
Issuer of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements, all as determined by
the Issuer in its sole and absolute discretion. The determination of the fair market value
may deviate from the determination of the Cash Settlement Amount under different
scenarios, including but not limited to, where (i) the Daily Reset (as defined in the relevant
Supplemental Listing Document) mechanism is suspended and/or (ii) the Final Reference
Level is determined based on the closing price of the Underlying Stock on multiple
Underlying Stock Business Days or Exchange Business Days, as the case may be.
Payment will be made in such manner as shall be notified to the Certificate Holders in
accordance with Condition 9.

14. Substitution of the Issuer

The Issuer may be replaced by the Guarantor or any subsidiary of the Guarantor as principal obligor
in respect of the Certificates without the consent of the relevant Certificate Holders. If the Issuer determines
that it shall be replaced by the Guarantor or any subsidiary of the Guarantor (the “Substituted Obligor”),
it shall give at least 90 days’ notice (exclusive of the day on which the notice is given and of the day on
which the substitution is effected) specifying the date of the substitution, in accordance with Condition 9, to
the Certificate Holders of such event and, immediately on the expiry of such notice, the Substituted Obligor
shall become the principal obligor in place of the Issuer and the Certificate Holders shall thereupon cease
to have any rights or claims whatsoever against the Issuer.

Upon any such substitution, all references to the Issuer in the Conditions and all agreements
relating to the Certificates will be to the Substituted Obligor and the Certificates will be modified as required,
and the Certificate Holders will be notified of the modified terms and conditions of such Certificates in
accordance with Condition 9.
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For the purposes of this Condition, it is expressly agreed that by subscribing to, acquiring or
otherwise purchasing or holding the Certificates, the Certificate Holders are expressly deemed to have
consented to the substitution of the Issuer by the Substituted Obligor and to the release of the Issuer from
any and all obligations in respect of the Certificates and all agreements relating thereto and are expressly
deemed to have accepted such substitution and the consequences thereof.

15. Governing Law

The Certificates, the Master Instrument and the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent
Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with Singapore law. The Issuer and the
Guarantor and each Certificate Holder (by its purchase of the Certificates) shall be deemed to have
submitted for all purposes in connection with the Certificates, the Master Instrument and the Master Warrant
Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of Singapore.
The Guarantee shall be governed by and construed in accordance with Singapore law.

16. Prescription

Claims against the Issuer for payment of any amount in respect of the Certificates will become void
unless made within six years of the Expiry Date and, thereafter, any sums payable in respect of such
Certificates shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Issuer.

17. Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 2001 of Singapore

Unless otherwise provided in the Global Warrant, the Master Instrument and the Master Warrant
Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement, a person who is not a party to any contracts made pursuant
to the Global Warrant, the Master Instrument and the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent
Agreement has no rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 2001 of Singapore to enforce
any terms of such contracts. Except as expressly provided herein, the consent of any third party is not
required for any subsequent agreement by the parties hereto to amend or vary (including any release or
compromise of any liability) or terminate such contracts.

40



SUMMARY OF THE ISSUE

The following is a summary of the issue and should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified by
reference to, the other information set out in this document and the Base Listing Document. Terms used in
this Summary are defined in the Conditions.

Issuer: SG Issuer

Company: Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

The Certificates: European Style Cash Settled Long Certificates relating to the Underlying
Stock

Number: 25,000,000 Certificates

Form: The Certificates will be issued subject to, and with the benefit of, a master

instrument by way of deed poll dated 13 June 2025 (the “Master
Instrument”) and executed by the Issuer and the Guarantor and a master
warrant agent agreement dated 29 May 2017 (the “Master Warrant Agent
Agreement”) and made between the Issuer, the Guarantor and the
Warrant Agent (as amended and/or supplemented from time to time).

Cash Settlement Amount:  In respect of each Certificate, is the amount (if positive) equal to:

Notional Amount per Certificate x Closing Level

Denominations: Certificates are represented by a global warrant in respect of all the
Certificates.
Exercise: The Certificates may only be exercised on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry

Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day, in
a Board Lot or integral multiples thereof. Certificate Holders will not be
required to deliver an exercise notice. If the Cash Settlement Amount (less
any Exercise Expenses) is positive, all Certificates will be deemed to have
been automatically exercised at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry
Date or if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding
Business Day. The Cash Settlement Amount less the Exercise Expenses
in respect of the Certificates shall be paid in the manner set out in
Condition 4(c) of the Conditions. In the event the Cash Settlement Amount
(less any Exercise Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall be deemed to
have expired at 10:00 a.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the
Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business
Day, and Certificate Holders shall not be entitled to receive any payment
from the Issuer in respect of the Certificates.

Exercise and Trading SGD
Currency:
Board Lot: 100 Certificates
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Transfers of Certificates: Certificates may only be transferred in Board Lots (or integral multiples
thereof). All transfers in Certificates, in the open market or otherwise, must
be effected through a securities account with CDP. Title will pass upon
registration of the transfer in the records of CDP.

Listing: Application has been made to the SGX-ST for permission to deal in and
for quotation of the Certificates and the SGX-ST has agreed in principle to
grant permission to deal in and for quotation of the Certificates. Issue of
the Certificates is conditional on such listing being granted. It is expected
that dealings in the Certificates on the SGX-ST will commence on or about
11 March 2026.

Governing Law: The laws of Singapore

Warrant Agent: The Central Depository (Pte) Limited
4 Shenton Way
#02-01 SGX Centre 2
Singapore 068807

Further Issues: Further issues which will form a single series with the Certificates will be
permitted, subject to the approval of the SGX-ST.

The above summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the detailed information appearing
elsewhere in this document and the Base Listing Document.
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THE EUROPEAN STYLE CASH SETTLED LONG CERTIFICATES ON
SINGLE EQUITIES

What are European Style Cash Settled Long Certificates on Single Equities?

European style cash settled long certificates on single equities (the “Certificates”) are structured products
relating to the Underlying Stock and the return on a Certificate is linked to the performance of the Leverage
Strategy.

A) Cash Settlement Amount Payable upon the Exercise of the Certificates at Expiry

Upon the exercise of the Certificates at expiry, the Certificate Holders would be paid a Cash Settlement
Amount in respect of each Certificate.

The Cash Settlement Amount, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the Settlement
Currency equal to the Closing Level multiplied by the Notional Amount per Certificate.

The Closing Level, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the Settlement Currency
equal to (1) divided by (2) less (3) subject to any adjustments such as (4), where:

(1) is the Final Reference Level multiplied by the Final Exchange Rate;
(2) is the Initial Reference Level multiplied by the Initial Exchange Rate;
3) is the Strike Level; and

(4) is the Hedging Fee Factor.

If the Cash Settlement Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is positive, all Certificates shall be deemed
to have been automatically exercised and investors will receive a Cash Settlement Amount. If the Cash
Settlement Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall be deemed to have expired.
Please refer to the section headed “Terms and Conditions of the European Style Cash Settled Long/Short
Certificates on Single Equities” for further details on the calculation of the Cash Settlement Amount.

The Certificates are only suitable for investors who believe that the price of the Underlying Stock will
increase and are seeking short-term leveraged exposure to the Underlying Stock.

B) Trading the Certificates before Expiry

If the Certificate Holders want to cash out their investments in the Certificates before the expiry of the
Certificates, they may sell the Certificates in the secondary market during the life of the Certificates, and
would be subject to the following fees and charges:

0] For Certificate Holders who trade the Certificates intraday: shall pay normal transaction and
brokerage fees for the trading of the Certificates on the SGX-ST, and may be required to pay stamp
taxes or other documentary charges in accordance with the laws and practices of the country where
the Certificates are transferred; and

(i) For Certificate Holders who hold the Certificates overnight: in addition to the normal transaction
and brokerage fees and applicable stamp taxes, would also be required to bear the Management
Fee and Gap Premium as well as certain costs embedded within the Leverage Strategy including
the Funding Cost and Rebalancing Cost.
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lllustration of the Calculation of Hedging Fee Factor

Hedging Fee = Product of the Daily Fees
Factor
Daily Management Fee Adjustment
1 - Management Fee x ACT (t-1;t) / 360
Daily Fees = X
Daily Gap Premium Adjustment
1 — Gap Premium (t-1) x ACT (t-1;t) / 360

lllustration of the Calculation of Cash Settlement Amount

Cash Settlement Amount = Final Value of Certificates — Strike Level (zero)

t’=0 t=1 t=2 =i
Leverage Leverage
Value of ) Leverage . g . g .
o Notional . Daily X | Strategy Daily X ... Strategy Daily
Certificates Strategy daily X . . X
Amount " Fees daily Fees Daily Fees
performance
performance performance
=0 Product of the daily Leverage Strategy Product of the Daily Fees (Hedging Fee
Value of - Performance « Factor)
Certificates Notional L Strat L Strat ) .
otiona eyerage rategy eyerage rategy Daily Fees « Daily Fees
Amount daily performance daily performance
t=0 i i
Final Value Final Reference Level x Final Exchange Rate
of = | Notional | yx + X Hedging Fee Factor
ifi Amount
Certificates Initial Reference Level x Initial Exchange Rate

lllustration of the applicable fees and charges for an intraday trading scenario

Hedging Fee is implemented overnight in the price of the Certificate. As a consequence, when trading

intraday, investors will not bear any Hedging Fee.

Investors will only support bid/ask costs, which are the difference between the price at which the Designated
Market Maker purchases (bid) and sells (ask) the Certificate at any point of time.

7"t” refers to “Observation Date” which means each Exchange Business Day (subject to Market Disruption Event) from (and including)
the Exchange Business Day immediately preceding the Expected Listing Date to the Valuation Date.
8 Leverage Strategy daily performance is computed as the Leverage Strategy Closing Level on Business Day (t) divided by the
Leverage Strategy Closing Level on Business Day (t-1).
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Example of Calculation of Hedging Fee Factor and Cash Settlement Amount

The example is purely hypothetical. We include the example to illustrate how the Certificates work, and you
MUST NOT rely on them as any indication of the actual return or what the payout on the Certificates might
actually be. The example also assumes a product which expires 16 days after listing date, to illustrate the
daily calculation of price, costs and fees from listing date to expiry date.

Assuming an investor purchases the following Certificates at the Issue Price:

Ordinary shares of Oversea-Chinese Banking

Underlying Stock: . o
Corporation Limited

Expected Listing Date: 03/07/2018
Expiry Date: 18/07/2018
Initial Reference Level: 1,000
Initial Exchange Rate: 1

Final Reference Level: 1,200

Final Exchange Rate: 1

Issue Price: 0.50 SGD
Notional Amount per Certificate: 0.50 SGD
Management Fee (p.a.): 0.40%
Gap Premium (p.a.): 15.00%
Strike Level: Zero

Hedging Fee Factor

Hedging Fee Factor on the n'" Exchange Business Day after issuance of Certificate (“HFF (n)”) is calculated
as follows:

HFF(0) = 100%
On Next Calendar Day (assuming it is an Exchange Business Day):

ACT (t—1;0)

ACT (t— 1;t))
360

HFF (1) = HFF (0) x (1 — Management Fee X 360

) X (1 — Gap Premium X

1 1
= 0 — 0 _ — 0 _
HFF (1) = 100% X (1 0.40% X 360) X (1 15.00% X 360)

HFF (1) = 100% x 99.9989% x 99.9583% ~ 99.9572%

Assuming 2" Exchange Business Day falls 3 Calendar Days after 15t Exchange Business Day:

ACT (t—1;0)

ACT (t— 1;t))
360

HFF (2) = HFF (1) x (1 — Management Fee X 360

) X (1 — Gap Premium X
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3 3
= () — 0, - — 0, -
HFF (2) = 99.9572% X (1 0.40% x 360) X (1 15.00% x 360)

HFF (2) =99.9572% x 99.9967% x 99.8750% =~ 99.8289%

The same principle applies to the following Exchange Business Days:

ACT (t—1;t)

HFF (n) = HFF (n — 1) X (1 — Management Fee X 360

) ACT (t—1;t)
X (1 — Gap Premium X ————

360

In this example, the Hedging Fee Factor as of the Valuation Date would be equal to 99.3602% as illustrated
below:

Date HFF

3/7/2018 100.0000%
4/7/2018 99.9572%
5/7/2018 99.9145%
6/7/2018 99.8717%
9/7/2018 99.7436%
10/7/2018 99.7009%
11/7/2018 99.6582%
12/7/2018 99.6156%
13/7/2018 99.5730%
16/7/2018 99.4452%
17/7/2018 99.4027%
18/7/2018 99.3602%

Cash Settlement Amount
In this example, the Closing Level and the Cash Settlement Amount would be computed as follows:

Closing Level = [(Final Reference Level x Final Exchange Rate) / (Initial Reference Level x Initial Exchange
Rate) — Strike Level] x Hedging Fee Factor
=[(1200 x 1) / (1000 x 1) — O] x 99.3602%

=119.23%
Cash Settlement Amount = Closing Level x Notional Amount per Certificate

=119.23% x 0.50 SGD
=0.596 SGD
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lllustration on how returns and losses can occur under different scenarios

The examples are purely hypothetical and do not take fees and charges payable by investors into
consideration. The examples highlight the effect of the Underlying Stock performance on the value of the
Certificates and do not take into account the possible influence of fees, exchange rates, dividends, or any
other market parameters.

1. lllustrative examples

Scenario 1 — Upward Trend

......... Undler lyinge Stock price

— Certificates Value

""""" Unndler lying Stock price

— Cartificates Value

Scenario 3 — Volatile Market

--------- Under ly ing Stock price
— Certificates Value
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. Numerical Examples

Scenario 1 — Upward Trend

Underlying Stock

Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Value at end of day 10,000.0 10,200.0 10,404.0 10,612.1 10,824.3 11,040.8
Accumulated Return 2.00% 4.04% 6.12% 8.24% 10.41%
Value of the Certificates
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%
Price at end of day 0.50 0.55 0.61 0.67 0.73 0.81
Accumulated Return 10.00% 21.00% 33.10% 46.41% 61.05%
Scenario 2 — Downward Trend
Underlying Stock
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return -2.0% -2.0% -2.0% -2.0% -2.0%
Value at end of day 10,000.0 9,800.0 9,604.0 9,411.9 9,223.7 9,039.2
Accumulated Return -2.00% -3.96% -5.88% -7.76% -9.61%
Value of the Certificates
Day O Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return -10.0% -10.0% -10.0% -10.0% -10.0%
Price at end of day 0.50 0.45 0.41 0.36 0.33 0.30
Accumulated Return -10.00% -19.00% -27.10% -34.39% -40.95%
Scenario 3 — Volatile Market
Underlying Stock
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return 2.0% -2.0% 2.0% -2.0% 2.0%
Value at end of day 10,000.0 10,200.0 9,996.0 10,195.9 9,992.0 10,191.8
Accumulated Return 2.00% -0.04% 1.96% -0.08% 1.92%
Value of the Certificates
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily return 10.0% -10.0% 10.0% -10.0% 10.0%
Price at end of day 0.50 0.55 0.50 0.54 0.49 0.54
Accumulated Return 10.00% -1.00% 8.90% -1.99% 7.81%
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Description of Air Bag Mechanism

The Certificates integrate an “Air Bag Mechanism” which is designed to reduce exposure to the Underlying
Stock during extreme market conditions.

When the Air Bag triggers, this is followed by a period which is divided into two sub-periods:

- Observation Period: the price of the Underlying Stock is observed and its minimum price is recorded
(i) during 15 minutes of continuous trading after the Air Bag is triggered, or (ii) until Market Close if
there is less than 15 minutes of continuous trading until Market Close when the Air Bag Mechanism
is triggered; and

- Reset Period: the Leverage Strategy is then reset using the minimum price of the Underlying Stock
during the Observation Period as the New Observed Price. The New Observed Price replaces the
last closing price of the Underlying Stock in order to compute the performance of the Leverage
Strategy.

During the Observation Period and Reset Period, trading of Certificates is suspended for a period of at least
30 minutes of continuous trading after the Air Bag is triggered, and such suspension will be based on
instructions provided by the Issuer to the SGX-ST for suspension of trading. Investors cannot sell or
purchase any Certificates during this period.

For the avoidance of doubt, if the Air Bag Mechanism was triggered more than 60 minutes of continuous
trading before Market Close, trading of Certificates will resume the same trading day after the Reset Period
has elapsed, subject to the SGX-ST's approval to resume trading. If the Air Bag Mechanism was triggered
between 45 minutes and 60 minutes of continuous trading before Market Close, trading of Certificates may
or may not resume the same trading day after the Reset Period has elapsed. If the Air Bag Mechanism was
triggered with only 45 minutes or less of continuous trading before Market Close, trading of Certificates
resumes on the next trading day.

The resumption of trading is subject to the SGX-ST's requirements of at least 15 minutes after the SGX-ST
approves the request from the Issuer to resume trading on the Certificates, rounded to the next quarter of
an hour. The Issuer will provide at least 15 minutes’ notice of the resumption of trading by making an
SGXNET announcement.

With Market Close defined as:

- the Underlying Stock closing time, including the closing auction session, with respect to the
Observation Period; and

- the sooner of (i) the Underlying Stock closing time for continuous trading and (ii) the SGX-ST
closing time, with respect to the Resumption of Trading
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Illustrative examples of the Air Bag Mechanism?®

Scenario 1 — Downward Trend after Air Bag trigger

0% >
Suspension of Trading,of Leveraged Certificates

-10% !

\ NewObserved . . ... ttteee Seemeraa,

-20% ;

\ Price
o \
~a0% 15 Minut

inutes A .

\ Observation Period Reset Period
-50% \
-60% \

-70%
------ Underlying Stock Daily Performance Air Bag trigger
~
~
-80% - [ VI it ey 2 Leveraged Certificates
Leverage Strategy Daily === TS = e e _Trading resumes
B e ——
Performance Leverage Strategy reset
-90% ie : based onthe New . - -
verage Strategy Daily . Without Air Bag Mechanism,
) ; Observed Price L s d
Performance without Air Bag everage Strategy wou
have reached 0
-100%

" The resumption of trading is subject to the SGX-ST’s requirements of at least 15 minutes after the SGX-ST
approves the request from the Issuer to resume trading on the Certificates, rounded to the next quarter of an
hour.

Scenario 2 — Upward Trend after Air Bag trigger

0% >

"""""""" Suspensionof Trading of Leveraged Certificates

-10%

\. SRS S
-20% New Ob d

o \
-40% ;
15 Minutes N .
\ Observation Period ResatPeriod
-50% \

-60% Without Air Bag Mechanism,
Leverage Strategy would
have recovered more
-70% .
Air Bag trigger
------ Underlying Stock Daily Performance\ ~ 9 teg
80% \\‘
-80% e [ em—
Leverage Strategy Daily I . Sintadatein i Leveraged Certificates
Performance Leverage Strategy resst Trading resumes
-90% basedon the New.
Leverage Strategy Daily Observed Price
Performance without Air Bag
-100%

" The resumption of trading is subject to the SGX-ST’s requirements of at least 15 minutes after the SGX-ST
approves the request from the Issuer to resume trading on the Certificates, rounded to the next quarter of an
hour.

? The illustrative examples are not exhaustive.
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Scenarios where the investor may lose the entire value of the investment

The scenarios below are purely hypothetical and do not take fees and charges payable by investors into
consideration. The scenarios highlight cases where the Certificates may lose 100% of their value.

Scenario 1 — Overnight fall of the Underlying Stock

On any Business Day, the opening price of the Underlying Stock may be higher or lower than the closing
price on the previous trading day. The difference between the previous closing price and the opening price
of the Underlying Stock is termed a “gap”. If the opening price of the Underlying Stock is 20% or more below
the previous trading day closing price, the Air Bag Mechanism would only be triggered when the market
opens (including pre-opening session or opening auction, as the case may be) the following trading day,
and the Certificates would lose their entire value in such event.

Underlying Stock Performance




Scenario 2 — Sharp intraday fall of the Underlying Stock

Although the Air Bag Mechanism is designed to reduce the exposure to the Underlying Stock during
extreme market conditions, the Certificate can lose 100% of its value in the event the price of the Underlying
Stock falls by 20% or more within the 15 minutes Observation Period compared to the reference price,
being: (i) if air bag has not been previously triggered on the same day, the previous closing price of the
Underlying Stock, or (ii) if one or more air bag have been previously triggered on the same day, the latest New
Observed Price. The Certificates would lose their entire value in such event.
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Examples and illustrations of adjustments due to certain corporate actions

The examples are purely hypothetical and do not take fees and charges payable by investors into
consideration. The examples highlight the effect of corporate actions on the value of the Certificates and
do not take into account the possible influence of fees, exchange rates, or any other market parameters.

In the case of any corporate action on the Underlying Stock, the Calculation Agent will, as soon as
reasonably practical after it becomes aware of such event, determine whether such corporate action has a
dilutive or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the Underlying Stock, and if so, will (a) calculate
the corresponding adjustment, if any, to be made to the elements relating to the Underlying Stock which
are used to determine any settlement or payment terms under the Certificates and/or adjust at its discretion
any other terms of the Certificates as it determines appropriate to preserve the economic equivalent of the
obligations of the Issuer under the Certificates and (b) determine the effective date of such adjustment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event Observation Date (t) is an ex-date with respect to a corporate
action related to the Underlying Stock, the Calculation Agent may, in its sole and absolute discretion,
replace the Rfactor, with respect to such Observation Date (t) by an amount computed according to the
following generic formula :

Divy + DivExc, — M X R 1

Rfactory = 1 — X
factor; S, Y

This formula is provided for indicative purposes and the Calculation Agent may determine that this formula
is not appropriate for certain corporate actions and may apply a different formula instead.

Such adjustment of Rfactor; would affect the Leveraged Return, the Rebalancing Cost, and the Underlying
Reference Price used to determine the Intraday Restrike Event. The Air Bag Mechanism would not be
triggered if the stock price falls by 15% exclusively because of the dilutive effect of a corporate action.

Where:

DivExc, is the amount received as an Extraordinary Dividend by a holder of existing Shares for each Share
held prior to the Extraordinary Dividend, net of any applicable withholding taxes.

M is the number of new Share(s) (whether a whole or a fraction) per existing Share each holder thereof is
entitled to subscribe or to receive (positive amount) or the number of existing Shares redeemed or canceled
per existing Share (negative amount), as the case may be, resulting from the corporate action.

R is the subscription price per Share (positive amount) or the redemption price per Share (negative amount)
including any dividends or other benefits forgone to be subscribe to or to receive (as applicable), or to
redeem a Share.

1. Stock split

Assuming the Underlying Stock is subject to a 1 to 2 stock split (i.e. 1 new Share for every 1 existing share):
Si—1 = $100

Sy = $51

Div, = $0

DivExc, = $0

M =1 (i.e. 1 new Shares for 1 existing Share)

R = $0 (no subscription price / redemption price)
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=50%

0+0—2x0) 1
]x

Rfactor, = [1 T 100 1+1

As a consequence:

LRi_; = Leverage X (L— 1) =5X (L - 1) =10%

St—1 X Rfactorg 100x50%

Si—1 St_1 X Rfactor; St Adjusted Underlying
Stock Performance

100 50 51 2%

Value of the Certificate (t-1) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance
(excluding any cost and fees)

0.50 0.55 10%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price falls to $42.5, which is
15% below $50, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.

2. Share Consolidation

Assuming the Underlying Stock is subject to a 2 to 1 share consolidation (i.e. 1 Share canceled for every 2
existing Shares):

Se_; = $100

S¢ = $202

Div, = $0

DivExc, = $0

M =-0.5 (i.e. 0.5 Shares canceled for each 1 existing Share)

R = $0 (no subscription price / redemption price)

Rfact _[1 0+0—(—0.5)><0)]>< — 200%
factor; = 100 1+ (=05 7
As a consequence:
= S 1) = 202 )=
LRy = Leverage x (St_1 X Rfactory 1) =5 X (100><200% 1) =5%
Se-1 Si-1 X Rfactor, St Adjusted Underlying
Stock Performance
100 200 202 1%

54



Value of the Certificate (t-1) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance
(excluding any cost and fees)

0.50 0.525 5%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price falls to $170, which is
15% below $200, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.

3. Rights Issues

Assuming there is a rights issue with respect to the Underlying Stock, with a right to receive 1 new Share
for every 2 existing Shares, for a subscription price of $40.

St—1 = $100

St = $84

Div, = $0

DivExc, = $0

R = $40 (i.e. subscription price of $40)

M = 0.5 (i.e. 1 new share for every 2 existing shares)

= 80%

0+0—0.5><40] 1

Rfactor, = [1 - 100 1705

As a consequence:

LR(_; = Leverage X (L— 1) =5 X (L— 1) =25%

St—1 X Rfactorg 100 x 80%

Si—1 St_1 X Rfactor, St Adjusted Underlying
Stock Performance

100 80 84 5%

Value of the Certificate (t-1) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance
(excluding any cost and fees)

0.50 0.625 25%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price falls to $68, which is 15%
below $80, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.

4. Bonus Issues

Assuming there is a bonus issue with respect to the Underlying Stock, where shareholders receive 1 bonus
share for 5 existing shares:

Si_, = $100
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S, = $85
Div, = $0
DivExc; = $0
R=$%0

M = 0.2 (i.e. 1 new share for 5 existing shares)

Rfact _[1 0+0—0.2><0]X 1 _ 83.33%
factor = 100 1+0z2 o007
As a consequence:
_ St _ _ 85 _ _
LRy = Leverage x (St_1 X Rfactory 1) =5 X (100><83.33% 1) = 10%
Se-1 Si-1 X Rfactor, St Adjusted Underlying
Stock Performance
100 83.33 85 2%
Value of the Certificate (t-1) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance
(excluding any cost and fees)
0.50 0.55 10%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price falls to $70.83, which is
15% below $83.33, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.

5. Extraordinary Dividend

Assuming there is an extraordinary dividend of $20 (net of taxes) paid in respect of each stock.

Si—1 = $100
S, = $84
Div, = $0

DivExc, = $20
R =3%0
M=0

= 80%

0+20—0><0] 1

Rfactor, = [1 - 100 X 170

As a consequence:

LR;_;; = Leverage X (;— 1) =5 X ( 8 _ 1) = 25%

St—1 X Rfactorg 100 x 80%
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Si—1 St—1 X Rfactor, S Adjusted Underlying
Stock Performance

100 80 84 5%

Value of the Certificate (t-1) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance
(excluding any cost and fees)

0.50 0.625 25%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price falls to $68, which is 15%
below $80, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THE COMPANY

All information contained in this document regarding the Company, including, without limitation, its financial
information, is derived from publicly available information which appears on the web-site of the SGX-ST at
http://www.sgx.com. The Issuer has not independently verified any of such information.

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC Bank” or the “Company”) was incorporated in
Singapore on 31 October 1932 to carry on business in banking and finance. The Bank is the successor to
Chinese Commercial Bank Ltd, Ho Hong Bank Ltd and the Overseas-Chinese Bank Ltd. OCBC Bank offers
a comprehensive range of banking services and financial solutions in consumer banking, business banking,
international banking, global treasury and investment management. The OCBC Group has diverse
subsidiaries that are involved in financial futures, regional stockbroking, trustee, nominee and custodian
services, property development and hotel management. In August 2001, OCBC Bank acquired Keppel
Capital Holdings Ltd and all its subsidiaries, including Keppel TatLee Bank Ltd, Keppel Securities Pte Ltd
and Keppel TatLee Finance Ltd. On 25 February 2002, OCBC Bank and Keppel TatLee Bank were
operationally and legally integrated. OCBC Bank currently has assets of S$151 billion and a network of
over 370 branches and representative offices in 15 countries and territories including Singapore, Malaysia,
Indonesia, Vietnam, China, Hong Kong SAR, Brunei, Japan, Australia, UK and USA. This network includes
more than 250 branches and offices in Indonesia operated by OCBC Bank's subsidiary, PT Bank NISP.
OCBC Bank and its banking subsidiaries offer a wide range of specialist financial services, from consumer,
corporate, investment, private and transaction banking to global treasury and stockbroking services to meet
the needs of its customers across communities.

The information set out in Appendix | of this document relates to the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December 2025 and has
been extracted and reproduced from an announcement by the Company dated 25 February 2026 in relation
to the same. Further information relating to the Company may be located on the web-site of the SGX-ST at
http://www.sgx.com.
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THE DESIGNATED MARKET MAKER

Societe Generale has been appointed the designated market maker (“DMM?”) for the Certificates. The DMM
will provide competitive buy and sell quotes for the Certificates continuously during the trading hours of the
SGX-ST on the following basis:

(@)

(b)

(©)

Maximum bid and offer spread . () when the best bid price of the Certificate is
S$10 and below: 10 ticks or S%$0.20
whichever is greater; and

(i) when the best bid price of the Certificate is
above S$10: 5% of the best bid price of the
Certificate.

Minimum quantity subject to bid and : 10,000 Certificates
offer spread

Last Trading Day for Market Making : The date falling 5 Business Days immediately
preceding the Expiry Date

In addition, the DMM may not provide a quotation in the following circumstances:

(i)

(i)

(i)
(iv)

v)

(Vi)

(Vi)

(viii)
(ix)
(x)

during the pre-market opening and five minutes following the opening of the SGX-ST on any trading
day;

if the Certificates are valueless (where the Issuer’s bid price is below the minimum bid size for such
securities as prescribed by the SGX-ST);

where the Certificates are suspended from trading for any reason;

market disruption events, including, without limitation, any suspension of or limitation imposed on
trading (including but not limited to unforeseen circumstances such as by reason of movements in
price exceeding limits permitted by the SGX-ST or any act of God, war, riot, public disorder,
explosion, terrorism or otherwise) in the Underlying Stock;

where the Issuer or the DMM faces technical problems affecting the ability of the DMM to provide
bids and offer quotations;

where the ability of the Issuer to source a hedge or unwind an existing hedge, as determined by
the Issuer in good faith, is materially affected by the prevailing market conditions, and the Issuer
informs the SGX-ST of its inability to do so as soon as practicable;

in cases where the Issuer has no Certificates to sell, then the DMM will only provide bid quotations.
The DMM may provide intermittent offer quotations when it has inventory of the Certificates;

if the stock market experiences exceptional price movement and volatility;
when it is a public holiday in Singapore and the SGX-ST is not open for dealings; and

during the suspension of trading of Certificates after an Air Bag Mechanism has been triggered.

The last trading day on which the DMM will provide competitive quotations for the Certificates would be the
fifth Business Day immediately preceding the Expiry Date.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE ISSUER

The information set out in Appendix Il of this document is a reproduction of the Issuer’s condensed interim
financial statements as at and for the six-month period ended 30 June 2025.

The information below sets out the updated information relating to the Issuer and supersedes in its entirety the
section in Appendix 2 of the Base Listing Document entitled “4. Management and Supervision”:

“Pursuant to SG Issuer’s Articles of Association, SG Issuer is managed by a board of directors under the
supervision of a supervisory board. The members of the board of directors as at 12 August 2025 are Yves
Cacclin, Thierry Bodson, Olivier Pelsser, Francois Caralp, Laurent Simonet and Samuel Worobel (each
individually a “Director” and collectively the “Board of Directors”). The members of the supervisory board as
at 12 August 2025 are Peggy Veniant Cottin, Laurent Weil, Emanuele Maiocchi, Faouzi Borgi and Gregory
Claudy. Save for Gregory Claudy who is an independent director, all members of the Board of Directors and
the Supervisory Board hold full-time positions within the Societe Generale Group.

The business address of Yves Cacclin, Thierry Bodson, Olivier Pelsser, Peggy Veniant Cottin and Emanuele
Maiocchi as at 12 August 2025 is 11, avenue Emile Reuter, L-2420 Luxembourg. The business address of
Francois Caralp, Laurent Simonet, Samuel Worobel, Laurent Weil and Faouzi Borgi as at 12 August 2025 is
Tour Societe Generale, 17, Cours Valmy, F-92897 Paris-La Défense 7, France. The business address of
Gregory Claudy as at 12 August 2025 is 225a, rue du Burgknapp, B-6717 Heinstert.”
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE GUARANTOR

The information set out in Appendix IlI of this document is a reproduction of the Guarantor’s consolidated
financial results for the fourth quarter and the year ended 31 December 2025.

On 23 February 2026, the share capital of Societe Generale changed to EUR 939,654,993.75, divided into
751,723,995 ordinary shares with a nominal value of EUR 1.25 each.
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SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL INFORMATION

The information set out herein is supplemental to, and should be read in conjunction with the

information set out in the Base Listing Document.

1.

Save as disclosed in this document and the Base Listing Document, neither the Issuer nor the
Guarantor is involved in any legal or arbitration proceedings (including any proceedings which are
pending or threatened of which the Issuer or the Guarantor is aware) which may have or have had
in the previous 12 months a significant effect on the financial position of the Issuer or the Guarantor
in the context of the issuance of the Certificates.

Settlement of trades done on a normal “ready basis” on the SGX-ST generally take place on the
second Business Day following the transaction. Dealing in the Certificates will take place in Board
Lots in Singapore dollars. For further details on the transfer of Certificates and their exercise, please
refer to the section headed “Summary of the Issue” above.

It is not the current intention of the Issuer to apply for a listing of the Certificates on any stock
exchange other than the SGX-ST.

Save as disclosed in the Base Listing Document and herein, there has been no material adverse
change in the financial position or prospects of the Issuer since 30 June 2025 or the Guarantor
since 31 December 2025, in the context of the issuance of Certificates hereunder.

The following contracts, relating to the issue of the Certificates, have been or will be entered into
by the Issuer and/or the Guarantor and may be material to the issue of the Certificates:

(a) the Guarantee;
(b) the Master Instrument; and
(c) the Master Warrant Agent Agreement.

None of the directors of the Issuer and the Guarantor has any direct or indirect interest in any of
the above contracts.

The reports of the Auditors of the Issuer and the Guarantor were not prepared exclusively for
incorporation into this document.

The Auditors of the Issuer and the Guarantor have no shareholding in the Issuer or the Guarantor
or any of its subsidiaries, nor do they have the right (whether legally enforceable or not) to subscribe
for or to nominate persons to subscribe for securities of the Issuer or the Guarantor or any of its
subsidiaries.

The Certificates are not fully covered by the Underlying Stock held by Issuer or a trustee for and
on behalf of the Issuer. The Issuer has appropriate risk management capabilities to manage the
issue of the Certificates.

Societe Generale, Singapore Branch, currently of 8 Marina Boulevard, #12-01 Marina Bay Financial
Centre Tower 1, Singapore 018981, has been authorised to accept, on behalf of the Issuer and the
Guarantor, service of process and any other notices required to be served on the Issuer or the
Guarantor. Any notices required to be served on the Issuer or the Guarantor should be sent to
Societe Generale at the above address for the attention of Societe Generale Legal Department.
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Copies of the following documents may be inspected during usual business hours on any weekday
(Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted) at the offices of Societe Generale, Singapore Branch
at 8 Marina Boulevard, #12-01 Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 1, Singapore 018981, during
the period of 14 days from the date of this document:

(@)

(b)
()
(d)

()
(f)

the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and the Constitutional
Documents of the Guarantor;

the latest financial reports (including the notes thereto) of the Issuer;
the latest financial reports (including the notes thereto) of the Guarantor;

the Base Listing Document (which can also be viewed at:
https://www.sgx.com/securities/prospectus-circulars-offer-documents);

this document; and

the Guarantee.

63


https://www.sgx.com/securities/prospectus-circulars-offer-documents

PLACING AND SALE

General

No action has been or will be taken by the Issuer that would permit a public offering of the
Certificates or possession or distribution of any offering material in relation to the Certificates in any
jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. No offers, sales or deliveries of any Certificates, or
distribution of any offering material relating to the Certificates may be made in or from any jurisdiction except
in circumstances which will result in compliance with any applicable laws or regulations and will not impose
any obligation on the Issuer. In the event that the Issuer contemplates a placing, placing fees may be
payable in connection with the issue and the Issuer may at its discretion allow discounts to placees.

Each Certificate Holder undertakes that it will inform any subsequent purchaser of the terms and
conditions of the Certificates and all such subsequent purchasers as may purchase such securities from
time to time shall deemed to be a Certificate Holder for the purposes of the Certificates and shall be bound
by the terms and conditions of the Certificates.

Singapore

This document has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore.
Accordingly, this document and any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or
invitation for subscription or purchase, of Certificates may not be circulated or distributed, nor may
Certificates be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether
directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions
of, any applicable provision of the Securities and Futures Act 2001 of Singapore.

Hong Kong

Each dealer has represented and agreed, and each further dealer appointed in respect of the
Certificates and each other purchaser will be required to represent and agree, that:

(a) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell in Hong Kong, by means of any document, any
Certificates (except for Certificates which are a "structured product" as defined in the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571) of Hong Kong (“SFO”)) other than (i) to "professional investors"
as defined in the SFO and any rules made under the SFO; or (i) in other circumstances which do
not result in the document being a "prospectus"”, as defined in the Companies (Winding Up and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong (“CWUMPO") or which do not
constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the CWUMPO; and

(b) it has not issued or had in its possession for the purposes of issue, and will not issue or have in its
possession for the purposes of issue, whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere, any advertisement,
invitation or document relating to the Certificates, which is directed at, or the contents of which are
likely to be accessed or read by, the public of Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the
securities laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to Certificates which are or are intended to
be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to "professional investors" as defined in
the SFO and any rules made under the SFO.

European Economic Area

Each dealer represents and agrees, and each further dealer appointed in respect of the Certificates
will be required to represent and agree, that it has not offered, sold or otherwise made available and will
not offer, sell, or otherwise make available any Certificates which are the subject of the offering as
contemplated by this document to any retail investor in the European Economic Area. For the purposes of
this provision:
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(@)

(b)

the expression “retail investor” means a person who is one (or more) of the following:

0] a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended,
“MiFID 1I"); or
(i) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (as amended, the Insurance

Distribution Directive), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as
defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (as amended and
superseded, the Prospectus Regulation); and

the expression “offer” includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient
information on the terms of the offer and the Certificates to be offered so as to enable an investor
to decide to purchase or subscribe for the Certificates.

United Kingdom

Each dealer represents and agrees, and each further dealer appointed in respect of the Certificates

will be required to represent and agree, that it has not offered, sold or otherwise made available and will
not offer, sell or otherwise make available any Certificates which are the subject of the offering as
contemplated by this document to any retail investor in the United Kingdom. For the purposes of this
provision:

(@)

(b)

the expression “retail investor” means a person who is one (or more) of the following:

0] a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms
part of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (“"EUWA”); or

(i) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act,
as amended (the “FSMA”) and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to
implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional
client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part
of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA, or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part
of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA,; and

the expression an “offer” includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient
information on the terms of the offer and the Certificates to be offered so as to enable an investor
to decide to purchase or subscribe for the Certificates.

Each dealer further represents and agrees, and each further dealer appointed in respect of the

Certificates will be required to further represent and agree, that:

(@)

in respect to Certificates having a maturity of less than one year: (i) it is a person whose ordinary
activities involve it in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or
agent) for the purposes of its business; and (ii) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell
any Certificates other than to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding,
managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses
or who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of investments (as principal
or agent) for the purposes of their businesses where the issue of the Certificates would otherwise
constitute a contravention of Section 19 of the FSMA by the Issuer;
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(b) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to
be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning
of section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any Certificates in
circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the Issuer or the Guarantor;
and

(c) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything
done by it in relation to any Certificates in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

United States

The Certificates and the Guarantee have not been and will not be registered under the United
States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) or any state securities law, and trading in
the Certificates has not been approved by the United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the
“CFTC”) under the United States Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as amended (the “Commodity
Exchange Act”) and the Issuer has not been and will not be registered as an investment company under
the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder.
None of the Securities and Exchange Commission, any state securities commission or regulatory authority
or any other United States, French or other regulatory authority has approved or disapproved of the
Certificates or the Guarantee or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document. Accordingly,
Certificates, or interests therein, may not at any time be offered, sold, resold, traded, pledged, exercised,
redeemed, transferred or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or
benefit of, U.S. persons, nor may any U.S. person at any time trade, own, hold or maintain a position in the
Certificates or any interests therein. In addition, in the absence of relief from the CFTC, offers, sales, re-
sales, trades, pledges, exercises, redemptions, transfers or deliveries of Certificates, or interests therein,
directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons, may constitute
a violation of United States law governing commodities trading and commaodity pools. Consequently, any
offer, sale, resale, trade, pledge, exercise, redemption, transfer or delivery made, directly or indirectly, within
the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person will not be recognised.

Each dealer has represented and agreed, and each further dealer will be required to represent and
agree, that it has not and will not at any time offer, sell, resell, trade, pledge, exercise, redeem, transfer or
deliver, directly or indirectly, Certificates in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, any U.S.
person or to others for offer, sale, resale, trade, pledge, exercise, redeem, transfer or delivery, directly or
indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, any such U.S. person. Any person
purchasing Certificates of any tranches must agree with the relevant dealer or the seller of such Certificates
that (i) it is not a U.S. Person, (ii) it will not at any time offer, sell, resell, trade, pledge, exercise, redeem,
transfer or deliver, directly or indirectly, any Certificates in the United States or to, or for the account or
benefit of, any U.S. person or to others for offer, sale, resale, trade, pledge, exercise, redemption, transfer
or delivery, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, any U.S. person,
and (iii) it is not purchasing any Certificates, directly or indirectly, in the United States or for the account or
benefit of any U.S. person.

Exercise or otherwise redemption of Certificates will be conditional upon certification that each
person exercising or otherwise redeeming a Certificate is not a U.S. person or in the United States and that
the Certificate is not being exercised or otherwise redeemed on behalf of a U.S. person. No payment will
be made to accounts of holders of the Certificates located in the United States.
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As used in the preceding paragraphs, the term “United States” includes the territories, the
possessions and all other areas subject to the jurisdiction of the United States of America, and the term
“U.S. person” means any person who is (i) a U.S. person as defined under Regulation S under the
Securities Act, (ii) a U.S. person as defined in paragraph 7701(a)(30) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
(iii) a person who comes within any definition of U.S. person for the purposes of the United States
Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as amended (the “CEA”) or any rules thereunder of the CFTC (the
“CFTC Rules™), guidance or order proposed or issued under the CEA (for the avoidance of doubt, any
person who is not a “Non-United States person” defined under CFTC Rule 4.7(a)(1)(iv), but excluding, for
purposes of subsection (D) thereof, the exception for qualified eligible persons who are not “Non-United
States persons”, shall be considered a U.S. person), or (iv) a U.S. Person for purposes of the final rules
implementing the credit risk retention requirements of Section 15G of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.
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APPENDIX |

REPRODUCTION OF
THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2025 OF
OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

The information set out below is a reproduction of the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December 2025 and has been extracted

and reproduced from an announcement by the Company dated 25 February 2026 in relation to the
same.
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To Our Shareholders

The Board of Directors of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC”) reports the following:

Financial Results for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2025

Details of the financial results are in the accompanying Condensed Financial Statements.

Final and Special Dividends

A final tax-exempt dividend of 42 cents (2024: final dividend of 41 cents) per ordinary share for the financial
year 2025 (“FY25”) and a special tax-exempt dividend of 16 cents (2024: special dividend of 16 cents) per
ordinary share have been recommended. Including the interim tax-exempt dividend of 41 cents (2024:
interim dividend of 44 cents) per ordinary share paid in August 2025, total dividends for FY25 would amount
to 99 cents (2024: 101 cents) per ordinary share. The total dividend payout will amount to an estimated
S$4.45 billion (2024: S$4.54 billion) or approximately 60% of the Group’s net profit after tax of S$7.42
billion for FY25.

Closure of Books

The record date is 24 April 2026. Please refer to the announcements on final dividend and special dividend
released by the Bank on the SGX website at https://www.sgx.com/securities/company-announcements.

Scrip Dividend Scheme

The Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited Scrip Dividend Scheme, which was approved by the
Shareholders of the Bank at the Extraordinary General Meeting on 8 June 1996, will not be applicable to
the final and special dividends.

Peter Yeoh
Secretary

Singapore, 25 February 2026

More details on the results are available on the Bank’s website at www.ocbc.com
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OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

GROUP

S$ million Note 2H 2025 2H 2024 ™ 2025 2024
Interest income 9,672 11,214 20,076 22,444
Interest expense (5,150) (6,326) (10,926) (12,689)
Net interest income 3 4,522 4,888 9,150 9,755
Insurance service results from life insurance @ 387 241 927 592
Net investment income from life insurance 4,693 2,802 7,365 6,124
Net insurance financial result from life insurance (4,541) (2,709) (7,237) (5,811)
Insurance service results from general insurance (2) # 14 12
Fees and commissions (net) 4 1,285 1,025 2,411 1,970
Net trading income 913 811 1,684 1,537
Other income 5 155 160 300 294
Non-interest income 2,890 2,330 5,464 4,718
Total income 7,412 7,218 14,614 14,473
Staff costs (1,976) (1,986) (3,907) (3,837)
Other operating expenses 6 (1,102) (1,037) (1,975) (1,905)
Total operating expenses (3,078) (3,023) (5,882) (5,742)
Operating profit before allowances and

amortisation 4,334 4,195 8,732 8,731
Amortisation of intangible assets (10) (12) (21) (59)
Allowances for loans and other assets 7 (339) (377) (665) (690)
Operating profit after allowances and

amortisation 3,985 3,806 8,046 7,982
Share of results of associates, net of tax 540 496 1,077 994
Profit before income tax 4,525 4,302 9,123 8,976
Income tax expense (734) (574) (1,563) (1,228)
Profit for the period/year 3,791 3,728 7,560 7,748
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 3,723 3,661 7,422 7,587

Non-controlling interests 68 67 138 161

3,791 3,728 7,560 7,748

Earnings per share (S$)

Basic 0.82 0.81 1.63 1.67

Diluted 0.82 0.80 1.63 1.67

(™ Unaudited and unreviewed.

@ Includes insurance revenue of S$6,466 million and S$3,264 million for 2025 and 2H2025 respectively (2024: S$6,180 million and
2H2024: S$3,252 million) and insurance service expense of $$5,634 million and S$2,943 million for 2025 and 2H2025 respectively
(2024: S$5,701 million and 2H2024: S$3,153 million).

©®)  # represents amounts less than S$0.5 million.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these condensed financial statements.



OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

GROUP

S$ million 2H2025™"  2H 2024 () 2025 2024
Profit for the period/year 3,791 3,728 7,560 7,748
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income

statement:
Financial assets, at FVOCI @

Fair value gains for the period/year 161 379 788 344

Reclassification of gains to income statement

— on disposal (33) (8) (71) (12)

— on impairment (7) (10) (3) (4)

Tax on net movements (16) (34) (95) (21)
Cash flow and other hedges (62) 146 (91) 70
Net insurance financial result (66) (123) (193) (77)
Currency translation on foreign subsidiaries and overseas

branches 59 275 (424) 334
Other comprehensive income/(losses) of associates 153 209 (335) 388
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to

income statement:
Currency translation on foreign operations attributable to

non-controlling interests (12) 13 (44) (2)
Equity instruments, at FVOCI, net change in fair value 119 8 171 172
Defined benéefit plans remeasurements 2 (2) 2 #
Own credit (1) (1) (#) (1)
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax 297 852 (295) 1,191
Total comprehensive income for the period/year, net of

tax 4,088 4,580 7,265 8,939
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 4,025 4,496 7,150 8,763

Non-controlling interests 63 84 115 176

4,088 4,580 7,265 8,939

(' Unaudited and unreviewed.
@ Fair value through other comprehensive income.
©®) # represents amounts less than S$0.5 million.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these condensed financial statements.



OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS
As at 31 December 2025
GROUP BANK
S$ million Note 31 Dec 2025 31 Dec 2024 31 Dec 2025 31 Dec 2024
EQUITY
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
Share capital 9 17,887 18,096 17,887 18,096
Other equity instruments 1,698 1,698 1,698 1,698
Capital reserves 765 830 528 534
Fair value reserves 749 313 20 (225)
Revenue reserves 40,669 38,379 22,407 21,929
61,768 59,316 42,540 42,032
Other equity instruments issued by
subsidiary 676 - - -
Non-controlling interests 1,126 1,064 - —
Total equity 63,570 60,380 42,540 42,032
LIABILITIES
Deposits of non-bank customers 10 428,286 390,687 288,283 253,175
Deposits and balances of banks 10 15,280 11,565 12,526 8,951
Due to subsidiaries - - 42,735 46,602
Due to associates 283 324 209 232
Trading portfolio liabilities 197 281 197 222
Derivative payables 14,078 16,238 12,636 12,855
Other liabilities 12,004 9,370 5,187 3,982
Current tax payables 1,118 879 766 560
Deferred tax liabilities 991 841 165 138
Debt issued 11 30,482 31,553 28,960 30,321
502,719 461,738 391,664 357,038
Insurance contract liabilities and other
liabilities for life insurance funds 109,399 102,932 - -
Total liabilities 612,118 564,670 391,664 357,038
Total equity and liabilities 675,688 625,050 434,204 399,070
ASSETS
Cash and placements with central banks 30,756 34,599 27,095 30,525
Singapore government treasury bills and
securities 21,506 14,316 20,451 13,182
Other government treasury bills and
securities 44,898 30,369 22,681 11,196
Placements with and loans to banks 37,942 42,407 25,548 32,174
Loans to customers 12 336,692 315,096 245,802 227,598
Debt and equity securities 53,267 43,413 33,093 26,311
Derivative receivables 13,035 17,203 11,640 13,582
Other assets 9,622 7,761 4,379 3,784
Deferred tax assets 489 538 239 175
Associates 8,799 8,153 2,199 2,234
Subsidiaries - - 37,795 35,471
Property, plant and equipment 4,041 3,725 1,360 914
Investment property 672 675 55 57
Goodwill and other intangible assets 4,360 4,504 1,867 1,867
566,079 522,759 434,204 399,070
Investment securities for life insurance funds 100,151 94,452 - -
Other assets for life insurance funds 9,458 7,839 — —
Total assets 675,688 625,050 434,204 399,070
Net asset value per ordinary share — S$ () 13.38 12.80 9.10 8.96
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Contingent liabilities 19,359 18,796 14,404 14,346
Commitments 214,115 201,029 142,090 134,531
Derivative financial instruments 1,698,782 1,438,850 1,379,054 1,127,408

(M Unaudited and unreviewed.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these condensed financial statements.



OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - GROUP
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Share Other equity
capital Fair instruments Non-
and other  Capital value Revenue issued by controlling Total

S$ million equity reserves (" reserves reserves Total subsidiary interests  equity
At 1 January 2025 19,794 830 313 38,379 59,316 - 1,064 60,380
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - — 7,422 7,422 - 138 7,560
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified

subsequently to income statement:
Financial assets, at FVOCI

Fair value gains for the year - - 756 - 756 - 32 788

Reclassification of gains to income

statement

- on disposal - - (67) - (67) - (4) (71)

- on impairment - - 3) - 3) - (#) 3)

Tax on net movements - - (89) - (89) - (6) (95)
Cash flow and other hedges - - - (91) (91) - - (91)
Net insurance financial result - - - (181) (181) - (12) (193)
Currency translation on foreign subsidiaries

and overseas branches - - - (424) (424) - - (424)
Other comprehensive losses of associates - - (230) (105) (335) - - (335)
Items that will not be reclassified

subsequently to income statement:
Currency translation on foreign operations

attributable to non-controlling interests - - - - - - (44) (44)
Equity instruments, at FVOCI, net change in

fair value - - 69 91 160 - 11 171
Defined benefit plans remeasurements - - - 2 2 - 2
Own credit - - - (#) (#) - - (#)
Total other comprehensive income, net

of tax - - 436 (708) (272) - (23) (295)
Total comprehensive income for the year — — 436 6,714 7,150 — 115 7,265
Transactions with owners, recorded

directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to

owners
Transfers 12 (82) - 70 - - - -
Buy-back of shares for holding as treasury

shares (220) - - - (220) - - (220)
Cancellation of shares (225) - - - (225) - - (225)
Dividends and distributions - - - (4,492) (4,492) - (53) (4,545)
DSP reserve from dividends on unvested

shares - - - (2) (2) - - (2)
Perpetual capital securities issued - - - - - 676 - 676
Share-based payments for staff costs - 6 - - 6 - - 6
Shares issued to non-executive directors 1 - - - 1 - - 1
Shares transferred to DSP Trust - (18) - - (18) - - (18)
Shares vested under DSP Scheme - 132 - - 132 - - 132
Treasury shares transferred/sold 223 (103) - - 120 - - 120
Total contributions by and distributions

to owners (209) (65) — (4,424) (4,698) 676 (53) (4,075)
At 31 December 2025 19,585 765 749 40,669 61,768 676 1,126 63,570
Included in the balances:
Share of reserves of associates - - 369 5,455 5,824 - - 5,824

(™M Included regulatory loss allowance reserve of S$455 million at 1 January 2025 and S$445 million at 31 December 2025.

@ # represents amounts less than S$0.5 million.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these condensed financial statements.




OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - GROUP
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Share Other equity
capital Fair instruments Non-
and other  Capital value Revenue issued by controlling Total

S$ million equity reserves (" reserves reserves Total subsidiary interests  equity
At 1 January 2024 19,293 815 (439) 34,501 54,170 - 1,384 55,554
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - 7,587 7,587 - 161 7,748
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified

subsequently to income statement:
Financial assets, at FVOCI

Fair value gains/(losses) for the year - - 351 - 351 - (7) 344

Reclassification of (gains)/losses to

income statement

- on disposal - - (17) - 17) - 5 (12)

- on impairment - - 3) - 3) - 1) (4)

Tax on net movements - - (22) — (22) — 1 (21)
Cash flow and other hedges - - - 70 70 - - 70
Net insurance financial result - - - (74) (74) - (3) (77)
Currency translation on foreign subsidiaries

and overseas branches - - - 334 334 - - 334
Other comprehensive income of associates - - 365 23 388 — — 388
Items that will not be reclassified

subsequently to income statement:
Currency translation on foreign operations

attributable to non-controlling interests - - - - - - 2) (2)
Equity instruments, at FVOCI, net change in

fair value - - 78 72 150 - 22 172
Defined benefit plans remeasurements - - - # # - # #
Own credit - - - (1) (1) - — (1)
Total other comprehensive income, net

of tax - - 752 424 1,176 - 15 1,191
Total comprehensive income for the year — — 752 8,011 8,763 — 176 8,939
Transactions with owners, recorded

directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to

owners
Transfers 16 (6) - (10) - - - -
Buy-back of shares for holding as treasury

shares (194) - - - (194) - - (194)
Dividends and distributions - - - (3,933) (3,933) - (54) (3,987)
DSP reserve from dividends on unvested

shares - - - 11 11 - - 11
Perpetual capital securities issued 450 - - - 450 - - 450
Share-based payments for staff costs - 6 - - 6 - - 6
Shares issued to non-executive directors 1 - - - 1 - - 1
Shares transferred to DSP Trust - (16) - - (16) - - (16)
Shares vested under DSP Scheme - 107 - - 107 - - 107
Treasury shares transferred/sold 228 (76) - - 152 - - 152
Total contributions by and distributions

to owners 501 15 - (3,932) (3,416) - (54) (3,470)
Changes in non-controlling interest — — — (201) (201) — (442) (643)
At 31 December 2024 19,794 830 313 38,379 59,316 — 1,064 60,380
Included in the balances:
Share of reserves of associates — — 600 4,789 5,389 — — 5,389

™M Included regulatory loss allowance reserve of S$455 million at 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024.

@ # represents amounts less than S$0.5 million.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these condensed financial statements.




OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - BANK
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

Share
capital and
other Capital Fair value Revenue Total

S$$ million equity reserves () reserves reserves equity
At 1 January 2025 19,794 534 (225) 21,929 42,032
Profit for the year - - - 5,099 5,099
Other comprehensive income/(losses) - - 245 (144) 101
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 245 4,955 5,200
Transfers 12 (12) - - -
Buy-back of shares for holding as treasury

shares (220) - - - (220)
Cancellation of shares (225) - - - (225)
Dividends and distributions - - - (4,475) (4,475)
DSP reserve from dividends on unvested shares - - - (2) (2)
Share-based payments for staff costs - 6 - - 6
Shares issued to non-executive directors 1 - - - 1
Treasury shares transferred/sold 223 - - - 223
At 31 December 2025 19,585 528 20 22,407 42,540
At 1 January 2024 19,293 544 (435) 18,935 38,337
Profit for the year - - - 6,861 6,861
Other comprehensive income - - 210 55 265
Total comprehensive income for the year — - 210 6,916 7,126
Transfers 16 (16) - - -
Buy-back of shares for holding as treasury

shares (194) - - - (194)
Dividends and distributions - - - (3,933) (3,933)
DSP reserve from dividends on unvested shares - - - 11 11
Perpetual capital securities issued 450 - - - 450
Share-based payments for staff costs - 6 - - 6
Shares issued to non-executive directors 1 - - - 1
Treasury shares transferred/sold 228 — - - 228
At 31 December 2024 19,794 534 (225) 21,929 42,032

™" Included regulatory loss allowance reserve of S$444 million at 1 January 2025, 1 January 2024, 31 December 2025 and 31

December 2024.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these condensed financial statements.



OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

S$ million 2025 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 9,123 8,976
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Allowances for loans and other assets 665 690
Amortisation of intangible assets 21 59
Change in hedging transactions, FVTPL(") securities and debt issued 377 356
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and interest expense on lease liabilities 551 463
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of interests in associates/subsidiaries (63) #
Net gain on disposal of government, debt and equity securities (58) (24)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (18) (36)
Share-based costs 62 62
Share of results of associates, net of tax (1,077) (994)
Others - (72)
Operating profit before change in operating assets and liabilities 9,583 9,480
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Deposits of non-bank customers 37,565 26,052
Deposits and balances of banks 3,716 679
Derivative payables and other liabilities (571) 3,482
Trading portfolio liabilities (84) 87
Restricted balances with central banks (439) (354)
Government securities and treasury bills (21,411) 1,188
FVTPL securities (4,840) (3,195)
Placements with and loans to banks 4,465 (4,246)
Loans to customers (22,082) (22,330)
Derivative receivables and other assets 2,616 (3,969)
Net change in other assets and liabilities for life insurance funds 2,087 (1,321)
Cash provided by operating activities 10,605 5,553
Income tax paid (1,480) (1,589)
Net cash provided by operating activities 9,125 3,964
Cash flows from investing activities
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiary - (31)
Dividends from associates 294 158
Purchases of debt and equity securities (41,960) (34,021)
Purchases of investment securities for life insurance funds (60,728) (45,566)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (983) (614)
Proceeds from disposal of debt and equity securities 36,193 30,750
Proceeds from disposal of interests in associates 115 #
Proceeds from disposal of investment securities for life insurance funds 58,728 44,948
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 45 44
Net cash used in investing activities (8,296) (4,332)
Cash flows from financing activities
Changes in non-controlling interests - (643)
Buy-back of shares for holding as treasury shares/cancellation (445) (194)
Dividends and distributions paid (4,545) (3,987)
Net (redemption)/issue of other debt issued (558) 4,557
Net proceeds from perpetual capital securities issued 676 450
Repayments of lease liabilities (43) (78)
Proceeds from subordinated debt issued 1,438 1,165
Redemption of subordinated debt issued (1,284) (1,352)
Proceeds from treasury shares transferred/sold under the Bank’s employee share schemes 120 152
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (4,641) 70
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (3,812) (298)
Net currency translation adjustments (469) 257
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 28,829 28,870
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 24,548 28,829

(M Fair value through profit or loss.

@ In 2025, the Group paid income tax of S$1,480 million (2024: S$1,589 million), of which S$709 million (2024:

Singapore and S$771 million (2024: S$803 million) in other jurisdictions.
) # represents amounts less than S$0.5 million.

S$786 million) was paid in

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these condensed financial statements.



OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

These notes form an integral part of the condensed financial statements.

The condensed financial statements were authorised by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2026.

1.

General

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (the Bank) is incorporated and domiciled in Singapore and is listed on
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The address of the Bank’s registered office is 63 Chulia Street,
#10-00 OCBC Centre East, Singapore 049514.

The condensed financial statements relate to the Bank and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group) and the
Group's interests in associates. The Group is principally engaged in the business of banking, life insurance, general
insurance, asset management, investment holding, futures and stockbroking.

Basis of preparation
2.1 Statement of compliance

The condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(International) (SFRS(I)) 1-34 Interim Financial Reporting, and do not include all of the information required for full
annual financial statements. These condensed financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the latest annual
audited financial statements.

2.2 Basis of presentation

The condensed financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollar, rounded to the nearest million unless otherwise
stated. # represents amounts less than S$0.5 million. The condensed financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the latest annual audited financial statements.

2.3 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of condensed financial statements in conformity with SFRS(I) requires management to exercise its
judgement, use estimates and make assumptions in the application of accounting policies on the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

In preparing these condensed financial statements, the significant judgements made by management in applying the
accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those applied in the financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024, except for the following additions.

The significant accounting estimates include impairment of financial assets and impairment of goodwill and other
intangible assets, as discussed below:

Impairment of financial assets

In determining whether the credit risk of the Group’s financial assets/exposures has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group considers quantitative and qualitative information such as the Group’s historical credit
assessment experience and available forward-looking information. Expected credit losses (ECL) estimates are based
on probability-weighted forward-looking economic scenarios. The parameters used in ECL measurement (probability
of default, loss given default and exposure at default) incorporates forward-looking information. The determination of
the forward-looking economic scenarios and incorporation of forward-looking information into ECL measurement
requires management to exercise judgement based on its assessment of current macroeconomic conditions.




OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
2.3 Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Allowances for non-credit-impaired loans to customers

As of 31 December 2025, the forward-looking scenarios used in the ECL model have been updated from those as of
31 December 2024, which reflects the latest macroeconomic view. Additionally, post-model adjustments were made to
address events that are not incorporated in the baseline ECL. These post-model adjustments were reviewed and
approved in accordance with the Group’s ECL framework, and were made to more accurately reflect the continued
weakness of certain industries and segments.

Sensitivity of ECL
ECL is estimated to increase by S$3,016 million (2024: S$2,173 million) should all the exposures in Stage 1 (12-month

ECL) move to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL).

Allowances for credit-impaired loans to customers

In respect of credit-impaired exposures, management judgement and estimation are applied in, amongst others,
identifying impaired exposures, estimating the related recoverable cash flows and where applicable, determining
collateral values and timing of realisation. Judgements and assumptions in respect of these matters have been updated
to reflect the relevant information as of 31 December 2025.

The Group’s allowances for credit-impaired loans to customers are disclosed in Note 12.

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets
The recoverable amount of goodwill and other intangible assets is determined based on the present value of estimated

future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units’ continuing operations. In light of current
macroeconomic conditions, management reassessed the assumptions applied in estimating the future cash flows,
including growth rates and discount rates used in computing the recoverable amount, and determined that no
impairment should be recognised during the year.

2.4 Changes in accounting policies

The following new/revised financial reporting standards and interpretations were applied with effect from 1 January
2025:

SFRS(I) Title

SFRS(l) 1-21 (Amendments), Lack of Exchangeability
SFRS(I) 1 (Amendments)

The accounting policies applied by the Group in the condensed financial statements are the same as those applied
by the Group in its financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024, except for the new/revised
financial reporting standards and interpretations as set out above. The initial application of the above standards
(including their consequential amendments) and interpretations did not have any material impact on the Group’s
condensed financial statements.

There are a number of new/revised financial reporting standards in issue but not yet effective. They are not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements when adopted except as described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

2.4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

SFRS(l) 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

SFRS(I) 18 will replace SFRS(1) 1-1 Presentation of Financial Statements and applies for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027. While SFRS(I) 18 does not impact the recognition and measurement of items
in the financial statements, it impacts the presentation and disclosure of the income statement and introduces
additional disclosure requirements, in particular those related to the income statement and providing management-

defined performance measures within the financial statements.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of applying the new standard on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, particularly with respect to the structure of the Group’s income statement, disclosure of management-

defined performance measures and other additional disclosure requirements.

The Group will apply the new standard from its mandatory effective date of 1 January 2027. Retrospective
application is required. Therefore, comparative information for the financial year ending 31 December 2026 will be

restated in accordance with SFRS(I) 18.

3. Net interest income

GROUP
S$ million 2H 2025 2H 2024 ™ 2025 2024
Interest income
Loans to customers 6,619 7,781 13,745 15,628
Placements with and loans to banks 1,132 1,756 2,606 3,552
Other interest-earning assets 1,921 1,677 3,725 3,264
9,672 11,214 20,076 22,444
Interest expense
Deposits of non-bank customers (4,344) (5,238) (9,226) (10,552)
Deposits and balances of banks (227) (246) (470) (518)
Other borrowings (579) (842) (1,230) (1,619)
(5,150) (6,326) (10,926) (12,689)
Net interest income 4,522 4,888 9,150 9,755

() Unaudited and unreviewed.
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OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

4.

7.

Fees and commissions (net)

GROUP
S$ million 2H 2025 (" 2H 2024 ™ 2025 2024
Gross fee and commission income
Brokerage 65 47 118 87
Credit card 212 205 414 404
Fund management 64 54 121 108
Guarantees 5 5 10 12
Investment banking 67 63 144 109
Loan-related 138 112 262 213
Service charges 54 61 116 124
Trade-related and remittances 141 140 278 271
Wealth management @) 819 565 1,443 1,079
Others 18 14 35 26
1,583 1,266 2,941 2,433
Fee and commission expense (298) (241) (530) (463)
Fees and commissions (net) 1,285 1,025 2,411 1,970
Other income
GROUP
S$ million 2H 2025 ™" 2H 2024 () 2025 2024
Disposal of investment securities 7 8 58 24
Disposal/liquidation of subsidiaries and associates 63 - 63 (#)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 1 20 18 36
Rental and property-related income 48 47 94 91
Dividends from FVOCI securities 17 18 35 35
Others 19 67 32 108
Other income 155 160 300 294
Other operating expenses
GROUP
S$ million 2H 2025 2H 2024 ™ 2025 2024
Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation 282 247 544 456
Maintenance and rental 97 115 180 201
Others 251 219 462 405
630 581 1,186 1,062
Other operating expenses 472 456 789 843
Total other operating expenses 1,102 1,037 1,975 1,905
Allowances for loans and other assets
GROUP
S$ million 2H 2025 2H 2024 ™ 2025 2024
Allowances/(write-back):
Impaired loans 342 152 486 403
Impaired other assets 34 40 49 123
Non-impaired loans (31) 185 124 158
Non-impaired other assets (6) — 6 6
Allowances for loans and other assets 339 377 665 690

() Unaudited and unreviewed.
@ Includes trust and custodian fees.

12



OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

8. Dividends/distributions

GROUP
S$ million 2025 2024
Ordinary dividends:
Final tax-exempt dividend of 41 cents paid for the previous financial year
(2024: tax-exempt dividend of 42 cents) 1,844 1,891
Interim tax-exempt dividend of 41 cents paid for the current financial year
(2024: tax-exempt dividend of 44 cents) 1,843 1,978
Special tax-exempt dividend of 16 cents paid for the previous financial year
(2024: nil) 720 -
Distributions for other equity instruments:
3.0% perpetual capital securities 6 6
3.9% perpetual capital securities 20 20
4.5% perpetual capital securities 25 25
4.05% perpetual capital securities 18 13
5.398% perpetual capital securities issued by subsidiary 16 -
Total dividends and distributions 4,492 3,933

9. Share capital
GROUP AND BANK

Half year ended 31 Dec  Financial year ended 31 Dec

Shares (million) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Issued ordinary shares
At beginning of period/year 4,515 4,515 4,515 4,515
Cancellation of shares (14) - (14) -
Shares issued to non-executive directors - - # #
At end of period/year 4,501 4,515 4,501 4,515
Treasury shares
At beginning of period/year (19) (21) (15) (21)
Share buyback (13) (3) (27) (13)
Cancellation of shares 14 - 14 -
Share Option Scheme 1 3 4 6
Share Purchase Plan 6 6 7 7
Treasury shares transferred to DSP Trust - — 6 6
At end of period/year (11) (15) (11) (15)
Total issued ordinary shares excluding
treasury shares 4,490 4,500 4,490 4,500
Issued share capital (S$ million) 17,887 18,096 17,887 18,096

() Unaudited and unreviewed.
@ # represents less than 500,000 shares.

Pursuant to the share purchase mandate approved at the Annual General Meeting held on 17 April 2025, the Bank
purchased a total of 13 million ordinary shares in the half year ended 31 December 2025. The ordinary shares were
purchased by way of open market acquisitions at prices ranging from S$16.25 to S$17.13 per share and the total
consideration paid was S$216 million (including transaction costs).

As at 31 December 2025, the number of options outstanding under the OCBC Share Option Scheme 2001 was 5
million (31 December 2024: 8 million) and the number of acquisition rights outstanding under the OCBC Employee
Share Purchase Plan was 15 million (31 December 2024: 16 million).

13



OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

10. Deposits and balances of non-bank customers and banks

1.

12.

GROUP

S$ million

31 Dec 2025 31 Dec 2024

Deposits of non-bank customers

Fixed deposits 166,140 161,185
Savings deposits 105,869 81,150
Current accounts 111,441 109,603
Others 44,836 38,749
428,286 390,687
Deposits and balances of banks 15,280 11,565
Total deposits 443,566 402,252
Debt issued
GROUP
S$ million 31 Dec 2025 31 Dec 2024
Unsecured
Subordinated debt 3,551 3,492
Fixed and floating rate notes 4,689 3,938
Commercial paper 15,299 17,867
Structured notes 5,428 4,833
Secured
Covered bonds 1,515 1,423
30,482 31,553
Debt issued by maturity
Within one year 19,630 23,860
Over one year 10,852 7,693
30,482 31,553
Loans to customers
GROUP
S$ million 31 Dec 2025 31 Dec 2024
Gross loans 341,120 319,166
Allowances
Impaired loans (1,577) (1,278)
Non-impaired loans (2,851) (2,792)
Net loans 336,692 315,096

14



OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

13. Segment information

The Group provides operating segment information primarily by business and additional segment information by
geography.

13.1 Business segments

Global
Consumer/  Global
Private =~ Wholesale Global
S$ million Banking Banking Markets Insurance Others  Group

Half year ended 31 December 2025 ()

Net interest income 1,444 2,401 539 102 36 4,522
Non-interest income 1,349 580 184 800 (23) 2,890
Total income 2,793 2,981 723 902 13 7,412
Operating profit before

allowances and amortisation 1,165 2,044 487 760 (122) 4,334
Amortisation of intangible assets (7) - - (3) - (10)
Allowances for loans and other assets (50) (257) 7 - (39) (339)
Operating profit after allowances and

amortisation 1,108 1,787 494 757 (161) 3,985
Share of results of associates, net of tax - — — - 540 540
Profit before income tax 1,108 1,787 494 757 379 4,525
Other information:
Capital expenditure 56 14 1 75 636 782
Depreciation 56 10 2 7 207 282
Half year ended 31 December 2024 ()
Net interest income 1,603 2,522 337 89 337 4,888
Non-interest income 1,018 522 265 502 23 2,330
Total income 2,621 3,044 602 591 360 7,218
Operating profit before

allowances and amortisation 1,045 2,092 363 492 203 4,195
Amortisation of intangible assets (8) - - (4) - (12)
Allowances for loans and other assets (24) (365) - 2 10 (377)
Operating profit after allowances and

amortisation 1,013 1,727 363 490 213 3,806
Share of results of associates, net of tax - - - - 496 496
Profit before income tax 1,013 1,727 363 490 709 4,302
Other information:
Capital expenditure 48 8 - 66 339 461
Depreciation 53 7 3 4 180 247

() Unaudited and unreviewed.



OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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13. Segment information (continued)

13.1 Business segments (continued)

Global
Consumer/ Global
Private Wholesale Global

S$ million Banking Banking Markets Insurance Others  Group
Year ended 31 December 2025
Net interest income 2,945 4,807 1,029 205 164 9,150
Non-interest income 2,468 1,118 381 1,517 (20) 5,464
Total income 5,413 5,925 1,410 1,722 144 14,614
Operating profit before

allowances and amortisation 2,278 4,087 945 1,497 (75) 8,732
Amortisation of intangible assets (14) - - (7) - (21)
Allowances for loans and other assets (55) (499) 3 1 (115) (665)
Operating profit after allowances

and amortisation 2,209 3,588 948 1,491 (190) 8,046
Share of results of associates, net of tax - - - - 1,077 1,077
Profit before income tax 2,209 3,588 948 1,491 887 9,123
Other information:
Capital expenditure 93 49 1 120 829 1,092
Depreciation 105 18 5 10 406 544
Year ended 31 December 2024
Net interest income 3,242 5,085 560 173 695 9,755
Non-interest income 1,963 990 436 1,253 76 4,718
Total income 5,205 6,075 996 1,426 771 14,473
Operating profit before

allowances and amortisation 2,252 4,264 575 1,216 424 8,731
Amortisation of intangible assets (15) - - (24) (20) (59)
Allowances for loans and other assets (66) (808) (9) (2) 195 (690)
Operating profit after allowances

and amortisation 2,171 3,456 566 1,190 599 7,982
Share of results of associates, net of tax - - - - 994 994
Profit before income tax 2,171 3,456 566 1,190 1,593 8,976
Other information:
Capital expenditure 86 17 1 114 470 688
Depreciation 99 14 4 7 332 456
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13. Segment information (continued)

13.1 Business segments (continued)

Global
Consumer/ Global

Private Wholesale Global
S$ million Banking Banking Markets Insurance Others Group
At 31 December 2025
Segment assets 151,401 225,800 157,042 122,970 53,198 710,411
Unallocated assets 489
Elimination (35,212)
Total assets 675,688
Segment liabilities 217,383 188,350 89,171 111,187 39,130 645,221
Unallocated liabilities 2,109
Elimination (35,212)
Total liabilities 612,118
Other information:
Gross non-bank loans 116,645 220,055 3,773 480 167 341,120
Non-performing assets 654 2,586 2 1 - 3,243
At 31 December 2024
Segment assets 147,452 212,508 139,864 114,296 54,798 668,918
Unallocated assets 538
Elimination (44,406)
Total assets 625,050
Segment liabilities 207,593 165,784 82,282 104,402 47,295 607,356
Unallocated liabilities 1,720
Elimination (44,406)
Total liabilities 564,670
Other information:
Gross non-bank loans 107,752 207,785 3,189 323 117 319,166
Non-performing assets 577 2,288 3 1 — 2,869

17



OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

13. Segment information (continued)
13.1 Business segments (continued)

OCBC Group’s businesses are presented in the following customer segments and business activities: Global
Consumer/Private Banking, Global Wholesale Banking, Global Markets and Insurance.

Global Consumer/Private Banking

Global Consumer/Private Banking provides a full range of products and services to individual customers. At Global
Consumer Banking, the products and services offered include deposit products (checking accounts, savings and
fixed deposits), consumer loans (housing loans and other personal loans), credit cards, investments and wealth
management products. Private Banking caters to the specialised banking needs of high net worth individuals,
offering wealth management expertise, including investment advice and portfolio management services, estate
and trust planning, and wealth structuring.

Global Wholesale Banking

Global Wholesale Banking serves institutional customers ranging from large corporates and the public sector to
small and medium enterprises. The business provides a full range of financing solutions including long-term project
financing, short-term credit, working capital and trade financing, as well as customised and structured equity-linked
financing. It also provides customers with a broad range of products and services such as cash management and
custodian services, capital market solutions, corporate finance services and advisory banking, and treasury
products.

Global Markets

Global Markets is responsible for the management of the Group’s asset and liability interest rate positions, engages
in foreign exchange activities, money market operations, fixed income and derivatives trading, and offers structured
treasury products, digital assets, brokerage services and financial solutions to meet customers’ investment and
hedging needs. Income from treasury products and services offered to customers in Global Consumer/Private
Banking and Global Wholesale Banking, is reflected in the respective business segments.

Insurance
The Group’s insurance business, including its fund management activities, is undertaken by the Bank’s subsidiary

Great Eastern Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries, which provide both life and general insurance products to its
customers mainly in Singapore and Malaysia.

Others

Others comprise mainly property holding, investment holding and items not attributable to the business segments
described above.

Where there are material changes in the organisational structure and management reporting methodologies,
segment information for prior periods is reclassified to allow comparability.
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13. Segment information (continued)

13.2 Geographical segments

S$ million 2H 2025 2H 2024 M 2025 2024

Total income
Singapore 4,381 4,347 8,644 8,913
Malaysia 924 844 1,860 1,655
Indonesia 532 559 1,054 1,085
Greater China 1,036 972 2,008 1,863
Other Asia Pacific 167 156 323 309
Rest of the World 372 340 725 648
7,412 7,218 14,614 14,473

Operating profit before allowances
and amortisation

Singapore 2,580 2,534 5,137 5,447
Malaysia 646 589 1,357 1,174
Indonesia 265 276 536 539
Greater China 526 479 1,008 923
Other Asia Pacific 115 111 228 213
Rest of the World 202 206 466 435

4,334 4,195 8,732 8,731

Profit before income tax

Singapore 2,624 2,587 5,056 5,489
Malaysia 666 558 1,378 1,139
Indonesia 237 256 493 527
Greater China 811 620 1,671 1,277
Other Asia Pacific 107 83 179 149
Rest of the World 80 198 346 395

4,525 4,302 9,123 8,976

() Unaudited and unreviewed.

S$ million 31 Dec 2025 31 Dec 2024

Total assets
Singapore 396,538 362,744
Malaysia 74,955 68,066
Indonesia 24,895 24,657
Greater China 105,110 103,540
Other Asia Pacific 25,456 22,945
Rest of the World 48,734 43,098
675,688 625,050

The geographical segment analysis is based on the location where assets or transactions are booked. The
geographical information is stated after elimination of intra-group transactions and balances.
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14. Fair values of financial instruments

14.1 Valuation governance framework

The Group has an established governance framework with respect to the measurement of fair values, which
includes formalised processes for the review and validation of fair values independent of the businesses entering
into the transactions.

The Market Risk Management (MRM) function within the Group Risk Management Division (GRM) is responsible
for the model validation process. Financial models are used to price financial instruments and to calculate value-
at-risk (VaR). MRM ensures that the models used are fit for their intended purposes through internal independent
validation and periodic review. MRM sources market rates independently for risk measurement and valuation.

The Treasury Financial Control and Advisory — Valuation Control function within the Group Finance Division is
responsible for the establishment of the overall valuation control framework. This includes, but is not limited to,
reviewing and recommending appropriate valuation adjustment methodologies, independent price testing, and
identifying valuation gaps.

Valuation policies are formulated and reviewed annually by the Valuation Control function, and approved by the
Market Risk Management Committee, the Group Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Board Risk Management
Committee (BRMC). Valuation adjustments are applied to account for input parameter uncertainties, known model
deficiencies and other factors that may affect valuation. The main valuation adjustments are described below.

Bid Offer Adjustments
Bid offer adjustments are applied to account for close out cost when a position is marked at mid-price.

Model Risk Adjustments
Model risk adjustments are applied when there are inherent limitations in the valuation models used by the Bank.

Day 1 Profit or Loss Adjustments

Day 1 profit or loss adjustments are applied when the valuation technique involves the use of significant inputs
which are not readily observable. The difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction
price is deferred as an adjustment.

The Day 1 profit or loss adjustments are released to the income statement when the significant inputs become
observable, when the transaction is derecognised or amortised over the life of the transaction.

Credit Valuation Adjustments
Credit valuation adjustments are applied to account for the expected losses due to counterparty default on
derivative positions.

Collateral Valuation Adjustments

Collateral valuation adjustments may be applied to collateralised derivatives due to deviations from perfect
collateralisation such as when the derivative is denominated in one currency but is collateralised in another
currency.

Parameter Uncertainty Adjustments
These valuation adjustments mainly include adjustments for illiquid prices or internal methodologies used to derive
model inputs.

The Group’s internal audit provides independent assurance on the respective divisions’ compliance with the policy.
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14. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)
14.2 Fair values

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, financial liabilities and off-balance sheet financial instruments. The
fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants. For financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value on
the financial statements, the Group has determined that their fair values were not materially different from the
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments of the Group
are described below.

Financial assets

Fair values of cash and balances with central banks, placements with banks, interest and other short term
receivables are expected to approximate their carrying amounts due to their short tenor or frequent re-pricing.

Securities held by the Group, comprising government securities and debt and equity securities are substantially
carried at fair value on the balance sheet.

Non-bank customer loans are mainly carried at amortised cost on the balance sheet, net of allowances for impaired
and non-impaired loans. The Group deems that the carrying amounts of non-bank loans approximate their fair
values as substantially all the loans are subject to frequent re-pricing.

Financial liabilities

Fair value of certain financial liabilities, which include mainly customer deposits with no stated maturity, interbank
borrowings and borrowings under repurchase agreements, are expected to approximate their carrying amounts
due to their short tenor. For non-bank customer term deposits, contractual or derived cash flows are discounted at
market rates as at reporting date to estimate the fair values, which approximate the carrying amounts.

The fair values of the Group’s subordinated term notes and covered bonds are determined based on quoted market
prices and independent broker offer prices. For other debts issued which are usually short term, the fair values
approximate the carrying amounts.

14.3 Fair value hierarchy

The Group determines the fair values of its financial assets and liabilities using various measurements. The different

levels of fair value measurements are as follows:

e Level 1 —quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable market data either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from observable market data). The valuation techniques that use market
parameters as inputs include, but are not limited to, yield curves, volatilities and foreign exchange rates; and

e Level 3 —inputs for the valuation that are not based on observable market data.
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14. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)
14.3 Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following table summarises the Group’s assets and liabilities measured at fair values subsequent to initial
recognition by level of the fair value hierarchy:

GROUP 31 Dec 2025 31 Dec 2024

S$ million Level1 Level2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair value
Placements with and

loans to banks 4,182 15,213 - 19,395 11,383 10,514 - 21,897
Debt and equity

securities 36,705 12,684 1,951 51,340 31,176 9,405 2,059 42,640
Derivative receivables 117 12,261 657 13,035 45 16,574 584 17,203
Government treasury bills

and securities 44,865 7,875 - 52,740 28,766 5,502 - 34,268
Assets for life insurance

funds 53,137 42,625 4,614 100,376 63,363 27,271 3,648 94,282
Total 139,006 90,658 7,222 236,886 134,733 69,266 6,291 210,290

Non-financial assets measured at fair value
Investment properties for

life insurance funds - - 2,095 2,095 - - 1,939 1,939
Associates - - 86 86 — — 68 68
Total - - 2,181 2,181 — — 2,007 2,007
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative payables 314 13,205 559 14,078 160 15,482 596 16,238
Trading portfolio liabilities 197 - - 197 281 — — 281
Debt issued/other

deposits - 3,396 1,212 4,608 - 3,436 - 3,436
Other liabilities for life

insurance funds 64 142 — 206 237 458 — 695
Total 575 16,743 1,771 19,089 678 19,376 596 20,650

During the financial year, the Group transferred financial assets from Level 2 to Level 1 as prices became
observable arising from increased market activity. Financial assets were also transferred from Level 1 to Level 2
when quoted prices become unobservable arising from reduced market activity.



OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2025

14. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

14.3 Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation technigues and unobservable inputs for Level 3 instruments

GROUP
S$ million

Fair value at
31 Dec 2025

Classification

Valuation techniques

Unobservable inputs

Financial assets

Equity securities 1,951 FVTPL/FVOCI Net asset value/ Value of net asset/
Multiples/Discounted Earnings and
cash flows multiples/Cash flows and

discount rate

Derivative receivables 657 FVTPL Option pricing model Volatility/Correlation
Derivatives pricing Yield curve

Assets for life insurance 4,614 FVTPL/FVOCI Net asset value Value of net asset

funds

Total 7,222

Financial liabilities

Derivative payables 559 FVTPL Option pricing model Volatility/Correlation
Derivatives pricing Yield curve

Debt issued 1,212 FVTPL Net asset value Value of net asset

Total 1,771

GROUP Fair value at

S$ million 31 Dec 2024 Classification Valuation techniques  Unobservable inputs

Financial assets

Equity securities 2,059 FVTPL/FVOCI Net asset value/ Value of net asset/
Multiples/Discounted Earnings and
cash flows multiples/Cash flows and

discount rate

Derivative receivables 584 FVTPL Option pricing model Volatility/Correlation
Derivatives pricing Yield curve

Assets for life insurance 3,648 FVTPL/FVOCI Net asset value Value of net asset

funds

Total 6,291

Financial liabilities

Derivative payables 596 FVTPL Option pricing model Volatility/Correlation
Derivatives pricing Yield curve

Total 596
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14. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

14.3 Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Movements in Level 3 financial assets and liabilities

Debt and Assets for life
GROUP equity Loans to Derivative insurance
S$$ million securities customers receivables funds Total
Financial assets measured at fair value
At 1 January 2025 2,059 - 584 3,648 6,291
Additions 661 - 29 1,457 2,147
Settlements/disposals (455) - (35) (378) (868)
(Losses)/gains recognised in
- profit or loss (295) - 96 (115) (314)
- other comprehensive income (19) - (17) 2 (34)
At 31 December 2025 1,951 — 657 4,614 7,222
Unrealised (losses)/gains included in profit or
loss for assets held at the end of the year (138) — 721 (115) 468
Debt and Assets for life
GROUP equity Loans to Derivative insurance
S$ million securities customers receivables funds Total
Financial assets measured at fair value
At 1 January 2024 2,930 10 497 2,793 6,230
Additions 142 - 31 1,032 1,205
Settlements/disposals (223) (15) (27) (198) (463)
Transfer out (" (461) - (108) - (569)
(Losses)/gains recognised in
- profit or loss (275) 5 179 21 (70)
- other comprehensive income (54) - 12 (#) (42)
At 31 December 2024 2,059 — 584 3,648 6,291
Unrealised (losses)/gains included in profit or
loss for assets held at the end of the year (291) — 622 21 352
) Relates to transfers from Level 3 to Level 2 due to use of inputs based on market observable data.
2025 2024
GROUP Debt Derivative Derivative
S$ million issued payables Total payables Total
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
At 1 January - 596 596 616 616
Additions 1,318 29 1,347 30 30
Settlements/disposals - (36) (36) (27) (27)
Transfer out - - - (117) (117)
(Gains)/losses recognised in
- profit or loss (106) (13) (119) 82 82
- other comprehensive income - (17) (17) 12 12
At 31 December 1,212 559 1,771 596 596
Unrealised gains/(losses) included in profit
or loss for liabilities held at the end of the
year 106 (609) (503) (524) (524)

() Relates to transfers from Level 3 to Level 2 due to use of inputs based on market observable data.
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14. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)
14.3 Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Movements in Level 3 non-financial assets

2025 2024
Investment Investment
properties for properties for

GROUP life insurance life insurance
S$ million funds ) Associates @ Total funds ) Associates ® Total
Non-financial assets

measured at fair value
At 1 January 1,939 68 2,007 1,881 95 1,976
Additions 1 - 1 7 - 7
Reclassification from property,

plant and equipment 12 - 12 - - -
Gains/(losses) recognised in
- profit or loss 131 15 146 34 (32) 2
- other comprehensive income 12 3 15 17 5 22
At 31 December 2,095 86 2,181 1,939 68 2,007

() The fair value of investment properties is determined based on a combination of income approach, comparison approach and
capitalisation approach under Level 3 fair value measurements.
@ The fair value of investment in associate is determined based on income approach under Level 3 fair value measurements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

1.

Audit or review

The consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income of Oversea-
Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (the Bank) and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the six-month period
ended 31 December 2025 and certain explanatory notes as presented in this announcement have not been
audited or reviewed.

The Group has prepared a separate set of financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2025 in
accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International), on which a separate auditor’s report
dated 24 February 2026 has been issued. A copy of this auditor’s report is attached to this announcement.
Review of the performance of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2025

Please refer to the “Media Release” section.

Dividend information

Please refer to “Letter to Shareholders”.

Interested person transactions

The Bank has not obtained a general mandate from shareholders for Interested Person Transactions pursuant
to Rule 920(1) of the Listing Manual.

Disclosure of persons occupying managerial positions who are related to a director, CEO or
substantial shareholder

Pursuant to Rule 704(13) of the Listing Manual, for the financial year ended 31 December 2025, there was no
person occupying managerial position in the Bank or in any of its principal subsidiaries who is a relative of a
director or chief executive officer or substantial shareholder of the Bank.

Undertaking from directors and executive officers

The Bank has procured undertakings from all its directors and executive officers in the format set out in
Appendix 7.7 of the Listing Manual pursuant to Rule 720(1) of the Listing Manual.
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The auditor's report dated 24 February 2026, as extracted from the financial statements of Oversea-Chinese
Banking Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2025, which have been prepared in
accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International), is as follows:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF OVERSEA-CHINESE
BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
(“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) and the balance sheet, income statement, statement of comprehensive
income and statement of changes in equity of the Bank are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 1967 (“the Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)s”) so as
to give a wue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Bank
as at 31 December 2025 and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group and of the financial performance and changes in equity of the Bank for the
financial year ended on that date.

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Bank and the Group comprise:

the income statements of the Group and of the Bank for the financial year ended 31 December 2025;

the statements of comprehensive income of the Group and of the Bank for the financial year then ended;
the balance sheets of the Group and of the Bank as at 31 December 2025,

the statement of changes in equity of the Group for the financial year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity of the Bank for the financial year then ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the financial year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of
Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”), as applicable to
audits of financial statements of public interest entities, together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
audits of the financial statements of public interest entities in Singapore. We have also fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.

Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
accompanying financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgements; for
example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future
events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of
internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented
a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF OVERSEA-CHINESE
BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED (continued)

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the

financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2025. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans to customers
(Refer to Notes 2.21, 26, 27, 28 and 30 to the
financial statements)

The Group's allowances on loans to customers are
S$4,428 million as at 31 December 2025. These
allowances are determined by the Group based on
the Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”) framework
under SFRS(I) 9 Financial Instruments (“SFRS(I)
9!’).

ECL on non-credit impaired loans to customers

In respect of the ECL on non-credit impaired loans
to customers (S$2,851 million), the Group utilises
models which are reliant on internal and external
data as well as a number of estimates. We
considered this a key audit matter due to the
inherent estimation uncertainty in this area which
involves significant judgement and assumptions
that relate to, amongst others:

e determining whether a significant increase in
credit risk (“SICR”) has occurred;

e estimating forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios; and

e identifying and determining post-model
adjustments and management overlays to
account for limitations in the ECL models.

ECL on non-credit impaired loans to customers

We assessed the design effectiveness and evaluated the
operating effectiveness of key controls over the ECL on non-
credit impaired loans to customers. These controls include:

e review and approval of forward-looking information
and macroeconomic assumptions used in the ECL
models;

e review and approval of reliable and accurate critical
data elements used in the ECL models;

e review and approval of the ECL results, including post-
model adjustments and management overlays applied;

e independent validation of the ECL models and review
of model validation results by management; and

e general information technology (“IT”) controls over the
ECL system as well as IT application controls over the
completeness and accuracy of data flows from source
systems to the ECL system.

We determined that we could rely on these controls for the
purposes of our audit.

For a sample of the Group’s ECL models, we examined the
model methodologies and assessed the reasonableness of key
judgements and assumptions made by management in the
model and parameters used. We also reviewed the results of
independent model validation conducted by the Group's
model validation function as part of our assessment of the
ECL models.

We also assessed the reasonableness of criteria used to
determine a SICR and the accuracy and timeliness of
allocation of exposures into Stage 1 and Stage 2 based on
quantitative and qualitative criteria.

Through the course of our work, we challenged the rationale
and calculation basis of post-model adjustments and
management overlays.

Overall, we have assessed the methodologies and key
assumptions made by the Group to estimate the ECL on non-
credit impaired loans to customers to be appropriate.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF OVERSEA-CHINESE
BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans to customers
(continued)

ECL on credit-impaired loans to customers

As at 31 December 2025, the allowances on
credit-impaired loans to customers of the
Group are S$1,577 million, a significant
portion of which relates to the Global
Wholesale Banking (“GWB”) loan portfolio.

We focused on this area because of the
significant judgements and assumptions
applied by management in determining the
necessity for, and estimating the amount of,
the ECL allowances against credit-impaired
loans to customers. Significant judgements
were also required for the credit grading of
borrowers in accordance with MAS Notice
612,

For GWB’s credit-impaired loan portfolio,
significant management judgement and
estimation include:

e identifying credit-impaired exposures;

e assessing the future performance of the
borrowers and recoverable cash flows;
and

o determining the expected realisable
value of collaterals and the timing of
realisation.

ECL on credit-impaired loans to customers

We assessed the design effectiveness and tested the operating
effectiveness of key controls over credit grading, credit monitoring
and management’s determination of the ECL allowances for loans
to customers. These controls include:

e oversight and review of credit risk by the Credit Risk
Management Committee;

credit portfolio review and monitoring;

collateral monitoring and valuation;

monitoring of loan covenants and breaches; and
classification of loans to customers in accordance with MAS
Notice 612.

We determined that we could rely on these controls for the
purposes of our audit.

We selected a sample of credit exposures in the GWB loan
portfolio and performed credit file reviews to assess the
appropriateness of credit grading in accordance with the
requirements of MAS Notice 612. In that process, we also
considered management’s assessment on the impact of current
significant events in the identification of credit-impaired
exposures.

Where there was objective evidence of impairment, we assessed
whether the ECL allowances were recognised on a timely basis and
evaluated the sufficiency of such allowances. Our work includes:

e considering the background facts and the latest circumstances
in relation to the borrower;

e examining and challenging management’s key assumptions
applied on expected future cash flows of the borrower,
including amounts and timing of recoveries;

e comparing the realisable value of collateral against externally
derived evidence including independent valuation reports,
where available; and

e testing the calculation of impairment.

For a sample of non-credit impaired loans to customers which had
not been classified by management as credit-impaired, we
challenged management’s key assumptions on whether their
classification was appropriate, based on our understanding of the
customers, business environment and other external evidence
where available.

Based on the procedures performed, we have assessed that the ECL
allowances for credit-impaired loans to customers were within an
acceptable range of estimates.
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BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of financial instruments measured at
fair value - Levels 2 and 3

(Refer to Notes 2.21 and 40.3 to the financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2025, the Group had financial
assets of $$90,658 million and financial liabilities of
S$$16,743 million measured at fair value which were
classified as Level 2. These represent 38% of the
financial assets and 88% of the financial liabilities
measured at fair value respectively.

We considered valuation of Level 2 financial
instruments to be a key audit matter due to their
financial significance to the Group as well as the
judgement required in relation to the application of
the appropriate models, assumptions and inputs.

The Group also had financial assets of $$7,222
million and financial liabilities of S$1,771 million
measured at fair value which were classified as
Level 3. These represent 3% of the financial assets
and 9% of the financial liabilities measured at fair
value respectively.

We focused on the valuation of Level 3 financial
assets and financial liabilities as management makes
significant judgements and assumptions when
valuing these financial instruments, they are
complex or illiquid and the external evidence
supporting the Group’s valuations are limited due to
the lack of a liquid market.

We assessed

the design and tested the operating

effectiveness of key controls over the Group’s financial
instruments valuation processes, including the controls

over:

management’s testing and approval of new valuation
models including revalidation of existing models;

the completeness and accuracy of the data feeds and
other inputs into valuation models;

monitoring of collateral disputes; and

governance mechanisms and monitoring over the
valuation processes by the Market Risk Management
Committee, including over valuation adjustments.

We determined that we could rely on the controls for the
purposes of our audit.

In addition, we performed the following procedures:

we compared the Group’s valuation of financial
instruments to our own estimates on a sampling basis.
This involved sourcing inputs from market data
providers or external sources, using our own valuation
models for certain instruments, and investigating
material variances at the instrument level;

we assessed the reasonableness of the methodologies
used and the key assumptions made for a sample of
financial instruments; and

we performed procedures on collateral disputes,
which take into account counterparty valuations, to
identify possible indicators of inappropriate
valuations by the Group.

Overall, we have considered that the valuation of Level 2
and Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value
was within a reasonable range of outcomes.
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of goodwill
(Refer to Notes 2.21 and 36 to the financial
statements)

The Group has a significant amount of goodwill
arising from its business acquisitions. As at 31
December 2025, the carrying amount of goodwill
on the Group’s balance sheet amounted to S$4,344
million.

In performing the impairment assessment of the
carrying amount of goodwill, significant judgement
is made by management in estimating the
recoverable amounts of the relevant cash
generating units (“CGUSs”).

For the Banking CGUE s, this involves the estimation
of discounted cash flows, where the significant
assumptions used in the assessment include:
e forecasts of future cash flows;
e inputs to determine the risk-adjusted
discount rates; and
e  perpetual growth rates.

For the Insurance CGU, the Group applies the
appraisal value technique, which comprises the
embedded value of in-force business and the
estimated value of projected distributable profits
from new businesses. The key assumptions used in
this assessment include:

e investment returns based on long term
strategic asset mix and expected future
returns; and

e risk-adjusted discount rates.

Given the level of complexity and extent of
judgement involved, we considered this to be a key
audit matter.

We assessed the appropriateness of management’s
identification of the Group’s CGUs and methodology used
in the estimation of recoverable amounts. We also evaluated
the key assumptions used and applied sensitivity analysis to
the key assumptions to determine whether any possible
change in these key assumptions would result in an
impairment.

Banking CGUs
We evaluated the following:

e management’s cash flow projections by comparing
previous forecasts to actual results;

e the methodology and external data sources used in
deriving the discount rates and growth rates; and

e the growth rate assumptions against historical
performance and available external industry and
economic indicators.

Insurance CGU
We evaluated the following:

e the methodologies in estimating the appraisal value;
and

o the key assumptions including the investment returns
and the risk-adjusted discount rates used in deriving
the appraisal value.

We have found the key assumptions and estimates made by
management to be reasonable based on our audit procedures
performed.
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BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities for life
insurance funds

(Refer to Notes 2.21, 22 and 38.4 to the financial
statements)

The Group’s insurance operations are conducted
through Great Eastern Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“GEH Group”).

Insurance contract liabilities under SFRS(I) 17 are
measured as the total of fulfilment cash flows and
contractual service margin (“CSM”), the
determination of which requires judgement and
interpretation. This includes the selection of
accounting policies and the use of complex
methodologies which are applied in actuarial
models. The selection and application of
appropriate methodologies requires significant
professional judgement. It also requires the
determination of assumptions which involve
estimation uncertainty.

The CSM represents the unearned profit that the
Group will recognise as it provides insurance
contract services in the future. The release of CSM
of a group of contracts is recognised as insurance
revenue in the income statement of the Group based
on the number of coverage units provided in the
period. Coverage units in turn are determined by the
quantity of the benefits provided under a contract
and its expected coverage duration. Management
applied judgement in the identification of the
service provided and the determination of the
coverage units.

We performed the following procedures to address this
matter:

we assessed the adherence of the accounting policies
adopted by management with the requirements in
SFRS(I) 17;

we understood the process over the selection of
accounting policies, determination of methodologies
and assumptions, and reconciliation of data used in
determining the insurance contract liabilities;

we tested the design and operating effectiveness of
controls over the accuracy and completeness of the
data used;

we assessed the appropriateness of the methodologies
used in the determination of the insurance contract
liabilities comprising of fulfilment cash flows and
CSM, and their application in actuarial models;

we assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used by management by comparing
against GEH Group’s historical experiences and
market observable data, where applicable;

we assessed the appropriateness of management’s
identification of the services provided by reviewing
the terms and features of the insurance contracts
issued on a sample basis;

we assessed the appropriateness of management’s
determination of the coverage units against the type
of service identified; and

we reviewed the reasonableness of the movement
analysis of the insurance contract liabilities prepared
by management. The movement analysis provides a
reconciliation of the balance as at 31 December 2024
to 31 December 2025, showing the key drivers of the
changes during the year.

Based on the work performed and the evidence obtained, we
have found the methodologies, assumptions and judgements
used by management to be appropriate.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors” Statement (but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, and the other sections of the annual report (“the Other Sections™), which are expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Other Sections, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to the directors and take appropriate actions in accordance with SSAs.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and SFRS(I)s, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation
of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed
for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Bank and by those subsidiary
corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ho Hean Chan.

(Pﬂ( A’JO!R’A@UJT LA LL{D

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 24 February 2026



APPENDIX II

REPRODUCTION OF THE ISSUER’'S CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

The information set out below is a reproduction of the Issuer’s condensed interim financial statements
as at and for the six-month period ended 30 June 2025.
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Report of the Executive Board and Corporate Governance Statement (continued)
As at 30 June 2025

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Directors of SG Issuer (the "Company" or “SGIS”) (each a « Director », collectively the « Executive Board ») present
the condensed interim financial statements and the Report of the Executive Board and Corporate Governance
Statement of the Company for the period from 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025.

1. ACTIVITIES AND REVIEW OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS

The purpose of SG Issuer is to issue Notes and Warrants with all types of underlying including, without restriction,
Shares, Index, Interest Rate, Dividend, Credit Risk, Foreign Exchange, Commodities, Funds, Warrants, allowing investors
to access to the full pricing capabilities of Société Générale Group, which proposes an extensive range of investment
strategies linked to these various asset classes.

Notes and Warrants issued by the Company can be sold in either Private Placements or Public Offerings.

- Notes are mainly Debt Securities, Bonds, and Certificates. Issuing proceeds raised by the sale of the Notes will be
transferred to Société Générale S.A. (“Société Générale”) through a Fully Funded Swap (“FFS”), which perfectly
hedges SGIS for the full issue size.

- Warrants are financial products like Turbos, inline Warrants, daily Leverage Certificates, which aim to replicate the
same financial exposure as buying (Call) or selling (Put) an asset such as a share or an index, at a predetermined
price (strike price) on a predetermined date (expiry) and to offer different pay-off or exposures to investors.
Positions in warrants are systematically hedged through an option with Société Générale, with strictly identical
characteristics.

Payments in respect of the Notes and Warrants issued by the Company are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed
by Société Générale.

On request of investors, the Company can issue Collateralised Notes or Warrants (respectively “secured Notes” or
“secured Warrants”) in order to propose an additional layer of protection to investors in case of default of Société
Générale.

Notes and Warrants issuances are governed by the programs prepared by Société Générale.

The main programs for Notes are (i) the Debt Instruments Issuance Program, the Base Prospectus of which has been
updated and approved by the CSSF on 30 May 2025 and (ii) the “Programme d'Emission de Titres de Créance”, the Base
Prospectus of which has been updated and approved by the CSSF on 12 June 2025. Similarly, the main program for
Warrants is the Warrants Issuance Program, for which the last updates have been approved by the CSSF on
26 June 2025.

In addition, (i) the UK Debt Instrument Issuance Program has been approved by the FCA on 30 May 2025, ii) The German
Debt Instruments Issuance Program has been approved by the CSSF on 5 June 2025 and iii) the Swiss Securities Issuance
Program on 3 July 2025 by the SIX Exchange Regulation Ltd.

The state of business of the Company at the closing of the six-month period ended 30 June 2025 is adequately presented
in the condensed interim financial statements published hereby.
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Report of the Executive Board and Corporate Governance Statement (continued)
As at 30 June 2025

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2025, 30 441 new Notes were issued (among which 2 155 new secured
Notes) and 749 new Warrants were issued®. The net loss for the period from 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025 amounts
to KEUR 156.

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2024, 11 427 new Notes were issued (among which 57 new secured Notes)
and 1 395 new Warrants were issued. The net loss for the period from 1 January 2024 to 30 June 2024 amounts to
KEUR 8.

The Company did not exercise any research and development activity, does not have any branch, and did not acquire
any own shares.

2. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The risks associated with the investment in the Notes or Warrants depend on several factors. Such factors will vary
depending on the characteristics of the Notes or Warrants issued, in particular depending on the underlying type, the
maturity, the secured / unsecured status of the Notes or Warrants, the interest rates incurred, the volatility of the
underlying.

For each Note, the Company systematically hedges its position by contracting a FFS with Société Générale, with strictly
identical characteristics. Also, for each Warrant, the Company systematically hedges its position by contracting an
option with Société Générale, with strictly identical characteristics.

The legal documentation and the derivative instruments have been put in place in order to make sure that the assets
match the liabilities at any time. Therefore, no market risk is supported by the Company. The risk management in
relation to the Notes and Warrants is also described in Note 11 of the condensed interim financial statements.

3. FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS AND PERSPECTIVES

Further to the transfer of some notes from another vehicle of the Société Générale Group, the Company pursue its note
issuance activity in 2025. In 2025, the Company also pursue its warrant issuances activity on the Asian markets.

4, INFORMATION ON LITIGATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, SG Issuer, as the Issuer of Notes linked to the credit risk of a French corporate,
and Société Générale, as the Guarantor, were brought before the Courts of Paris (alongside other French financial
institutions) by end investors to obtain compensation for the financial loss they suffered on their investment in these
securities. The French corporate was the subject of a “safeguard procedure”, which constitutes a credit event under the
terms of the Notes which had a strong impact on the value of the Notes. These investors rely on unfounded allegations
according to which SG Issuer and Société Générale were aware of the difficulties of the French corporate when setting
up and marketing these Notes and that in doing so, they failed to meet their regulatory obligations (to act in an honest,
fair and professional manner, to provide information on the product risks and to determine the suitability of the Notes
for retail investors).

For this litigation, along with any other litigation relating to securities issued by SG Issuer, SG Issuer is entitled to an
indemnification by Société Générale in respect of any sum due by SG Issuer regarding potential damages or attorneys'
fees.

" The number of issued Notes and Warrants does not take into account the issuances which have been issued and cancelled during the
same financial period.

-7-
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Report of the Executive Board and Corporate Governance Statement (continued)
As at 30 June 2025

5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Executive Board of the Company is committed to maintain the standards of corporate governance enforced at the
level of the European Union and at level of the Société Générale Group. This statement describes the Company’s
governance principles and practices.

In compliance with its status, the Company is governed by an Executive Board and supervised by a dedicated Supervisory
Board.

5.1. Executive board

The Executive Board supervises and controls the management and operations of the Company and is responsible for
the Company system of risk management and internal control.

The Executive Board meetings are held on demand several times during the year.

The Board has quorum when more than half of its members are present. An opinion supported by more than half of the
members present becomes a decision.

Key tasks of the Executive Board:
- Ensures that the supervision of accounting is organised and monitored appropriately;
- Reviews and approves the Company’s financial statements and condensed interim financial statements;

- Supervises and controls operative management.

5.2. Supervisory board

The Supervisory Board ensures permanently and by all necessary means the control of the management of the Company
carried out by the Executive Board. However, this supervision has to be translated in no way by an intervention in the
management of the Company. The Supervisory Board can mandate advisory committees comprised of members of the
Supervisory Board and/or of other non-members to lead different missions. The Supervisory Board can confer power or
mandates permanently or temporary to these advisory committees. These advisory committees cannot have the effect
of restricting the powers of the Executive Board.

5.3. Audit committee

The mission of the Audit Committee is to monitor the issues related to the preparation and control of accounting and
financial information, to monitor the independence of the  statutory auditors, as well as to monitor the efficiency of
the internal control, measurement, supervision and risk control systems related to the accounting and financial
processes. If needed, it gives recommendations and its opinion to the Supervisory Board.

An Audit Committee took place on 28 April 2025, during which the financial statements for the financial period ended
31 December 2024 and the external audit results were presented. At least one member of the committee must be
independent, which is the case of the Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee.
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5.4. Internal audit

The Internal Audit of both Société Générale Luxembourg S.A. (“SG Luxembourg”) and Société Générale Group support
the Company’s Executive Board in overseeing the Company’s activities and securing its operations by carrying out
internal audits and providing consultative assistance. The objective of Internal Audit is to add value by making
recommendations designed to improve the Company’s functioning. Internal Audit is an independent function, and its
activities are based on international professional internal audit standards and rules of ethics.

The central task of Internal Audit is to audit the functioning of SG Issuer on a regular basis and evaluate its internal
controls, risk management, and administrative function. The areas to be audited are determined by the projected
financial and operational risks concerned. Internal Audit can also carry out special assignments at the request of
management.

Internal Audit does not have any direct authority over the activities it reviews.

5.5. Controls framework

First level of controls is related to the execution of the procedures, guidelines and instructions established to ensure
the proper and efficient functioning of the Company. They are executed by the involved teams in charge of the
production.

A second level of control is ensured by SG Luxembourg: Outsourced Essential Services (“OES”) supervision (ensured by
the Corporate department), Market Risk and Operational Risk (ensured by the Risk department), “Level 2 permanent
control” activity (monitoring and assessment of the level 1 permanent control system).”

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company ensures the completeness of the procedural framework.

5.6. New products committee

All the new activities and businesses of the Company are analysed and authorised by a dedicated New Products
Committee (NPC). All involved departments within SG Luxembourg are represented (operations, finance, risk,
accounting standards, etc...) to assess the impact for the Company.
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5.7. Service level agreements

The Company and several of its service providers are subsidiaries of the Société Générale Group.

Service Level Agreements (“SLAs”) were signed by the Company with SG Luxembourg and with Société Générale. The
SLAs govern the relations between the entities as well as their respective obligations. The services supplied by SG
Luxembourg and Société Générale are listed in the appendices of the agreements (mainly General services, legal
services, business continuity management services and financial services from SG Luxembourg and operational services
— Middle Office and Back Office — from Société Générale). In particular, the calculation of the remuneration related to
the issuance of the Notes is delegated to Société Générale Paris Middle office within the framework of the SLA.

Luxembourg, 25 September 2025
For the Executive Board

DocuSigned by:

r

7831052D58254D9...
Yves CACCLIN

Chairman of the Executive Board

DocuSigned by:

Tfu'wvx? Bodson

FABBBE7F77A249C...
Thierry BODSON

Member of the Executive Board
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Global Statement for the condensed interim financial statements
As at 30 June 2025

To the best of our knowledge, these condensed interim financial statements gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 30 June 2025, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union, and the Report
of the Executive Board (management report) includes a fair presentation of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Company, together with a description of the main risks and uncertainties that it faces.

Luxembourg, 25 September 2025

Executive Board Member
For the Executive Board

DocuSigned by:

r

7831052D58254D9...
Yves CACCLIN

Chairman of the Executive Board

DocuSigned by:

T(u'wvx? Bodson

FABBBE7F77A249C...
Thierry BODSON
Member of the Executive Board
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Report on Review of Condensed Interim Financial Statements

To the Executive Board of
SG Issuer S.A.

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim financial statements of SG Issuer S.A.
(the “Company”), which comprise interim statement of financial position as at 30 June 2025, and the
interim statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, interim statement of changes in
equity and interim statement of cash flows for the six-month period then ended, and material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

Executive Board responsibility for the condensed interim financial statements

The Executive Board is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these condensed interim
financial statements in accordance with IAS 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” as adopted by the
European Union, and for such internal control as the Executive Board determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of condensed interim financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of the Réviseur d’entreprises agréé

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these condensed interim financial statements based
on our review. We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review
Engagements (ISRE 2410 “Review of interim financial information performed by the independent
auditor of the entity”) as adopted for Luxembourg by the “Institut des Réviseurs d’Entreprises”. This
standard requires us to comply with relevant ethical requirements and conclude whether anything has
come to our attention that causes us to believe that the condensed interim financial statements, taken
as a whole, are not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework.

A review of condensed interim financial statements in accordance with ISRE 2410 is a limited
assurance engagement. The Réviseur d’entreprises agréé performs procedures, primarily consisting
of making inquiries of management and others within the Company, as appropriate, and applying
analytical procedures, and evaluates the evidence obtained.

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less than those performed in an audit
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion on these condensed interim financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Assurance, Société coopérative, 2 rue Gerhard Mercator, L-2182 Luxembourg
T: +352 494848 1, F : +352 494848 2900, www.pwe.lu

Cabinet de révision agréé. Expert-comptable (autorisation ministérielle n°10181659)
R.C.S. Luxembourg B294273 - TVA LU36559370
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Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the

accompanying condensed interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with IAS 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” as adopted by the European Union.

Luxembourg, 25 September 2025

PricewaterhouseCoopers Assurance, Société coopérative
Represented by

[Signed by:
278961A3782F4BE...

Franck Pansera
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SG Issuer S.A.

Condensed interim financial statements
As at 30 June 2025

Interim statement of financial position

(‘000 EUR) (‘000 EUR)
Note 30.06.2025 31.12.2024
Cash and cash equivalents 3,11.4,115 60,072 63,575
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss 4.1,11.4,11.5 52,760,662 49,117,912
- Trading derivatives at fair value through profit or loss 4.1,11.4,11.5 190,710 77,950
Loans and receivables 50,005 50,026
Other assets 427,975 292,904
Total assets 53,489,424 49,602,367
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 4.3,11.4,11.5 67,523 96,621
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Designated at fair value through profit or loss 4.2,11.4,11.5 52,750,893 49,120,262
- Trading derivatives at fair value through profit or loss 4.2, 1(1)'511'4' 190,724 76,896
Other liabilities 6 478,235 306,067
Tax liabilities 7 5 87
Total liabilities 53,487,380 49,599,933
Share capital 8.1 2,000 2000
Share premium 8.1 - -
Legal reserve 8.2.1 200 200
Other reserves 8.2.2 - -
Profit for the financial period/year (156) 234
Total equity 2,044 2,434
Total equity and liabilities 53,489,424 49,602,367
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed interim financial statements. -14 -
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Condensed interim financial statements (continued)
As at 30 June 2025

Interim statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

(‘000 EUR)
Note 1%t half of 2025

(‘000 EUR)
1%t half of 2024

Interest income 1,288 2,025
Commission income 9.1 25,320 21,689
Total revenues 26,608 23,714
Interest expenses (19,772) (15,052)
Net result from financial instruments at fair value

through profit or loss 92 (163) (2)
Personnel expenses (99) (96)
Other operating expenses (6,725) (8,567)
Total expenses (26,759) (23,717)
Profit or (loss) before tax (151) (3)
Income tax 7 (5) (5)
Profit or (loss) for the interim period (156) (8)
Total comprehensive income for the interim period (156) (8)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed interim financial statements.

-15-
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Condensed interim financial statements (continued)

As at 30 June 2025

Interim statement of changes in equity

(‘O00EUR) (‘000 EUR) (‘000 EUR) (000 EUR) (000 EUR) (000 EUR) (000 EUR)
Profit or (loss) for
. Share . . .
Share capital remium Legal reserve Other reserves Total reserves the financial Total equity
P year/interim period
As at 31 December 2023 2,000 - 200 - 200 15 2,215
A.II<.)cat|on .of t.he r.esult of the previous year before i i i 15 15 (15) i
dividend distribution
Capital increase / Allocation to the share premium i 34,361 i i i i 34,361
account (Note 8.1)
Dividend paid (Note 8.1) - - - (15) (15) (15)
Reimbursement of the share premium (Note 8.1) - (34,361) - - - - (34,361)
Profit and other comprehensive income for the period i i (8) (8)
from 1 January 2024 to 30 June 2024
As at 30 June 2024 2,000 - 200 - 200 (8) 2,192
Profit and other comprehensive income for the
. - - - - - 242 242
period from 1 July 2024 to 31 December 2024
As at 31 December 2024 2,000 - 200 - 200 234 2,434
A.Ilc.)c